XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED

BIREFSEEHBIR RS

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESEHSTMK L2 BRAR])
Stock Code & {7155 : 1748

2023

ANNUAL REPORT
T

.;x@n.
::::




Table of Contents

B &%

CORPORATE INFORMATION

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFINITIONS

NAEIER

ITREwE
IFEPBRE
ERERwm AN
BEENEREEERE

EEERRE

B BED RS

ReBaMEMEEKER

fRA MBI R

A M mRM

\_N

23

32

51

84

164

172

173

174

176

177

179




Corporate Information

NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ding Yuzhao (resigned on 26 March 2024)
Mr. Lin Shifeng

Mr. Chen Yanbiao (appointed on 26 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Shusong

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Wei Shusong

Mr. Xu Jie

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Xu Jie (Chairman)

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Wenjun

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
(ESTABLISHED ON 26 MARCH 2024)

Mr. Chen Yanbiao (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jiagan

Mr. Xu Wenjun

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chung Ming Fai

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Chen Ming
Mr. Chung Ming Fai

2 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Exg

HITES

RetEE (E)
RER= L (BIE/E)
XA (TTBAAE)

T R8I (7R 2024 % 3 H 26 H BHF)

M85 4

PBRAEAFE S5 4 (IR 2024 4E3 H 26 H EZ 1F)

BYFHTES
REMEE
BEREE
fRERE

BEREEg
BEB s (8)
MBS
gk

REZEE
R84 %8 4 ()
BEE sk
B s

FMEES
RERE (Z/E)
BEREE
X RE

BHREREZEE
(7420243 A26 HK L)
BRIEAZ S A (L)

PR A

w9 EE

DNEHWE
{5 A

REAK
PR 86 5% 4
BB L



Corporate Information

NEEH

AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
29th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

WWW.XYSgroup.com

STOCK CODE
1748

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Room 02-05, 40th Floor

International Commerce Centre

No. 23 Changting Street

Taijiang, Fuzhou

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
40th Floor

Dah Sing Financial Centre

No. 248 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

= BED
G ELA
HE SR

A A R T2 B B2 X LA
BE

BB 28R

FE — B

29718

NGIE N

WWW.XYSgroup.com

1R 1 5%

1748

MEREEERME

a3
'/MmaLE
RITH235%
ICCEBEERERA
408 02-05F

BERETEERMH
BB

SR RNEE 2485
RETE B AL
4018

FEHEEMBER
P.O.Box 31119

Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

FEREXEBARRAR/20BFF5H


http://www.xysgroup.com/

Corporate Information

NEEH

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Citibank N.A,, Singapore Branch

Bank of China Limited, Fujian Pilot Free Trade Zone
Pingtan Branch

LEGAL ADVISOR

DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP
28/F, Henley Building

5 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

4 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

FERERMNBFERAER
BEARE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

EREROBFETRE

BEBHFELARAR
BE

BB 1655
BRREEPOI7E

FEAEREBAT

hEIRTT (BB) BRAH]
ZBBRITROBERATBED T
TERIRITH N D AT

PERITEROBRAREREAEARE

FEREHTT

e
EERMEET (B8 BRARETLY
B

IR

ERAEFRSH

e KE 2818



Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

To all shareholders,

As we reflect on the past year, | am pleased to report that despite the
challenges faced by the global economy and the shipping market, our
Group has delivered a resilient performance, demonstrating the
strength and adaptability of our business model and the dedication of
our team. Our financial performance has been solid this year, with
asphalt tanker chartering services providing stable revenue.

The demand for asphalt tanker services remains robust, underpinned
by continued investments in infrastructure development across the
globe. Our strategic focus on maintaining a modern, efficient fleet has
positioned us well to capitalize on the opportunities that have arisen
from these market conditions.

In late 2023, we are committed to dispose of the remaining bulk carrier,
XYMG Noble, and the transaction was completed on 1 March 2024.
This enables us to enhance the working capital position and further
strengthen the liquidity, and also allows us to focus on our core asphalt
tanker chartering business. Our Group will continuously review the
prevailing market conditions of the shipping industry and optimize our
fleet profile as appropriate.

In response to environmental concerns and regulatory changes, we
have taken proactive steps to upgrade our fleet, ensuring compliance
with the latest emissions standards. We are also exploring alternative
fuel options and investing in technologies to enhance the operational
efficiency of our vessels, thereby reducing our environmental footprint.

Looking ahead, the market for asphalt tanker chartering is set to
continue its growth trajectory, driven by the ongoing need for
infrastructure maintenance and development worldwide. However, we
are mindful of potential challenges, including environmental
regulations, geopolitical tensions, and economic fluctuations that
could impact the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

I 'would like to express my sincere gratitude to our employees, whose
hard work and unwavering commitment have been instrumental in
our success. | would also like to thank our customers, suppliers, and
partners for their continued trust and support. In closing, we are
optimistic about the future. With a strong strategic plan in place, a
dedicated team, and a clear vision for growth, we are well-positioned
to navigate the challenges and opportunities that lie ahead.

Mr. Chen Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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Five-Year Financial Summary

IFEMBERE

A summary of the results, and of the assets and liabilities of the Group 8B AR BB T2 KB X P B RE D
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited ZAEBEBERFETBRFEMNEEALE

financial statements of the Company is set out below. ERBERMAT -
RESULTS E4
Year ended 31 December HZ12H3VHIEFE
2019* 2020% 2021% 2022* 2023
2019 5 2020 £ 2021 £ 2022 £ 2023 F
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
FEx FET FET FET =
Revenue WA 49,751 55,973 52,331 64,124 58,916
Cost of sales 5 & AR (35,762) (39,309) (44,022) (48,882) (41,891)
Gross profit Bl 13,989 16,664 8,309 15,242 17,025
Other income Hib Uz 1,489 617 1,181 5978 1,954
Other gains and losses Hinlyzs M Eia (424) (72) 535 75 (185)
Administrative expenses TR X (2,535) (3,199) (3,664) (4,580) (4,350)
Other operating expenses Hth &8 F (428) (596) (1,034) (341) (480)
Profit from operations RE R 12,001 13414 5327 16,374 13,964
Finance costs BE KA (6,087) (4,806) (3,596) (5,442) (5,373)
Profit before tax BR 3 B A 6,004 8,608 1731 10,932 8,591
Income tax expense FTiE A< - () (10) (1) (94)
Profit for the year attributable to N2 B1# B A1
owners of the Company FZ % A 6,004 8603 1,721 10,931 8,497
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December 12 A31H
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
2019 2020 2021 4 2022 4F 2023 &

US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000  US$’000
T=x TET TET TEr TEr

Total assets EESE 218,965 212,525 200,499 212651 187,723
Total liabilities BfEEE (113,875) (93,218) (79,469) (80,773) (63,356)
Net assets BEFE 105,090 119,307 121,030 131,878 124,367

* Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year's — * HREFEEFHE  UFELTFENET

presentation. The changes included the reclassification of fair value gains/losses on FH - ZEEHREHLTABEAREMEA
derivative financial instruments previously classified under other income and other &ﬁ{ EERTMTEERIAN R FER
operating expenses to other gains and losses. The new classification of the accounting w/ EEEN O EAREMBEREE g
items was considered to provide a more appropriate presentation of the financial FHEESEWRAREREHMENAREEN
performance of the Group. ISR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEREBNmR DN

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, together with the
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the Year Under Review, the Group's performance was impressive
with the profit from operations of approximately US$8.5 million, a
significant increase of approximately 54.5%, as compared to the profits
(excluding the one-off gain on disposal of a vessel) of approximately
USS$5.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. Our Group
recorded revenue of approximately US$58.9 million for the Year Under
Review, with two operating segments which included asphalt tanker
chartering services and bulk carrier chartering services. Our Group
principally provides asphalt tanker chartering services under various
types of charter agreements comprising: (i) time charters; and (ii)
voyage charters and contracts of affreightment (“CoAs”).

As at the date of this report, we operate a fleet of ten vessels with total
capacity of approximately 92,000 dwt, of which eight vessels are
operated under asphalt tanker time charters, two vessels are operated
under asphalt tanker voyage charters or CoAs. A second-hand Capesize
vessel operated under a bulk carrier time charter during the Year Under
Review has been disposed in March 2024. Those vessels operated
under time charters are chartered to customers with high performance
capabilities on a long-term basis ranging from one to three years,
which generated steady income for our Group.

We endeavour to provide high quality asphalt tanker and bulk carrier
chartering services. We have our own team of engineers and we are
actively involved in the design of our vessels. Our team works closely
with ship design experts, our customers, shipyards, international
classification societies and banks or finance lease companies. Our major
customers include global shipping and logistics groups, global
independent energy traders and publicly listed energy companies
based in the United States. Our Group has diversified our business and
services and gradually developed our own customer portfolio.

With our Group's experienced management team and competitive
advantages, our Directors believe that our Group is well-positioned to
further develop our presence in the asphalt tanker chartering services
market and bulk carrier time chartering services market. Hence, our
Group maintains a variety of services types with a balanced approach
to meet different demands in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEREBNmR DN

Our views of the industry’s prospects are analysed from different
perspectives, including but not limited to, global asphalt market
demand, shipping industry trends, sustainability, trade policies and
economic environment. The asphalt shipping industry is fundamental
to the global trade of asphalt, while the asphalt is a crucial material for
infrastructure construction, and its demand in asphalt and charter
tanker services has been steadily growing globally. Even amidst a
global economic downturn, many countries are increasing their
infrastructure investments to different extents to stimulate economic
growth. Some refineries in Europe are closing down due to
environmental protection regulations and carbon emission
requirements, which lead to geographic disparities and changes in
refinery distribution and trade flow of asphalt, and thus increase the
trade volume in asphalt shipping industry.

The sustainable development has become the focus of global
attention, the shipping industry also needs to adopt the environmental
regulations, including reducing emissions, using more environmentally
friendly fuels, and optimising routes and logistics etc. According to
International Marine Organisation, for the purpose of the improvement
of the energy efficiency of all ships in the short term and thereby
reduce their greenhouse gas emissions, from 1 January 2023, it is
mandatory for all ships to calculate their attained Energy Efficiency
Existing Ship Index ("EEXI") to measure their energy efficiency and to
initiate the collection of data for the reporting of their annual
operational carbon intensity indicator ("Cll") and Cll rating. As such, the
market may phase out certain vessels that fail to meet the standard
and tighten in capacity. In addition, ships may reduce speed to meet
effective ratings, which will lengthen travel time and result in varying
degrees of market freight increases. Our existing fleet has been
designed with anticipated environmental requirements in mind, giving
us a competitive advantage in terms of sustainability and in line with
trends in the asphalt tanker services industry.

Tariffs, trade restrictions, geopolitical tensions could lead to the global
economic uncertainty and cast a shadow of instability on our industry.
According to the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”), the world
economy is expected to grow by 3.1% in 2024, but the overall growth
and global trade still remains lower than the historical average. The
IMF's chief economist, Pierre-Olivier Gourinchas, cautioned that the
base of expansion was slow and risks remained, including geopolitical
tensions in the Middle East and attacks in the Red Sea that could
disrupt commodity prices and supply chains. In summary, the outlook
for the asphalt tanker charter industry remains positive. With the global
economy growth and the development of infrastructure construction,
the demands for asphalt and the tanker chartering services are
expected to continue to rise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

The bulk carrier business segment contributed steady revenue to our
Group from the remaining Capesize vessel during the Year Under
Review, though the global economy had been influenced by several
key trends and developments that could have potentially impacted
this Capesize bulk carrier market, such as post-pandemic recovery,
supply-chain challenges and geopolitical tensions etc. In December
2023, our Group entered into an agreement with the Purchaser to
dispose of the remaining Capesize vessel, XYMG Noble, at a
consideration of approximately US$17.0 million, and such transaction
was completed on 1 March 2024. We continuously review the
prevailing market conditions of the shipping industry and monitor and
adjust the Group's fleet profile as appropriate, and believe this disposal
would enhance the Group’s working capital position and further
strengthen its liquidity, and optimise the fleet profile through ongoing
management of its assets.

Looking ahead into 2024, we expect several factors could pose risks and
challenges to asphalt tanker chartering market, which may evolve over
time, including (i) a downturn in construction activity may reduce demand
for asphalt, affecting charter rates and vessel utilisation; (i) any disruptions
in the supply chain of crude oil or refining capacity can affect asphalt
availability and prices; (iii) fuel costs represent a significant portion of
operating expenses, high volatility in bunker price can directly impact the
profitability of asphalt chartering business; (iv) a global recession or
slowdown in emerging markets could reduce the number of projects
requiring asphalt; and (v) tariffs, trade barriers, and geopolitical tensions
such as the Russia-Ukraine war, the Gaza-Israel conflict and attacks in the
Red Sea can influence the flow of asphalt, potentially disrupting
established trade routes and affecting chartering services. Our Group will
monitor these risks closely and be prepared to adopt strategies accordingly
to navigate the challenges that arise in 2024 and beyond.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year Under Review, our revenue decreased to approximately
US$58.9 million by approximately US$5.2 million or 8.1% from
approximately US$64.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
For the Year Under Review, such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in bulk carrier time chartering services as a result of the
cessation of contribution from a Capesize vessel, XYG Fortune upon its
disposal in August 2022.

Revenue generated from asphalt tanker time charters services
increased significantly by approximately US$11.0 million or 48.5% from
approximately US$22.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately US$33.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023. Such increase was mainly attributable to three vessels have
changed their operation from voyage charters to time charters in 2022,
and a vessel has change its operation from voyage charters to time
charters in 2023, and the aggregate contribution of these four vessels
for time charters increased by approximately US$8.7 million for the
Year Under Review. Further, such increase can also be attributed to the
average daily charter rate increasing during the Year Under Review.

Revenue generated from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs
decreased by approximately US$10.9 million or 35.4% from
approximately US$30.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately US$19.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, mainly due to three vessels changing their operation from
voyage charters to time charters in 2022, allowing them to contribute
revenue generated from voyage charters of approximately US$9.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2022, while none was
generated for the Year Under Review, and such vessel has since
changed its operation from voyage charters to time charters in 2023
resulting in the decrease in revenue generated from voyage charters of
approximately US$4.9 million for the Year Under Review, but this has
been offset by the increase in average daily voyage charter rate during
the Year Under Review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR D

During the Year Under Review, revenue from bulk carrier time
chartering services decreased significantly to approximately US$5.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 (solely generated from
the remaining second-hand Capesize vessel), from US$10.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022, by approximately USS$5.2 million or
49.1% due to the fact that the cessation of contribution from another
Capesize vessel, XYG Fortune, upon its disposal in August 2022.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales decreased by approximately US$7.0 million or 14.3%,
from approximately US$48.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately US$41.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2023. Such decrease was in line with the decrease in
revenue of approximately 8.1% and the cost saving from bunker fees
and other costs, which were mainly due to the combined effect of
following factors:

(i) our bunker fees decreased by approximately US$5.5 million or
49.8%, mainly due to the decrease in bunker costs borne by our
Group as a result of the decrease in the revenue from asphalt
tanker voyage charters of approximately 35.4%, as well as the
drop of global bunker indices, the average bunker price
decreased by approximately 15% to 30% for the year ended 31
December 2023 as compared to the same corresponding period
in 2022;

(i) our crew expenses recorded a decrease of approximately US$1.5
million or 9.3%, resulting from the resumption of normal for crew
change and lessen quarantine and other pandemic-related
manning costs after the COVID-19 pandemic, and no further
sailor expenses were incurred for the disposed Capesize vessel
during the Year Under Review; and

(i)  our depreciation was charged at a mild decrease of approximately
US$0.8 million or 7.1%, mainly due to the fact that no
depreciation of the disposed Capesize vessel was charged during
the Year Under Review.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our Group's gross profit increased by approximately US$1.8 million or
11.8%, from approximately USS$15.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately US$17.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
gross profit margin.
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Our overall gross profit margin improved from approximately 23.8% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 28.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2023, which was mainly attributable to the drop
of bunker fee, the decrease in crew expenses resulting from the
normalisation after the COVID-19 pandemic and the increase in
average daily charter rates.

Our gross profit generated from asphalt tanker time charters services
significantly increased by approximately US$4.0 million or 90.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Such increase was mainly in line with
the increase in revenue from asphalt tanker time chartering of
approximately 48.5% and the increase in gross profit margin by
approximately 5.6 percentage points due to the improvement of crew
expenses spending level after the COVID-19 pandemic and the
increase in average daily charter rates.

Our gross profit from asphalt tanker voyage charters and CoAs for the
year ended 31 December 2023 maintained the same level as the prior
year at approximately US$6.6 million, mainly attributable to the
combined effect of the decrease of revenue generated from asphalt
tanker voyage charters and CoAs of approximately 35.4%, and the
improvement of gross profit margin by approximately 11.9 percentage
points attributable to the decrease in the aggregate of crew expenses
and bunker fee and the increase in average daily charter rates.

Our gross profit from bulk carrier time chartering services decreased by
approximately US$2.2 million or 51.5% for the year ended 31
December 2023, and its gross profit margin also decreased slightly by
approximately 2.0 percentage points for the Year Under Review. It was
mainly due to the discontinuance of profit contribution from the
disposed Capesize vessel, XYG Fortune following its disposal in August
2022.

Other income

Our other income decreased by approximately US$4.0 million from
approximately US$6.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately US$2.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Such decrease was mainly attributable to a one-off gain on disposal of
XYG Fortune of approximately US$5.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 but no such disposal transaction in 2023, but
offsetting by the fact that the increase in non-recurring insurance
compensation income of approximately US$1.1 million in relation to
the repair costs of vessels and more interest income earned resulting
from higher interest rate on bank balances for the Year Under Review.
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Other gains and losses

Our Group recorded net other losses of approximately US$0.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, while recorded net other gains
of approximately USS$0.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
mainly attributable to net fair value losses on derivative financial
instrument for the year ended 31 December 2023, but net fair value
gains on derivative financial instrument for the year ended 31
December 2022, but maintaining similar level of net exchange losses
for both years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Our Group maintained net exchange losses at approximately US$O0.1
million for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, which was
principally attributable to the exchange fluctuation of our Group's
borrowings denominated in Singapore Dollars ("SGD"). USD
depreciated against SGD by approximately 0.6% and 1.6% for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023 respectively, resulting in exchange
losses for the respective periods, when translation of the borrowings
denominated in SGD. Besides, our Group fully repaid the borrowings
denominated in SGD from approximately US$4.6 million as at 31
December 2022 during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Administrative expenses

Our Group's administrative expenses decreased slightly by
approximately US$0.2 million or 4.3% from approximately US$4.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately USS$4.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to the
decrease in directors’ emolument during the Year Under Review.

Other operating expenses

Our Group's other operating expenses increased from approximately
US$0.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
US$0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, mainly in relation
to accident-related costs of vessels.

Finance costs

Our finance costs maintained at approximately US$5.4 million for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, mainly attributable to lower
gearing ratio but offsetting by higher interest rates.
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Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased from approximately US$1,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately US$94,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to provision for current tax
for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “PRC EIT") for the Year Under
Review.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, Singapore Corporate
Income Tax has been provided at the rate of 17% except that the
income derived from vessel owning and chartering is exempted from
Singapore Corporate Income Tax.

Under the Law of the PRC EIT (the “EIT Law") and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2023, but at a rate of nil for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was made since the income
derived from overseas sources are not subject to tax or our Group has
no assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2023.

Profit for the year

Our profit for the Year Under Review decreased by approximately
USS$2.4 million or 22.0% from approximately US$10.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately US$8.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, while our net profit margin also
decreased from approximately 17.0% to approximately 14.4% for the
respective periods. Such decrease in our profit for the Year Under
Review was primarily attributable to the absence of a non-recurring
gain on disposal of approximately USS$5.5 million for the Capesize
vessel, XYG Fortune in August 2022, the decrease in revenue of
approximately 8.1%, but offsetting by the improvement in gross profit
margin resulting from the decrease in bunker fee due to the drop of
global bunker price, the decrease in crew expenses due to the
normalisation after the COVID-19 pandemic and the increase in
average daily charter rates.

EBREX

Fri8fim X mE E2022F 12831 HIEEF
fE491,000F T MMEH E2023F12 A 31
HIEFEA94000%T TEHREIEF
ERBCEMESHR ((FELEMESH]
B BN TR B o

HE20202FK2023F12A3HIEFE
EIZ17% KB R ETH R FT N S EFTISH -
WREBEEMM EMMAEESOKA
EEREEBMFTINFEEEMER -

BB EAMERE ([RERBHED
RECEFSHEERIKD - BE2023F
NANBLEFENPBECEMSHBE
A325%  BEE202F 128318 IEFE
MHEART o

R RR B8N RR A B E 4B 5 AR
EEEHE202%F K2023F12A31HILF
EWEERB &N U ERBERNG
A B -

FREF
REEFE &M BEEE202512H31
HIEFENIOBAEETRALH 248 E
FEILH20%EE E2023F 128318 1k
FEHNSSHEEL MAFEIREH
HAM £917.0% T Bk E #914.4% ° 1A B BE
ERaEFRP>EBREMNITE 2020253
A & & IR B XYG Fortune #5.5 & &8 5
TSR E M E - RIRAR A %8.1% -
HERR IR B ER T ERERREER
D COVID-19R B RMEETERME
XA ARFHEAMEMERIEMN -
BYEFERIES W MATIKE -

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
BEREBNmR DN

FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2023, our Group's total assets amounted to
approximately US$187.7 million (31 December 2022: US$212.7 million)
with net assets amounting to approximately US$124.4 million (31
December 2022: US$131.9 million). As at 31 December 2023, the
gearing ratio (total debts divided by the total equity attributable to
owners of our Company) of our Group was 0.47, representing a
decrease of 17.5% as compared to that of 0.57 as at 31 December 2022.
Net debt to equity ratio (net debt, being our total debts net of bank
and cash balances and pledged bank deposits, divided by total equity
attributable to owners of our Company) of our Group was 0.29 as at 31
December 2023, representing an increase of 7.4% as compared to that
of 0.27 as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2023, the current
ratio of our Group was 1.65, representing an increase of 26.9% as
compared to that of 1.30 as at 31 December 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the liquidity position has
improved due to the stable profit growth and the gearing ratio slightly
decreased. Our Group adopts a balanced approach to cash and
financial management to ensure proper risk control and lower costs of
funds, and seeks to maintain an optimal level of liquidity that can meet
our working capital needs while supporting a healthy level of business
and our various growth strategies. Our Group finances our operations
and growth primarily through cash generated from operations,
borrowings and finance lease arrangements.

As at 31 December 2023, our Group's borrowings and lease liabilities
were approximately US$58.9 million in aggregate, decreased by
approximately US$16.3 million as compared to approximately US$75.2
million as at 31 December 2022, which was primarily due to the
gradual repayment of debts financing by the profits generated from
operations.

As at 31 December 2023, our Group had pledged bank deposits and
bank and cash balances of approximately US$22.7 million in aggregate,
representing a decrease of approximately US$17.0 million as compared
to approximately US$39.7 million as at 31 December 2022. Such cash
outflows were mainly a combined effect of the profits generated from
operations and gradual repayment of borrowings and lease liabilities.
Most of our bank and cash balances are denominated in USD.
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TREASURY POLICIES

The primary objective of our Group's capital management is to
maintain its ability to continue as a going concern so that our Group
can constantly provide returns for the Shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders by securing access to financing at reasonable costs.
Our Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustment by taking into consideration the
changes in economic conditions, its future capital requirements,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 31 December 2023, our Group's indebtedness mainly comprised
borrowings and lease liabilities of approximately US$58.2 million and
US$0.6 million, respectively. Our borrowings are denominated in USD,
while lease liabilities are mainly denominated in Renminbi. Majority of
the borrowings and lease liabilities are arranged at floating rates, thus
exposing our Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, our Group used interest rate swaps in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations relating to interest
cash flows. As at 31 December 2023, our Group has no outstanding
interest rate swap contracts.

The maturity of borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2023
is as follows:
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As at 31 December 2023, our borrowings only comprised other loans
amounting to approximately US$58.2 million, while the bank loans
were fully repaid during the Year Under Review.
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Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of our
Group. As at 31 December 2023, the other loans were secured by the
following:

(@) mortgage over our Group's vessels;

(b) corporate guarantees provided by our Company;
(c) restricted bank balances; and

(d)  shares of certain subsidiaries.

The lease liabilities of approximately US$0.6 million as at 31 December
2023 were related to the office properties leases and were not secured
by any collateral.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

Our Group has a certain exposure to foreign currency risk as some of
our business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective Group
entities such as SGD and Renminbi. Our Group has also adopted a
foreign exchange rate and interest rate risk control policy to manage
the foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. Our Group monitors the
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
transactions to mitigate significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise. As at 31 December 2023, our Group has no outstanding
foreign currency forward contracts.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of bank balances
restricted from being used and vessels pledged as securities for our
Group's borrowings amounted to approximately US$1.2 million and
US$99.9 million, respectively.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
As at 31 December 2023, our Group did not have any material capital
commitment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023, our Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

We value our employees and recognise the importance of a good
relationship with our employees. We recruit our employees based on
their work experiences, educational background and qualifications. To
maintain and ensure the quality of our employees, we provide our
personnel formal and on-the-job training to enhance their technical
skills as well as knowledge of industry quality standards and work place
safety standards. As at 31 December 2023, our Group had a total of 41
employees, of which 33 were located in the PRC, 3 were located in
Hong Kong and 5 were located in Singapore. The remuneration to our
employees includes salaries and allowances. Employees are
remunerated according to their qualifications, experiences, job nature,
performance and with reference to market conditions.

Our Group's total employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 were
approximately US$2.8 million and US$2.8 million, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD
Our Group had not held any significant investments during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 September 2018 and which became
effective on 26 September 2018 (the “Listing Date"). Under the Share
Option Scheme, Eligible Participants (as defined below) (including
Directors, full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of and
consultants, advisers, suppliers, customers and agents to our Company
or our subsidiaries) may be granted options which entitle them to
subscribe for the Shares, when aggregated with options granted under
any other scheme, representing initially not more than 10% of the
Shares in issue on the Listing Date. Unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. No share option had ever been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year Under Review, the Group entered into the following

material transactions:

On 15 December 2023, the Group entered into the Sale and
Leaseback (December 2023) Transactions, pursuant to which, the
Charterer (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into: (1) the Memorandum of Agreement with the
Owner, pursuant to which the Owner agreed to purchase and
the Charterer agreed to sell the vessel Baustella subject to the
terms and conditions therein; and (2) the Bareboat Charter
Agreement with the Owner in relation to the bareboat chartering
of the Baustella.

For details of the Sale and Leaseback (December 2023)
Transactions, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 15 December 2023.

On 22 December 2023, the Vendor (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Agreement with the
Purchaser to dispose of XYMG Noble, pursuant to the terms and
conditions set out therein, the Vendor agreed to sell and the
Purchaser agreed to purchase XYMG Noble at a consideration of
US$16,950,000.

For details of the Disposal transaction, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by our Group
during the Year Under Review.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no definite future plan for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets as at 31 December 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 January 2024, the Group settled an other loan of approximately
US$11,707,000 before the maturity date. The pledge of the related
vessel was released to complete the disposal of vessel.

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events affecting the
Group which have occurred since the end of the Year Under Review.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE SUBSCRIPTIONS
Pursuant to the subscription agreements dated 19 May 2020, the
Company allotted and issued, and the subscribers subscribed for, an
aggregate of 40,000,000 Shares at HK$1.092 per Share for an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to approximately
USS$5,628,866) on 3 June 2020 (the “Subscriptions”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEREBNmR DN

The aggregate gross proceeds of the Subscriptions amounted to
HK$43,680,000 (equivalent to approximately US$5,628,866) and the
aggregate net proceeds, after the deduction of the related expenses,
was approximately HK$43,280,000 (equivalent to approximately
US$5,577,320). An analysis of the amount utilised up to 31 December
2023 is set out below:

RBERZM

/=

Tﬂ" TA

BRBEAHRA

43,680,000/ 7T (A8 & 7 475,628,866 3%

7o) - MR AR SIR 2 B

BEFEA

49 543,280,000 78 7T (FHE 1R 495,577,320
ET) cHE202LF12ABCEBHAS
A DMTEZAT

Proposed use
of proceeds
as disclosed
in the Utilised
announcement Unutilised during the year Unutilised
of the Company asat ended asat
dated 19 May 1January  31December 31 December
2020 2023 2023 2023
APRAHA
2020 F BE
5A19AM 2023 F
NERRE R2023 & 128310 R2023 %
PR FIEN 1818 LLFE 12A318
RERE *BA EBA AEA
HKS" million HKS' million HKS' million HKS' million
BEET BEAT BEAT BEAT
General working capital —MReEE® 433 113 113 -
The net proceeds from the Subscriptions were used as intended, as set  REBEHEMMEFIBFHED LA R A H

out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 May 2020. The
unutilised net proceeds of approximately HK$11.3 million as at 31
December 2022 have been fully utilised during the Year Under Review.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENRGHREEERERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Chen Ming

Mr. Chen Ming (FR &4 7t 4 ), aged 28, is our executive Director and the
chairman of the Board. Mr. Chen was appointed as our executive
Director on 25 March 2021, who has approximately 5 years of
experience in corporate governance. From September 2018 to October
2020, Mr. Chen worked in Xinhua Fortune Group Company Limited*
(BB E S B B R A F]) (@ company primarily engaged in Iron and
steel, e-commerce, agriculture, real estate, tourism and other industries
coordinated development) as the assistant to the chairman,
responsible for assisting the chairman of the board to call and preside
over the general meeting of the management, organising the
discussion of the company's development plan, operation policy,
annual plan and major issues in daily operation.

Mr. Chen is the son of Mr. Chen Maochun, who held in a total of
116,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, representing
approximately 26.36% of the share interest in the Company through
his wholly owned company named UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL
TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED GRFEIBERH (BB) ER A
al).

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Sport University (1t R 88 & K £2)

and received a bachelor’s degree in Sports Economics And
Management in July 2018.

* For identification only
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERE

Chen Jiagan

Mr. Chen Jiagan (FRZX # 5t 4 ), aged 49, is our executive Director and
vice chairman of the Board. Mr. Chen was appointed as our executive
Director and vice chairman of the Board on 11 March 2022, who has
over 23 years of experience in securities investment. From July 2000 to
March 2004, Mr. Chen served as a manager at MF Securities Co,, Ltd. ([
B FE S B R E TR A (currently known as Dongxing Securities
Corporation Limited (5 835 %5 % {7 A BR A &), a company listed on
the Shanghai stock exchange (stock code: 601198)). From April 2004 to
December 2009, Mr. Chen served as the head of merger and
acquisitions of the Fujian investment bank division at Sinolink Securities
Co, Ltd. (& FEFH KM B R AR, a company listed on the
Shanghai stock exchange (stock code: 600109). From January 2010 to
January 2015, Mr. Chen served as the vice chairman of the board of
directors of China Chemical Fibers Investment Co., Ltd* (F 4 8l ¥ %
& B PR A A)). Since February 2015, Mr. Chen has served as the legal
representative, executive director and general manager of Fujian Jiuhe
Investment Co.,, Ltd* (fR A K% & B R 2 7]). Since December
2019, Mr. Chen has also served as the legal representative, executive
director and manager of Fuzhou Dayang Intelligent Parking Co., Ltd.*

(BMAXFEZREFRQA).

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in mathematics education
and his master’s degree in probability and mathematical statistics from
Fujian Normal University (8 2 B & K £) in 1997 and 2000,
respectively. Mr. Chen obtained his doctoral degree in quantitative
economics from Huagiao University (ZEBKRE)in2014.

* For identification only
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Xu Wenjun

Mr. Xu Wenjun (#& X 9 %t &), aged 68, is our executive Director and
the chief executive officer of our Group. Mr. Xu has been a Director
since 28 June 2016, being the date of incorporation of our Company.
Mr. Xu has participated in the management of our Group since 1
February 2010 where he has been responsible for corporate strategic
planning, overseeing the overall operations and business development
and day-to-day business management of our Group. Mr. Xu is a director
of each member of our Group other than Xinlanhai.

Mr. Xu has approximately 17 years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Xu worked as the
deputy general manager at Fuzhou Dongfang Jinrong Shipping Co,,
Ld. (FBINR T HBEERRR

in international shipping management business, from November 2002

, @ company principally engaged

to June 2006, where he was mainly responsible for international
shipping business. From May 2006 until now, Mr. Xu worked as the
general manager of Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally
engaged in investment, where he was mainly responsible for making
investment.

Mr. Xu served as the chief executive officer and general manager of
Jincheng Hengtong from January 2010 to November 2017, where he
was mainly responsible for overseeing the overall operations.

Mr. Xu received the certificate of Adult Higher Education majoring in
economic management from Fujian Normal University (%2 £ B &3 X
E) in the PRC in September 2000.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERE

Lin Shifeng

Mr. Lin Shifeng (#K it §8 5¢ &), aged 47, was appointed as our
executive Director on 25 March 2021, has been serving as the financial
controller of the Company since July 2016. Mr. Lin has participated in
the management of the group since July 2016 where he has been
primarily responsible for overseeing the financial planning and
accounting management of the Group.

Mr. Lin has approximately 23 years of relevant experience in accounting
and finance management, where he has spent approximately 20 years
in the shipping industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked as a
financial supervisor at Fujian Wanfeng Shoes Co., Ltd* (1@ 72 85 L & %
B BR A 7)), a company principally engaged in sports products
production, from July 2000 to November 2003, where he was mainly
responsible for cost accounting and difference analysis, data statistics
and financial statement preparation.

From November 2003 to January 2006, Mr. Lin worked as an
accountant at P&O NEDLLOYD (CHINA) Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (ig1T/&8 %
(FE AT AR A A4EMN 5 A7), a company principally engaged
in shipping business, where he was mainly responsible for cost
accounting and cost control.

From February 2006 to November 2007, Mr. Lin worked as an assistant
accountant and cost manager at Maersk Logistics (China) Co., Ltd,, a
company principally engaged in container shipping, where he was
mainly responsible for registering and controlling operational cost and
assisting payment center to arrange operational payment.

From November 2007 to January 2015, Mr. Lin served as a financial
officer at CMA CGM (China) Shipping Co., Ltd. Fuzhou Branch (£ R &
(P E)BR R FEIEIMN DA F]), a company principally engaged in
container transportation, where he was mainly responsible for
accounting management and accounting principal setting up.

Mr. Lin served as the finance manager of Jincheng Hengtong from
March 2015 until April 2016 and as the financial controller from July

2016 until November 2017, where he was mainly responsible for
accounting management.

* For identification only
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

From April 2016 to June 2016, Mr. Lin served as a finance manager at
Air Liquide (Fuzhou) Co., Ltd* (R/L =& (&8 MN) B R A 7)), a
company principally engaged in the supplying of industrial gases and
services, where he was mainly responsible for accounting management
and accounting principal setting up.

Mr. Lin graduated from Changchun University of Science and
Technology (K& T K2, formerly known as Changchun Institute
of Optics and Precision Instruments (£ Z& ¢ 2 ¥5 2 22 i £ 6% ) and
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting in July 2000. Mr. Lin
obtained the certificate for passing all the required subjects of the
professional stage of the national uniform CPA Examination of P.R.
China GEIfI g5t 2R —Z A EXREBREHEKE) issued by
the Certified Public Accountant Examination Committee of The
Ministry of Finance, PR. China (IR ZB izl @ stEI ZEHZEZ 8 g
December 2018.

Chen Yanbiao
Mr. Chen Yanbiao (P& iE fZ), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 March 2024.

Mr. Chen has over 18 years of commercial and strategic development
experience through his management positions held in companies
across property development and investment industries. Mr. Chen has
been the director of Ganzhou Jinmao Property Development Co., Ltd.*

BN & X EH E 3 B R A 7)) since March 2006. From August
2012 to November 2018, Mr. Chen was the legal representative and
chairman of Fuzhou Dingsen Property Development Co,, Ltd.* (& /N &
AREHMERZE AR R A]). Mr. Chen has served as the legal
representative, executive drrector and general manager of Furran
Shangping Investment Co,, Ltd.* (f@ &2 F & B R A A

May 2013.

) since

Mr. Chen completed the civil engineering course in Wuhan University
of Technology in July 2005.

* For identification only

B 20169 4 A& 201696 A » ML AT
BibzEm (@) BRAR (—HAEE2%
$Lﬁl%ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁrﬁ“m“ﬂ)E’JEM%,@
B FrEEEQlEENGFTERRT -

MEER200F7HEEREFEIRX
ZABREAZRBEEIMER) L&
xEﬁ B+ 24 o MEAER2018F12

SHPEARENBEG BRI EME
quEm%“@AEﬁE%"EﬁEPi/\E LA

SHRRHA2EA—EREERBEH
A
RIE R

PRICAZ ST 4 » 495%  1A2024F 3 A 26 H
ERTEARNITES -

BRAEEECNZEEHEMRE KIEE QT
EAEEBE HAEBBSFABMER
REGEERACE - FRICAE B 2006 F 3 A B
(T )II@B%)%@F’E%%*EBE AINESE -
R2012F 8 A E2018%F 11 A » BRI A ¥
rﬂEd‘l\I%ﬁ%mEFfﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂETEr\Ji?jE
REAFREER - B2013F5 A#E - L
Erﬁrﬂgtﬁi&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiE@iﬁirﬁ
KA HITESRBKLE

BRACAER2005F7ATHRERT KE
TARTIERE -

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 27



Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Suen Chi Wai (IR EE L4, aged 59, has been our independent
non-executive Director since the Listing Date. Mr. Suen has over 23
years of experience in corporate finance and with area of practice
principally in initial public offerings on the Stock Exchange, mergers
and acquisitions, corporate reorganisations and Listing Rules
compliance matters. Mr. Suen was a partner of Withers from February
2018 until his retirement in March 2023. Mr. Suen is currently a
consultant of Withers. Mr. Suen worked at DLA Piper in Hong Kong
from June 2007 to February 2018 with his last position as a partner. Mr.
Suen served as a manager in the investment products department of
the SFC from October 2005 to July 2006, responsible for reviewing
applications of collective investment schemes and monitoring
continuing compliance of authorised schemes. Mr. Suen worked as an
assistant solicitor at Woo Kwan Lee & Lo in Hong Kong from September
2000 to March 2005.

Mr. Suen has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of (i) BoardWare Intelligence Technology Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1204) since June
2022; (ii) Venus Medtech (Hangzhou) Inc,, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2500) since July 2019;
and (iii) Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1073) since July 2019.

Mr. Suen graduated from the University of East Anglia in July 1987 with
a Bachelor of Science Degree and the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
program in the University of Hong Kong in June 1998. Mr. Suen was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2000 and in England
and Wales in December 2003. Mr. Suen is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since May 1998 and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since April 1993.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEERE

Xu Jie
Mr. Xu Jie (& $£ 5& &), aged 69, has been our independent non-
executive Director since the Listing Date.

Mr. Xu has accumulated over 36 years of experience in the legal field.
From June 1986 to July 1993, Mr. Xu was the deputy president of the
Maritime Commercial Tribunal of the Shanghai Maritime Court (b8
Y2 ABRT) of the PRC. From September 1993 to October 1994, Mr. Xu
FEEESZR),
currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (_E /& /& & K £
From October 1994 to December 2000, Mr. Xu worked as a partner in
Shanghai Duan & Duan Law Firm (= /8 B& 1 E& £ B =5 75 FT). From
January 2001 to May 2014, Mr. Xu served as the partner of Shanghai
Haoying Law Firm* (& T Jf 2 2 B = 7% 7). From May 2014 to
November 2016, Mr. Xu served as the senior partner of CoEffort Law
Firm LLP (=78 ™1 15 /1 7 B % 5 PT). Since October 2023, Mr. Xu
served as the senior advisor of Shanghai Horizon Law Office (F&/m

RSN ETEFT).

was a teacher at the Shanghai Maritime College (

Mr. Xu graduated from the Shanghai Maritime College (_t /& /& 18 &
Bt ), currently known as Shanghai Maritime University (_= /88 5 K&
in January 1982 with a Bachelor's degree, majoring in ocean shipping

business, and obtained a Master's degree majoring in international
economic law in January 1991. Mr. Xu has also been an arbitrator at the
China Maritime Arbitration Commission (R B/ EHEZ B E) since
May 2017.

* For identification only
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
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Wei Shusong

Mr. Wei Shusong (%% & #Q %t 4£), aged 79, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 20 December 2021. Mr. Wei is
a senior and registered accountant, who has approximately 21 years of
experience working in government departments, and approximately
11 years of experience serving as an independent director in listed
companies. From September 1985 to September 1999, Mr. Wei
successively held important positions in the Harbin Municipal Finance
Bureau (P& B & ™ BT BA B /B ), Harbin Municipal Audit Bureau (&
B & ™ AT & 5T /@), Harbin Municipal Institutional Reform
Commission (BB E T BT # HEZ B ), and Municipal
Securities Regulatory Office (T IR AT 75 % 5 ﬂ”ﬁi@#ﬂ# NE). Mr. Wei
then served as the director and inspector ( ITEE&%@ZEE\) of the
Fuzhou Special Office of the China Securities Regulatory Commission
(FP B 35BS & A8 )RR IR ) from July 1999 to July 2003 and from July
2003 to September 2004, respectively. Mr. Wei had retired since
September 2004. Subsequently, Mr. Wei served as an independent
director in Fujian Starnet Communication Co,, Ltd. ({8 £ 485 18
SR B BR A &) (stock code: 002396.57) from October 2005 to
December 2011, in Yango Group Co., Ltd (B3¢ =B BRR A 7))
(stock code: 000671.5Z) from December 2007 to December 2010, and
in Fujian Nanping Sun Cable Co, LTD. (&2 m F N[5 EER N B R
/X A]) (stock code: 002300.57) from January 2013 to September 2014
respectively.

Mr. Wei graduated from the Renmin University of China (FF BI A R X

B2)in 1968 and graduated from the Graduate University of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (AP BHBT A A BT ) in 1991,
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management
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Senior management

Mr. Chen Chengmei (R B{ #8 5t 4 ), aged 61, is the vice president of
our Company since 28 June 2016. Mr. Chen has participated in the
management of our Group since 1 February 2010 where he has been
primarily responsible for supervising tanker chartering business of our
Group.

Mr. Chen has approximately 13 years of relevant experience in the
shipping industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen served as the
general manager at Fuzhou South Pipeline Gas Technology
Development Co, Ltd* (BN H BB MR EMHAEZEBR A A
from April 2002 to April 2004, a company principally engaged in gas
Technology Development pipeline provision, where he was mainly
responsible for overseeing the overall operations of gas pipeline
provision.

From May 2006 until April 2018, Mr. Chen served as the deputy general
manager at Fujian Chuan Yuan, a company principally engaged in
investment, where he was mainly responsible for supervising overall
operations.

Mr. Chen served as the deputy chief executive officer of Jincheng
Hengtong from January 2010 until November 2017, where he was
mainly responsible for supervening investment of Jincheng Hengtong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Ming Fai (& 88 & 5% 4 ) was appointed as the company
secretary of our Company on 26 August 2022. Mr. Chung has over 19
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field, mergers and
acquisitions, financial reporting and auditing. Mr. Chung currently
serves as a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited ("SWCS"), a professional services provider specialising in
corporate services. Mr. Chung was nominated by SWCS to act as our
company secretary pursuant to an engagement letter entered into
between our Company and SWCS.

Mr. Chung graduated from the Australian National University and
obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce in 2003. Mr. Chung is
currently a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of CPA Australia.

* For identification only
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Corporate Governance Report
S¥ERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding high standards of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are crucial to improving the efficiency and performance of the Group
and to safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders. The Board
reviews the Company's corporate governance practices from time to
time in order to meet the expectations of stakeholders and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance. Set out below are
the principles of corporate governance as adopted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, enhance
corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of corporate governance. The Board is of the view that the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiries by the Company that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

We endeavour to provide high quality asphalt tanker and bulk carrier
chartering services. As one of the market players in the shipping
industry, the Group is strictly adhered to the laws and regulations of
the jurisdictions governing our operations. Our Group dedicates its
efforts to comply with the regulatory framework on maritime safety
and environmental protection promulgated by the International
Maritime Organization ("IMQ”). From vessel design to vessel operation,
we aim to minimise potential environmental impacts across the entire
business cycle by building or retrofitting our ships for better energy
efficiency and lower carbon emissions.

We realise the sustainability of our business depends on its impact on
the environment and risk management on maritime safety. The Group
regularly engages experienced and professional ship management
companies to inspect and carry out maintenance on our fleet. Our
maritime department closely monitors the routes of our vessels for
maritime safety and avoid regions with political unrest and local
conflicts.

We recognise our employees as our most valuable asset. The Group
focuses on recruiting and retaining competent employees by offering
competitive remuneration packages, diverse training as well as
comprehensive occupational health and safety measures, to create a
safe and joyful workplace for all employees and equip themselves with
integrity, business ethics and skills for their duties.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The Board is responsible for setting
the strategic direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management. Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and
necessary for the daily operations of the Company are delegated to the
management under the supervision of the respective directors.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company has five executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
annual report, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lin Shifeng

Mr. Chen Yanbiao (appointed on 26 March 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

Mr. Wei Shusong

In compliance with Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules which took effect on
31 December 2023, Mr. Chen Yanbiao was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 March 2024 and obtained the legal advice referred to in
Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules as regards the requirements under the
Listing Rules that are applicable to him as a Director and the possible
consequences of making a false declaration or giving false information
to the Stock Exchange on 26 March 2024. Mr. Chen Yanbiao has
confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section

headed “Biography of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors do not have any other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with one
another.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code. For the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Chen Ming
has served as the chairman of Board and Mr. Xu Wenjun has served as
the chief executive officer of the Company.

The chairman provides leadership and governance for the Board so as
to create the conditions for the effective performance of the Board as a
whole and effective contribution by individual Director and to ensure
that the Board performs its responsibilities and all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The chief
executive officer has the delegated power to manage the Company
and to oversee the activities of the Company on a day-to-day basis.

The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer is defined and established in writing.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records
During the Year Under Review, the Company convened one annual
general meeting ("AGM") and four Board meetings.

The attendance of the above meetings by each Director is as follows:

ESEeRRESHERE
REBEFE NRAEAR - XBERBF
Rg((RRBEXG) MOREZEES

=
£33
EEFHF LREZNBERHINNT

Number of meetings attended/
held during the Director’s term of office

ESREAREHE BTERRY

Annual

Board general

meeting meeting

Name of Directors EEMA EEggR BRREFEAE

Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman) BREGEE (FE) 4/4 11

Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman) BRR&LE(FIEE) 4/4 11

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer) WXL (TTBAER) 4/4 11

Mr. Ding Yuzhao (resigned on TESI%EAE 4/4 11
26 March 2024) (72024 4F 3 A 26 B ¥ 1F)

Mr. Lin Shifeng PRI 885 4 4/4 11

Mr. Wei Shusong BEWMEE 3/4 11

Mr. Suen Chi Wai BEELEE 4/4 11

Mr. Xu Jie HRERAE 4/4 1/1

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors during the Year Under Review.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Year Under Review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
outin Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the independence requirement set out in the Listing Rules.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the Directors is engaged on a service contract (in the case of
the executive Directors) or a letter of appointment (in the case of
independent non-executive Directors) for a specific term of three years.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”)
provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall be subject to election by Shareholders at
the next following general meeting of the Company.

Every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall also
be subject to retirement and re-election by rotation at least once every
three years at the AGMs of the Company under the Articles of
Association.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and
risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgment on
corporate actions and operations.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

Board Independence

The Company has established a mechanism for the Board to obtain
independent views and opinions to ensure the Board has an
independent element as a key measure to improve the efficiency of
the Board and the implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism
will be reviewed annually by the Board. The mechanism covers the
channels for the Directors to seek advice from external professional
advisors; and the right for Directors to obtain further information and
documents from the management in connection with the matters to
be discussed at the Board meetings.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
they remain informed and relevant for their contribution to the Board.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading material on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company's expenses.

During the Year Under Review, all Directors had complied with the

code provision C.1.4 of the CG code through attending training courses
or reading materials relevant to the duties of Directors.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors
in continuous professional development during the Year Under Review
and up to the date of this annual report:

TERBAREENEEFEREEARSF
HEM2EFEFXEROBR

Attending
training/briefing
on regulatory

development, Reading Legal
directors’ duties or and Regulatory
other relevant  Updates and other
topics Reference Materials
SMEREERE BB S
ESEERHMER =B KR Al R
Name of Director ESE8 BEMEIERE Hth2EEH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chen Ming PR &% % &= v/ v
Mr. Chen Jiagan PREB L v 4
Mr. Xu Wenjun mXHEE 4 4
Mr. Ding Yuzhao T E8)%AE v/ 4
(resigned on 26 March 2024) (R 20244 3 A 26 H & T)
Mr. Lin Shifeng L= S v 4
Mr. Chen Yanbiao PRICIZ e 4
(appointed on 26 March 2024) (FR2024F 3 H 26 HEZ(T)
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wei Shusong MEWNSLE v v
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BRERLEE v/ v
Mr. Xu Jie mELE v v
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZET

During the Year Under Review, the Board has established four
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategic
Development Committee (established on 26 March 2024) for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Strategic
Development Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon
request. On 26 March 2024, the Board has established the Strategic
Development Committee. Please refer to the section headed “Strategic
Development Committee” below.
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The majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wei Shusong,
Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie. Mr. Suen Chi Wai, being the chairman
of the Audit Committee, is appropriately qualified as required under
Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process,
risk management and internal controls system of the Group, assist the
Board to fulfill its responsibility over the audit, and review and approve
connected transactions and to advise the Board.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the functions
set out in code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. These include
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board,;
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the Company;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code from time
to time adopted by the Company and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report to be contained in the Company’s annual report.

During the Year Under Review, two Audit Committee meetings were
held. It had reviewed and discussed the interim and annual financial
statements, the interim results announcement and report, annual
results announcement and report, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and the effectiveness of the internal
control of the Group and recommended the re-appointment of auditor
to the Board.
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The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

ENEZEEREBENHFELENT

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HERE

Name of Members of the Audit Committee ERZEBRENRS BRI
Mr. Suen Chi Wai (Chairman) BREBEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Wei Shusong MEMESE 2/2
Mr. Xu Jie wmEELEAE 2/2

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2023
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Xu Jie and Mr. Suen Chi Wai, the independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Xu Wenjun, the chief executive officer
and executive Director. Mr. Xu Jie is the chairman of the committee.
The majority of the Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to our Directors
and senior management.
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During the Year Under Review, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. It had reviewed the Company’s remuneration
policy and restructure and the remuneration package for Directors and
senior management, and assessed performance of executive Directors
and approved/proposed the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts. The Remuneration Committee also made recommendations

REOBEFE BRT-AFHEEES
o HOBEMARRAREFLSAE
EEMFMBRERE - URFHB =
W ERITEFNORR - &/ 2EH
TEENRBEONFH -FTHEEEN
ARERRATEELRSRERBENHFMS

to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive TR EZEEZETIREEZ FHEEZKE
Directors and senior management. The attendance records of the HJHEre&ka T ¢
members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting(s)
Name of Members of the Remuneration HERE,
Committee FHESERER S SRXE
Mr. Xu Jie (Chairman) wmELEE(FE) 1
Mr. Xu Wenjun wXHkE 1/
Mr. Suen Chi Wai RERLEE 1/1

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows:

Remuneration bands

s E

BRIEEEERTRISTRMESTEEIS K
HEBFNAJNBIFE RFHE
LHEENSREBAB (EEHRIN OEH
FHEFIB LT -

Number of
employee(s) (Note)
e AB (&)

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 % 7T

Note: Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Chen Ming, the chairman and
executive Director, Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie, the independent
non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Ming is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The majority of the Nomination Committee
members are independent non-executive Directors.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of
the Nomination Committee are (i) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
of perspectives) of the Board at least annually; and (ii) to make
recommendations to our Board regarding the appointment of
Directors and Board succession.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity
Policy"). A summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose:

Board Diversity
Policy
statement:

Measurable
Objectives:

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Company’s
Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity
at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives
and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee has
primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board and all
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. All appointments are based on the
principle of merit-based appointment and
comprehensive consideration of objective
conditions, so as to select leading talents with both
ability and virtue.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Company understands and believes that diversity on the Board of
Directors contributes greatly to enhancing the quality of the
Company'’s performance. The Company is committed to selecting the
best candidates for board membership. Selection of candidates will be
based the above measurable objective. The Board considers that
independent directors can enhance the effectiveness and decision-
making ability of the Board by providing independent views, objective
judgments and constructive challenges to the Board and the
management of the Group.

Also, having reviewed the Board composition, the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board level and shall
continue to take initiatives to identify female candidate(s) to enhance
the gender diversity among the Board members. We will appoint at
least one female representation in our Board before 31 December 2024
for the compliance with the gender diversity requirement under Rule
13.92 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2023, among 41 employees of the Group, 24
(58.5%) were male and 17 (41.5%) were female, which was an
appropriate gender ratio given the nature of the business of the Group
in shipping industry.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
(‘Nomination Policy”) which sets out a set of nomination procedures
and selection criteria for directors. The Nomination Committee shall
evaluate and select candidates based on the criteria by reference to
character and integrity, business experience relevant and beneficial to
the Company, qualifications including professional qualifications, skills
and knowledge that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and other significant commitments,
present needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or experience
and whether the candidates would satisfy those needs, requirement
for the Board to have independent directors in accordance with the
Listing Rules and whether the candidates for independent directors
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and the Board
Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted by the
Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board.
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During the Year Under Review, one meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held. It had reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, made recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
Nomination Policy. The attendance records of the members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

ROBEFE BRT-ANRBEREES
FoADEMNEFENRE RAENRE
B RPEBIFRITESENE ML
ENZIEFAESSFLEBER R
B RABRRLEMEANEZTSHFELIER
BER -RRZEBENEBNHFRRENT

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

Name of Members of the Nomination HEXE,
Committee REZESRENKS 2EXE
Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman) PR &6 54 (/&) 1/1
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BREELE 11
Mr. Xu Jie BRELE 1/1

Strategic Development Committee BHRXREEES

The Company established the Strategic Development Committee on
26 March 2024 with written terms of reference. The Strategic
Development Committee consists of three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chen Yanbiao, Mr. Chen Jiagan and Mr. Xu Wenjun. Mr. Chen
Yanbiao is the chairman of the committee.

The primary duties of the Strategic Development Committee are to (i)
ensure the sustainable development of the Company; (i) ensure the
Company’s policies and common practices in compliance with laws
and regulatory requirements; (iii) review the Company’s development
strategy and mid to long-term development plan, and evaluate and
monitor their implementation; and (iv) review the Company'’s
investment strategies and decision making.

As the Strategic Development Committee has been established since
26 March 2024, the Strategic Development Committee has not held
any meetings during the Year Under Review.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an
ongoing basis and such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
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misstatement or loss. The Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are designed to (i) identify, assess and monitor key
business risks across all business units; (ii) establish risk and control
procedures to ensure that the risk management and internal control
measures are operating as intended; and (iii) review and report the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and internal control
systems. We evaluate and monitor key risks within our business as

follows:

46

Credit Risk. We select customers with good credit records and
preferably larger companies with long established records. For
further details, please refer to the section headed “Business —
Sales and Marketing” in the Prospectus.

Environmental Risk. We maintain a newer fleet of vessels with an
average age of less than eight years, with regular inspections of
equipment carried out and we rely on experienced and
professional ship management companies to minimise the
probability of environmental pollution. For further details, please
refer to the section headed “Business — Suppliers — Ship
Management Companies” in the Prospectus.

Market Risk. We are exposed to various types of market risks,
including changes in foreign exchange rate, interest rate and
fluctuations of any component of our operating costs during the
normal course of business.

For further details regarding our exposure to market risks, please
refer to the sections headed “Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our
Business” and “Financial Information — Principal Factors Affecting
Our Results of Operations” in the Prospectus.

Political Risk. As maritime safety will be affected by political
unrest, our marine department will closely monitor the maritime
safety of the route of our vessels to minimize the impact of local
conflicts or other political unrest.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

MEEO#A - FTEMEEEFT B 0
PIRY = 2315 E B ¢ (i) & S R fe A0 B 17
ﬁfMﬁ%ﬂﬁEﬁﬂW%?ﬂ DR
TEHAE pE ¢ M (i) i 5 M B R B B B R AN

AR=E2s %‘J/\,yuﬁﬁﬁxﬂiﬁ(l]}f“’lﬁ A
RBEMEB RO EZRREL TG
MESFET -

ERRER HMEEABERFESR
THENEP BREEAARYE
ERERM AT AT - BRI — 5

B FLEBARERIZER —HE
EiH]—En e

RERERR - HPESR TIME
Q\E/\\\/\Eﬂ'\]ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’n%lmﬁﬂLﬁ
é”f%$A%‘A° MEMKELERE S
EEMMEERARIREARERDE
ﬁXf&iREnE'JT%’E BERE—Z

HE F2HERERIER —#
JER — MBI AR —& e

mizREkE - ZHPINEREESBIER
HiRZREmiZER BiEEX - F
SR B [ K P A AT 4B K B D |9
B E o

BTN R A T 5 R R R A

PG B2HARERERRE
= - HBEMEBE@ENERK J&Fﬁﬁ
BER — RERMEEEENEE
PRSI E=S:(0

BUEER - ANEBEL 2R XK
RBENTE  RFINESEEERTK
NEEMMMBRNEEL D
BRI ERIEMBUEE)
%PﬁLﬁXE’J?ﬁ °

A 3
rsmué\
=



Corporate Governance Report
S¥ERRE

During the Year Under Review, the Group has engaged an
independent internal control consultant to conduct an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance as well as risk management. No significant area of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management of the Group has been identified. The Board considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control are effective.
The Group does not have an internal audit function and will engage an
external party to review risk management and internal control systems
annually. The Audit Committee and the Board have considered risk
management and internal control report prepared by an independent
internal control consultant and were satisfied with the existing internal
controls. The Audit Committee and the Board will continue to review
the need for an internal audit function on an annual basis.

In addition, the procedures on disclosure of inside information were in
place to ensure that all relevant facts and circumstances that may have
material effect on the share price of the Company are promptly
assessed and that any material information which comes to the
knowledge of any one or more officers of the Group is promptly
identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for the attention of
the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Directors have taken into account the cash requirements of the
Group for the next twelve months from the end of the reporting
period, and have concluded that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due and
accordingly the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this annual
report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend distribution ratio shall be determined by the Board from
time to time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be
determined by the Board, which is also in the best interests of the
Group and the Shareholders. In addition, the final dividend for any
financial year is subject to Shareholders’ approval. The remaining net
profit will be used for the operation and development of the Group.
When determining whether to propose dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board should consider, among other things,
the following factors:

(A)  current and future business, actual and expected financial results
of the Company;

(B) any development plan of the Company;

(Q) liquidity position, working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and future expected capital requirements of the
Group;

(D) the debt-to-equity ratio, return-on-equity ratio and the level of
the relevant financial contracts of the Group;

(E)  any restrictions on the payment of dividends may be imposed by
the lenders of the Group or other third parties;

(F) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group and
each member of the Group;

(G) general economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group’s
business as well as other internal and external factors that may
affect the Company or financial results and position; and

(H) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate and
relevant.
The declaration and payment of dividends are subject to any

restrictions under the Companies Act, any applicable laws, rules and
regulations, including the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors
of the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

ZEEE &

HE2023F 1283 BIEFEE > KAAAH
BRI RIEEZREE N XA
FARRNRINEZEAOBM S oA T -

Fees Paid/ Payable

Service Category Bk 7 % 51 2 ERER
HK$'000

FHET

Audit Services EZPRTE 1,060
Non-audit Services (mainly related to EERBRE(EESLR 315

interim review service) A I ER B AR %)
TOTAL HaEt 1,375
COMPANY SECRETARY ATE

The Company has engaged SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, an external service provider, and Mr. Chung Ming Fai
has been appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Its primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin Shifeng, the executive
Director and the financial controller of the Company.

The company secretary attended sufficient professional training as
required under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023
to update their skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, the Company will
propose separate resolution for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Director. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, in
aggregate not less than one tenth of the voting rights (on a one vote
per share basis) in the share capital of the Company may also make a
requisition to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting (‘EGM") and
add resolutions to the agenda of a meeting. Such requisition (and
resolutions to a meeting agenda, as applicable) shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company for the
purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies
Act for Shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards proposing a
person for election as a Director of the Company, please refer to the
"Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board as
mentioned above via the following channels:

Address . Room 02-05, 40th Floor, International Financial Centre,
No. 23 Changting Street, Taijiang, Fuzhou, China
Email . angelazhu@xysgroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group'’s business performance and strategies.
The Company adopts a shareholders’ communication policy and
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through AGMs and other general meetings. At the AGM,
directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.xysgroup.com as a
communication platform with Shareholders and investors, where the
financial information and other relevant information of the Company
are available for public access.

The Board has conducted annual review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy of our
Company, and concluded that the policy was implemented effectively
during the Year Under Review.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the Year Under Review, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRSE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in provision of asphalt tanker chartering services
and bulk carrier chartering services. The principal activities of the
Company'’s principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31
December 2023 by operating segments is set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out in the "Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are set forth in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 172 to 175 of this
annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No Share was issued for the year ended 31 December 2023. Details of
the Shares of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2023.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the Shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 18 June 2024, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 13 June 2024
to Tuesday, 18 June 2024, both days inclusive, during the period no
transfer of shares will be registered. All transfers accompanied by the
relevant certificates must be lodged with the Company’s transfer office
and share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 12 June 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2023,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act, amounted to
US$74.9 million (2022: US$74.9 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out on page 7
of this annual report.

INDUCEMENT TO JOIN THE GROUP
There was no amount paid as an inducement for joining the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
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COMPENSATION FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

There was no compensation paid for the loss of office as a director of
the Group in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Jiagan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Xu Wenjun (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ding Yuzhao (resigned on 26 March 2024)
Mr. Lin Shifeng

Mr. Chen Yanbiao (appointed on 26 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Wei Shusong

Mr. Suen Chi Wai

Mr. Xu Jie

All independent non-executive Directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As at the date of this annual report, the Company still considers
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Retirement and re-election of Directors

In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
AGM, one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation. However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third shall
be the number of retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year
shall be those who have been in office longest since their last re-
election or appointment but, as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
Accordingly, Mr. Chen Jiagan, Mr. Xu Wenjun and Mr. Lin Shifeng shall
retire by rotation. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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According to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any person may
be appointed by the Board as a Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time to time
by the Shareholders in general meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the first AGM of the Company after his
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Any Director
appointed under this Article shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at an AGM. Accordingly, Mr. Chen Yanbiao being appointed
as an executive Director on 26 March 2024 shall retire from office and,
being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years since the Listing Date and will
be renewed or extended automatically by one year upon the expiry of
the initial term and each successive term until termination in
accordance with the service contact. The Company also entered into
the appointment letters with all the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Suen Chi Wai and Mr. Xu Jie on 26 September
2021, and Mr. Wei Shusong on 20 December 2021. These appointment
letters have a term of three years. Their emoluments were determined
by the Board by reference to their experience, responsibilities and
duties with the Company and shall be reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Committee. The details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors are revealed in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 23 to 31 of this annual report.

EENGREEENEERE

EENSREEEBMNBEFBSHNAF
WEI3E3IH

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS EEERERY
The change in the information of the Directors, which is required to be  1R#& _E M RIZE 1351BIVEZHE BT
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, is set out HWTEEEE R Z2EBHIWOT -
below:
Name of Director Detail of change EEns BEFE
Mr. Xu Jie Mr. Xu Jie, an independent non-executive wELEE BUFNTESHRRELEE

Director, served as the senior advisor of
Shanghai Horizon Law Office (/81 72 & 12
BM = 7% FIT) since October 2023.

Mr. Ding Yuzhao has resigned as an executive Director on 26 March
2024 and Mr. Chen Yanbiao has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 26 March 2024. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change to any information
required to be disclosed in relation to any Director pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules during
the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group's emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market standard and practices. The Company has adopted a share
option scheme as an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” below.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF OUR COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) ("SFO")
which will be required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (c) as otherwise to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
(3 to the Listing Rules, are set out as follows:

EERESTRAEBRAQAR
HEBEENRG - SERO X
EREETHNESRRKR

R2023FE 128318 BEEHARF RS
TBRABRARRSETMAE LR (E
EREBEPENEBH LB EEH
(I REEHRE ) XVED) B D « 48
RN REEERES QREZS K
EIEMEBEXVIEE 7 KD AME AN A
NI ZFTHERIOAE (BIEREZES R
HEKPBBEXFESEWEEXIR AE
BHERIORE) K ) BELRIRERE
HREERPIEIDERRREFENE
RMAERIIAR K (QRE ETEA
MierC3 EMBITAERETERRIN
SRR ([ZBESFR ) BAEARARF R
B FTHRERS SA B 0T ¢

(a) Our Company (@) A=A F]
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding in
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held™  our Company®
RAEATMN
EEHA EEME FERGEEY MAORELHS
Mr. Xu Wenjun®@ Interest of controlled corporation 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%
XL ED ZEEEEREE 34,079,000 AZ A% 15 (L) 7.75%
Mr. Ding Yuzhao® Interest of controlled corporation 14,898,000 Shares (L) 3.39%
TES KL ZEEEERER 14,898,000 P A% 15 (L) 3.39%
Mr. Lin Shifeng® Interest of controlled corporation 17,478,000 Shares (L) 3.97%
MA@ S EEREE 17,478,000 PE A% 19 (L) 3.97%
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(1) The letter “” denotes our Directors’ long position in the Shares.

(2) Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Xu Wenjun, an executive
Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in
the 34,079,000 Shares held by Perfect Bliss Limited.

(3) Gigantic Path Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Ding Yuzhao, an
executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ding Yuzhao is deemed to be
interested in the 14,898,000 Shares held by Gigantic Path Limited. On 23
January 2024, Mr. Ding Yuzhao sold all 14,898,000 Shares to two
independent third parties. As of 23 January 2024, Mr. Ding Yuzhao did not
hold any shares in the Company.

4) Profit Source HK Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Lin Shifeng,
an executive Director. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lin Shifeng is deemed to be
interested in the 17,478,000 Shares held by Profit Source HK Trading
Limited.

(5) The approximate percentage of shareholding interest in our Company is
calculated based on the total number of 440,000,000 Shares in issue as at
31 December 2023.

(6) Mr. Chen Yanbiao was appointed as an executive Director on 26 March
2024. As of 26 March 2024, Mr. Chen Yanbiao is interested in 32,354,686
Shares as a beneficial owner, representing 7.35% of the total number of
Shares inissue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the
register required to be maintained pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 was the Company or its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement that would enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate, and none of the Directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 were granted any right to subscribe for
the Share or debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right.

) FEILKKREEREOHTEHENTER -

(2)  Perfect Bliss Limited B ¥ 1TE 1 X L 4
BaiiEn - BEZFS RBEED - RXH
90 K IR R B P Perfect Bliss Limited ¥ A #Y
34,079,000 AR AR 19 Hr 5 2 o

(3)  Gigantic Path Limited R¥VTTE S T £ 8L £
BB RIEFESLBEEG - TES
5t A 48 & 1A Gigantic Path Limited 3 A B
14,898,000 A% & 17 7 #E 5 # 25 o 7020245651 A
238 T R&IEAR B EEREE 14898000
R FTRABBLE =7 - BLE2024F1 4
238 - T REIEESBRAARDFEMARD
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EHEE2MED - RBFFLHAGE A
HHEEERRAREREEE S BERRAAF
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, so far as our Directors are aware, the persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who will
have or be deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in
the Shares or the underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
were recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital will be
as follows:

FERRRERGRERRKRD S
BERKRR

R2023F 128318 BEEHM UT
AT (BEERARABRSITERABRIN
1 P 48 AR B S B VE A R 10 X A B iR
MHEEBRBEESRPEERMEXVIBE
2REIDEEUESA TR BRI &K
KR RN ARARIREESFNRE
RAIEBIREFTE 2R  kEHEK
EEEAEARAEBEITIRAS%IIA LK
M

Approximate

percentage of

Capacity/ Numberof  shareholdingin

Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held™ our Company®

RAERATH

BREHE BB By, MY FERGEEY HMAORELHE

UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL Beneficial owner 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%

TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
LIMITED®

RFEBEME (BB ERQARY EmlEEA 116,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 26.36%

PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation

PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED® ZEEERER 116,000,000 B A& 13 (L) 26.36%

Mr. Chen Maochun® Interest of controlled 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%
corporation

B 155 25 45 A O Sk ERE S 116,000,000 B A% 17 (L) 26.36%

Ms. Ni Hualing® Interest of spouse 116,000,000 Shares (L) 26.36%

RER L [ 3 116,000,000 A& A% 17 (L) 26.36%

Golden Boomer Limited® Beneficial owner 62,506,971 Shares (L) 14.21%

Golden Boomer Limited® EnEAA 62,506,971 R% P& 153 (L) 1421%

Ms. Lan Shaoyun® Interest of controlled 62,506,971 Shares (L) 14.21%
corporation

MAELLO REEEER 62,506,971 A& A% 1% (L) 14.21%

Mr. Hong Jianbin® Interest of spouse 62,506,971 Shares (L) 14.21%

HEERE A [RY L3 62,506,971 A% A% 1% (L) 14.21%

58 XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Report of the Directors

EEE®RE

Approximate
percentage of
Capacity/ Numberof  shareholdingin
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held™ our Company®
REQTH
BREHE BB B/ EaniE FERGEBEY HMAORELHE
HJ Technology Co., Limited® Beneficial owner 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%
ESPRAERQR EmEEA 36,000,000 A% A% 17 (L) 8.18%
Mr. Wu Kai® Interest of controlled 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%
corporation
Ryl kE REEEER 36,000,000 A% B 15 (L) 8.18%
Ms. Pang Min® Interest of spouse 36,000,000 Shares (L) 8.18%
RERIZ L@ Al i@ e 36,000,000 A% 3% 1% (1) 8.18%
Perfect Bliss Limited® Beneficial owner 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%
Perfect Bliss Limited® EnEEA 34,079,000 A% P& 15 (L) 7.75%
Ms. Zhu Zhen © Interest of spouse 34,079,000 Shares (L) 7.75%
Kt Al i@ e 34,079,000 A% A% 1% (L) 7.75%
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd® Person having a security interest 30,000,000 Shares (L) 6.82%
in shares
WMERTRNDBRAAO BERDHREEZDHA 30,000,000 3% B& 17 (L) 6.82%
Forever Win Asia Trading Limited” Beneficial owner 24,642,000 Shares (L) 5.60%
Forever Win Asia Trading Limited? EnEAA 24,642,000 BEAE 19 (L) 5.60%
Mr. Chen Chengmei”! Interest of controlled 24,642,000 Shares (L) 5.60%
corporation
FRAX 1G5 &£ 0 Ry AB s 24,642,000 BB A7 (1) 5.60%
Notes: BEE
1. The letter "L" denotes a person’s long position (as defined under Part XV of the 1. FEILEBRARRRIRGAFENFEI(ER
SFO) in our Shares. RELSNBPEEFIEXVER) ©
2. UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED is owned asto 2. IRF BB (%) B R 2 5 H PROSPEROUS

100% by PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED, which is in turn wholly owned by Mr.
Chen Maochun. As such, each of PROSPEROUS BRIGHT LIMITED and Mr. Chen
Maochun is deemed to be interested in the 116,000,000 Shares held by
UNIVERSAL INTERNATIONAL TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) LIMITED pursuant to
the SFO. Ms. Ni Hualing is the spouse of Mr. Chen Maochun.

BRIGHT LIMITED # /8 2 #8425 + i1 PROSPEROUS
BRIGHT LIMITED R FHfR X F L A2 EWA -
I RIEFEFH R EE G B - PROSPEROUS
BRIGHT LIMITED R fR X F L A& B R ANIER
FHEHERRE(EE) BRAAFAEN
116000000 &R D P HE B e - RER L L
BRXELENRS -

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 59



Report of the Directors

EEEHSE

3. Golden Boomer Limited is owned as to 100% by Ms. Lan Shaoyun. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Lan Shaoyun is deemed to be interested in the 62,506,971 Shares held by
Golden Boomer Limited. Mr. Hong Jianbin is the spouse of Ms. Lan Shaoyun.
Golden Boomer Limited provided an interest in the 30,000,000 Shares as security
to Industrial Bank Co,, Ltd, a person other than a qualified lender.

4. HJ Technology Co., Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Wu Kai. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Wu Kai is deemed to be interested in the 36,000,000 Shares held by HJ
Technology Co., Limited. Ms. Pang Min is the spouse of Mr. Wu Kai.

5. Perfect Bliss Limited is owned as to 1009% by Mr. Xu Wenjun. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Xu Wenjun is deemed to be interested in the 34,079,000 Shares held by
Perfect Bliss Limited. Ms. Zhu Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Xu Wenjun.

6. Golden Boomer Limited is owned as to 100% by Ms. Lan Shaoyun. By virtue of the
SFO, Ms. Lan Shaoyun is deemed to be interested in the 30,000,000 Shares held by
Golden Boomer Limited. Mr. Hong Jianbin is the spouse of Ms. Lan Shaoyun.
Golden Boomer Limited provided an interest in the 30,000,000 Shares as security
to Industrial Bank Co,, Ltd, a person other than a qualified lender.

7. Forever Win Asia Trading Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Chen Chengmei. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chen Chengmei is deemed to be interested in the
24,642,000 Shares held by Forever Win Asia Trading Limited.

8. The approximate percentage of shareholding interest in our Company is
calculated based on the total number of 440,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31
December 2023.

9. Mr. Chen Yanbiao was appointed as an executive Director on 26 March 2024. As

of 26 March 2024, Mr. Chen Yanbiao is interested in 32,354,686 Shares as a
beneficial owner, representing 7.35% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein.
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5. Perfect Bliss Limited F 1 X 5 5L A B 2 S0 &
&= MBEHFRBEED R EERR
BT Perfect Bliss Limited 35 & 9 34,079,000 A% A%
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6. Golden Boomer Limited ABI AR E L T # B 2 H
Bm o REFBHRBAERD HESL I
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18 % A 18 /B R Forever Win Asia Trading
Limited ¥ 7 #) 24,642,000 B A% {5 7 7 A5 1 25 -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Our Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme on
6 September 2018 which became effective on the Listing Date (the
“Share Option Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, Eligible
Participants (as defined below), may be granted options which entitle
them to subscribe for Shares, when aggregated with options granted
under any other scheme, representing initially not more than 10% of
the Shares in issue on the Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, no
option had been granted or to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(a) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions the
Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) have had
or may have made to our Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in our Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

() motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of our Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of our Group.
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(b) Who may join
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (f) below to the following persons (“Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of our Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents

to our Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to our Group, the
assessment criteria of which are:

(@aa) contribution to the development and performance of
our Group;

(bb) quality of work performed for our Group;

(co) initiative and commitment in performing his duties;
and

(dd) length of service or contribution to our Group.
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(c)

Acceptance of an offer of options

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptance of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of our Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by our Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date. Such payment shall in no circumstances be refundable. Any
offer for grant of an option to subscribe for Shares may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of Shares for which
it is offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot
for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof and such number is clearly stated in the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the option.
To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by
any prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been
irrevocably declined.

Subject to paragraphs (1), (m), (n), (0) and (p), an option shall be
exercised in whole or in part and, other than where it is exercised
to the full extent outstanding, shall be exercised in integral
multiples of such number of Shares as shall represent one board
lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock Exchange for the time
being, by the grantee by giving notice in writing to our Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number of
Shares in respect of which it is exercised. Each such notice must
be accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of the
exercise price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is
given.

Within 21 days after receipt of the notice and the remittance and,
where appropriate, receipt of the certificate by the auditors to
our Company or the independent financial adviser as the case
may be pursuant to paragraph (r), our Company shall allot and
issue the relevant number of Shares to the grantee credited as
fully paid and issue to the grantee share certificates in respect of
the Shares so allotted.

The exercise of any option shall be subject to our Shareholders in
general meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of our Company.

(c)
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(d) Maximum number of shares

64

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all option to be granted (including Shares in respect
of which options, whether exercised or still outstanding, have
already been granted) under the Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of our Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
on the Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares (the "Scheme
Limit"), excluding for this purpose Shares which would have
been issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme (or any
other share option schemes of our Company). The total number
of Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
40,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 9.1% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report. Subject to the issue of
a circular by our Company and the approval of our Shareholders
in general meeting and/or such other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue (the
“New Scheme Limit’) as at the date of the approval by our
Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the Scheme Limit or New Scheme
Limit to Eligible Participants specifically identified by the
Board. The circular issued by our Company to our
Shareholders shall contain a generic description of the
specified Eligible Participants who may be granted such
options, the number and terms of the options to be
granted, the purpose of granting options to the specified
Eligible Participants with an explanation as to how the
options serve such purpose, and the information required
under Rule 17.03C(3) of the Listing Rules.
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(e)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of our Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the Shares in issue from time to time (the “Maximum
Limit"). No options shall be granted under any schemes of our
Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will result
in the Maximum Limit being exceeded. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted shall be
adjusted, in such manner as the auditors of our Company or an
approved independent financial adviser shall certify to be
appropriate, fair and reasonable in the event of any alteration in
the capital structure of our Company in accordance with
paragraph () below whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights
issue, consolidation, sub-division of shares or reduction of the
share capital of our Company but in no event shall exceed the
limit prescribed in this paragraph.

Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company (including both exercised, outstanding options and
Shares which were the subject of options which have been
granted and accepted under the Share Option Scheme or any
other scheme of our Company but subsequently cancelled (the
“Cancelled Shares”)) to each Eligible Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of
options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

() the issue of a circular by our Company containing the
identity of the Eligible Participant, the numbers of and
terms of the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such participant) and the information as
required under Rule 17.03D(2) of the Listing Rules; and

(e)
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(if)

the approval of our Shareholders in general meeting and/or
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time with such Eligible Participant and his close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her
associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting. The numbers and terms (including
the exercise price) of options to be granted to such
participant must be fixed before our Shareholders’ approval
and the date of the Board meeting at which the Board
proposes to grant the options to such Eligible Participant
shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price of the Shares. The Board
shall forward to such Eligible Participant an offer document
in such form as the Board may from time to time determine
or, alternatively, documents accompanying the offer
document which state, among other things:

(@aa) the Eligible Participant’s name, address and
occupation;

(bb) the date on which an option is offered to an Eligible
Participant which must be a date on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(cc) the date upon which an offer for an option must be
accepted;

(dd) the date upon which an option is deemed to be
granted and accepted in accordance with paragraph

(©);

(ee) the number of Shares in respect of which the option
is offered:;

(ff)  the subscription price and the manner of payment of
such price for the Shares on and in consequence of
the exercise of the option;

(gg) the date of the notice given by the grantee in respect
of the exercise of the option; and

(hh) the method of acceptance of the option which shall,

unless the Board otherwise determines, be as set out
in paragraph (c).
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(f)

(9)

Price of shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save
that such price will not be less than the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open
for the business of dealing in securities;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Granting options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company or
any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
is required to be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors (excluding any independent non-executive Director
who is the grantee of the options). If the Board proposes to grant
options to a substantial shareholder or any independent non-
executive Director or their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) which will result in the number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and

(f)
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(if)

having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such
other sum as may be from time to time provided under the
Listing Rules, based on the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
at the date of each grant, such further grant of options will
be subject to the approval of our independent non-
executive Directors as referred to in this paragraph, the
issue of a circular by our Company and the approval of our
Shareholders in general meeting on a poll at which the
grantee, his associates and all core connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of our Company shall abstain
from voting in favour, and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options shall be taken as a poll.

The circular to be issued by our Company to our Shareholders
pursuant to the above paragraph shall contain the following
information:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

the details of the number and terms (including the exercise
price) of the options to be granted to each selected Eligible
Participant, which must be fixed before our Shareholders’
meeting and the date of the Board meeting for proposing
such further grant shall be taken as the date of grant for the
purpose of calculating the exercise price of such options;

the view of our independent non-executive Director
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is
the grantee of the options) on whether the terms of the
grant are fair and reasonable and whether such grant of
options is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole and their recommendation to the
independent Shareholders as to voting;

the information required under Rule 17.02(2)(c) of the
Listing Rules; and

the information required under Rule 2.17 of the Listing
Rules.
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(h) Restrictions on the times of grant of options

(i)

A grant of options may not be made after inside information has
come to our Company’s knowledge until such information has
been announced pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Inside Information Provisions of Part XIVA of the
SFO. In particular, no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding the earlier of:

() the date of the Board meeting (such date to first be notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules)
for the approval of our Company’s results for any year, half-
year, quarterly or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules); and

(i) the deadline for our Company to publish an announcement
of the results for any year, or half-year, or quarterly or any
other interim period (whether or not required under the
Listing Rules); and ending on the date of actual publication
of the results announcement.

Rights are personal to grantee

An option is personal to the grantee. No grantee shall in any way
sell, transfer, assign, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise
dispose of or create any interest whatsoever in favour of any third
party over or in relation to any option or attempt so to do (save
that the grantee may nominate a nominee in whose name the
Shares issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme may be
registered). Any breach of the foregoing by a grantee shall entitle
our Company to cancel any outstanding options or any part
thereof granted to such grantee.
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)

(k)

U]

70

Time of exercise of option and duration of the share
option scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years after the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders
of our Company (the “Adoption Date”). Subject to earlier
termination by our Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the Adoption Date. The remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme is around four years.

Performance target and vesting period

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets
and vesting period of the options as the Board may then specify
in the grant before any options granted under the Share Option
Scheme can be exercised.

Rights on ceasing employment/death
If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant:

(i) by any reason other than death, ill-health, injury, disability
or termination of his/her relationship with our Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries on one or more of the grounds
specified in paragraph (m) below, the grantee may exercise
the option up to the entitlement of the grantee as at the
date of cessation (to the extent not already exercised) in
whole or in part within a period of one month (or such
longer period as the Board may determine) from such
cessation which date shall be the last actual working day
with our Company or the relevant subsidiary whether salary
is paid in lieu of notice or not, failing which it will lapse (or
such longer period as our Company may determine); or
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(i) by reason of death, ill-health, injury or disability (all
evidenced to the satisfaction of the Board) and none of the
events which would be a ground for termination of his
relationship with our Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
under paragraph (m) has occurred, the grantee or, as
appropriate, his personal representative(s) may exercise the
option in full (to the extent not already exercised) within a
period of 12 months (or such longer period as the Board
may determine) from the date of cessation of being an
Eligible Participant or death.

(m) Rights on dismissal

(n)

If the grantee of an option ceases to be an Eligible Participant on
the grounds that he has been guilty of serious misconduct, or has
committed any act of bankruptcy or has become insolvent or has
made any arrangements or composition with his/her creditors
generally, or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving
his/her integrity or honesty, his/her option will lapse and not be
exercisable after the date of termination of his/her employment.

Rights on takeover

If a general offer is made to all our Shareholders (or all such
Shareholders other than the offeror and/or any person controlled
by the offeror and/or any person acting in concert with the
offeror (as defined in the Takeovers Code)) and such offer
becomes or is declared unconditional during the option period
of the relevant option, the grantee of an option shall be entitled
to exercise the option in full (to the extent not already exercised)
at any time within 14 days after the date on which the offer
becomes or is declared unconditional.

(i) WMASH BERE ZEX
BR(BEEREEZSEN
BER) RS ESIEEL
1 {] 55 14 48 A (m) BUAR LR B
DA R HE AN B R F A
BIFREENIER - BIAERA (10
BEA) REBEREAATRE
REERSEAZEZEAXGN
®12ERA (REFSAEETE
F BRI A 2w 1T E B A
B ARKRTTEE BR)

(m) B EENER

(n)

B EERARNBRETRATE X
WESDEEGE B EEREA
ERIVEMEBEELHREE
e - I EE E RS BB S
ERMEFTMABREERZHE
FORAEBRESNZLEZERS
&R A AITE

W B B Y R R

fiei [ 2 B8 A 3R (SRR MO A B, SRAE
{A] 52 U B A B B0 A £ R SR A ]
HRBA—BITHNAL(EER
WRESTRD A2 ERR) Zh =
mWEEZE Ma2mBEBEEZERNE
FARRENBERENRAKSXE
R E G ABBENEARASR
BRWBRZZENX R NE M A E RS
HER14B A - BER 2 EITHEER
AR RITEE BR) -

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 71



Report of the Directors

EEEHSE

(o)

(p)

72

Rights on winding-up

In the event that a notice is given by our Company to its
members to convene a general meeting for the purposes of
considering, and if thought fit, approving a resolution to
voluntarily wind-up our Company, our Company shall forthwith
give notice thereof to all grantees and thereupon, each grantee
(or his legal personal representative(s)) shall be entitled to
exercise all or any of his options (to the extent not already
exercised) at any time not later than two business days prior to
the proposed general meeting of our Company referred to above
by giving notice in writing to our Company, accompanied by a
remittance for the full amount of the aggregate subscription
price for the Shares in respect of which the notice is given,
whereupon our Company shall as soon as possible and, in any
event, no later than the business day immediately prior to the
date of the proposed general meeting, allot the relevant Shares
to the grantee credited as fully paid.

Rights on compromise or arrangement between our
Company and its members or creditors

If a compromise or arrangement between our Company and its
members or creditors is proposed for the purposes of a scheme
for the reconstruction of our Company or its amalgamation with
any other companies pursuant to the laws of the jurisdiction in
which our Company was incorporated, our Company shall give
notice to all the grantees of the options on the same day as it
gives notice of the meeting to its members or creditors
summoning the meeting to consider such a compromise or
arrangement and any grantee may by notice in writing to our
Company accompanied by a remittance for the full amount of
the aggregate subscription price for our Shares in respect of
which the notice is given (such notice to be received by our
Company no later than two business days prior to the proposed
meeting), exercise the option to its full extent or to the extent
specified in the notice and our Company shall as soon as possible
and in any event no later than the business day immediately prior
to the date of the proposed meeting, allot and issue such
number of Shares to the grantee which falls to be issued on such
exercise of the option credited as fully paid and register the
grantee as holder thereof.
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With effect from the date of such meeting, the rights of all
grantees to exercise their respective options shall forthwith be
suspended. Upon such compromise or arrangement becoming
effective, all options shall, to the extent that they have not been
exercised, lapse and determine. If for any reason such
compromise or arrangement does not become effective and is
terminated, the rights of grantees to exercise their respective
options shall with effect from such termination be restored in full
but only upon the extent not already exercised and shall become
exercisable.

Ranking of shares

Our Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an option will not
carry voting rights until completion of the registration of the
grantee (or any other person) as the holder thereof. Subject to
the aforesaid, Shares allotted and issued on the exercise of
options will rank pari passu and shall have the same voting,
dividend, transfer and other rights (including those arising on
liquidation) as at attached to the other fully-paid Shares in issue
on the date of exercise, save that they will not rank for any
dividend or other distribution declared or recommended or
resolved to be paid or made by reference to a record date falling
on or before the date of exercise.

Effect of alterations to capital

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of our
Company whilst any option may become or remains exercisable,
whether by way of capitalisation issue, rights issue, consolidation,
subdivision or reduction of share capital of our Company, such
corresponding alterations (if any) shall be made in the number of
Shares subject to any outstanding options and/or the
subscription price per Share of each outstanding option as the
auditors of our Company or an independent financial adviser
shall certify in writing to the Board to be in their/his opinion fair
and reasonable in compliance with Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing
Rules and the note thereto and the supplementary guidance
attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes.
The capacity of the auditors of our Company or the approved
independent financial adviser, as the case may be, in this
paragraph is that of experts and not arbitrators and their
certificate shall, in the absence of manifest error, be final and
conclusive and binding on our Company and the grantees.
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Any such alterations will be made on the basis that a grantee
shall have the same proportion of the equity capital of our
Company (as interpreted in accordance with the supplementary
guidance attached to the letter from the Stock Exchange dated 5
September 2005 to all issuers relating to share option schemes)
for which any grantee of an option is entitled to subscribe
pursuant to the options held by him before such alteration
provided that no such alteration shall be made if the effect of
which would be to enable a Share to be issued at less than its
nominal value. The issue of securities as consideration in a
transaction is not to be regarded as a circumstance requiring any
such alterations.

Expiry of option
An option shall lapse automatically and shall not be exercisable
(to the extent not already exercised) on the earliest of:

(i) the date of expiry of the option as may be determined by
the Board;

(i) the expiry of any of the periods referred to in paragraphs (l),
(m), (n);

(i)  the date upon which the scheme of arrangement of our
Company referred to in paragraph (p) becomes effective;

(iv)  subject to paragraph (o), the date of commencement of the
winding-up of our Company;

(v)  the date upon which the grantee ceases to be an Eligible
Participant by reason of such grantee’s resignation from the
employment of our Company or any of its subsidiaries or
the termination of his or her employment or contract on
the grounds that he or she has been guilty of serious
misconduct, or has committed any act of bankruptcy or is
unable to pay his or her debts or has become insolvent or
has made any arrangement or has compromised with his or
her creditors generally, or has been convicted of any
criminal offence involving his or her integrity or honesty or
has been in breach of contract. A resolution of the Board to
the effect that the employment of a grantee has or has not
been terminated on one or more of the grounds specified
in this paragraph shall be conclusive; or
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(t)

(vi)

the date upon which the Board shall exercise our
Company’s right to cancel the option at any time after the
grantee commits a breach of paragraph (i) above or the
options are cancelled in accordance with paragraph (u)
below.

Alteration of the share option scheme
The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any respect by
resolution of the Board except that:

(i)

(if)

any alteration to the advantage of the grantees or the
Eligible Participants (as the case may be) in respect of the
matters contained in Rule 17.03 of the Listing Rules; and

any material alteration to the terms and conditions of the
Share Option Scheme or any change to the terms of
options granted, shall first be approved by our Shareholders
in general meeting provided that if the proposed alteration
shall adversely affect any option granted or agreed to be
granted prior to the date of alteration, such alteration shall
be further subject to the grantees’ approval in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The amended
terms and any adjustment to be made to the exercise price
of the Share Option Scheme shall still comply with Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules, the supplemental guidance of 5
September 2005 and any future guidance or interpretation
of the Listing Rules from time to time and any change to
the authority of the Board in relation to any alteration to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.

(u) Cancellation of options
Any cancellation of options granted but not exercised must be

approved by the grantees of the relevant options in writing. For
the avoidance of doubt, such approval is not required in the
event that any option is cancelled pursuant to paragraph (i).
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(v) Termination of the share option scheme

Our Company may by resolution in general meeting or the Board
may at any time terminate the Share Option Scheme and in such
event no further option shall be offered but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option granted
prior thereto or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Options granted prior to such termination but not yet exercised
at the time of termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and the development of the society. Details of the
Group's development, performance and operation in the
environmental aspect will be set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Our Group has adopted internal control and risk management policies
to monitor the on-going compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. As far as the Board is concerned, our Group has complied
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in
all material aspects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, AND KEY
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our Group is in good relationship with its employees and we have
policies in place to ensure our employees’ remuneration, and welfare
package as competitive among other players in the industry and they
receive adequate continuous professional training. Our Group also
maintains a good relationship with its customers and suppliers, without
whom the production and operation success will not be guaranteed.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 29.6%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 69.0%
Sales

— the largest customer 21.2%
— five largest customers in aggregate 74.0%

Save as the continuing connected transaction with Bilsea International
disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, none of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

IREFRMHAER
AEBETERERRESEAFENR
BELHERB LT

KRB
— RAHEER 29.6%
— hARHEREH 69.0%
HEHE
—&AEP 21.2%
—REREFEH 74.0%

BRTIXIHEHRERS | EAHEEHE
Bilsea International B35 B BE X S5 - #
BEE FEZENEEBEARRERE
EFRT R A AR D F) 5% LA _E IR A B E AT AR
R RAREEESE S HEE TR

BFEBRERS
REBE2023F12A3BILFE  AEE
BUTHEBEREBERS

Annual actual

Annual cap transaction
forthe  amount for the
year ended year ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31 December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2023 2023
BZ2023% BZ2023%
124318 12A31R
IEFEH ILFEH
FRREALER HARENEERR XHME EELR EBEXZEH
US$'000 US$'000
TET TET

Exempt

E#%
Bilsea International Pte. Ltd. Property leasing N/A N/A
("Bilsea International’)

Bilsea International MEHRE TER A
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Annual actual
Annual cap transaction
forthe  amount for the
year ended year ended
Name of relevant Connected relationship 31December 31 December
connected persons with the Group Nature of transactions 2023 2023
BZ2023% BZ2023%
12A31H 12A31H
IEFER LLFEMN
BERREALER RASENRERE XHHE FELR EBXZEH
US$'000 US$'000
TER TET
Non-exempt
TEEHS
Bilsea International Note Provision of asphalt tanker 34500 12,511
chartering services
Bilsea International M &t RRAE S MR RS 34,500 12511

Note: Bilsea International (mainly engages in asphalt trading and provision of
transportation services), which is owned as to 64%, 34% and 2% by Ms. Liu
Weipeng, Mr. Yan Xiankai (the spouse of Ms. Liu Weipeng) and Ms. Gao Chuan,
respectively. As Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan Xiankai are both the directors of
some of our subsidiaries, Bilsea International is associate of each of Ms. Liu
Weipeng and Mr.Yan Xiankai, and are connected persons of our Group at the
subsidiary level. As at the date of this annual report, our Company is owned as to
3.41% by Bilsea International.

Bilxin Tenancy Agreements

Two tenancy agreements (the “Bilxin Tenancy Agreements”’) were
entered into between Bilsea International as landlord and the
Company's subsidiary Bilxin Shipping Group Pte Ltd (“Bilxin Shipping")
as tenant, under which Bilsea International agreed to lease properties
for office use located in Singapore and provide maintenance services to
Bilxin Shipping, for a term of 12 months commencing from 15 April
2022 and ended on 14 April 2023, and a term of 12 months
commencing from 15 April 2023 and ending on 14 April 2024,
respectively. Total rental payable by the Group under the Bilxin Tenancy
Agreements amounted to approximately US$25,000 for the year ended
31 December 2023.
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The transactions under the Bilxin Tenancy Agreements constitute de
minimis continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Rule 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Bilxin Tenancy
Agreements and the transactions thereunder are exempted from the
reporting, announcement, annual review, circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements also constituted exempted
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules.

Bilsea Master Service Agreement

On 28 October 2020, the Company’s subsidiary, Shun Yuen Group
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Shun Yuen HK"), as service provider, entered
into a renewed master service agreement (the “2021-2023 Bilsea
Master Service Agreement”) with Bilsea International, for a term of 3
years ended on 31 December 2023, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide asphalt tanker chartering services to Bilsea
International. On 1 December 2023, Shun Yuen HK renewed such
master service agreement with Bilsea International, for a term of 3
years ending on 31 December 2026 (the “2024-2026 Bilsea Master
Service Agreement’).

The service fees payable by Bilsea International to the Group were
determined after arm’s length negotiation between the parties thereto
with reference to (i) reputation of the customer; (i) duration of charter
period; (i) the prevailing market circumstances; (iv) past business
relationship with the customer; (v) the financing cost of our vessel; (vi)
cost of shipbuilding and operation; and (vii) cargo quantity. Taking into
account that the Group has already provided asphalt tanker chartering
services to Bilsea International in the past and that provision of such
services has offered stable and considerable profits to the Group
historically, the Directors consider that it is in the Group's interests to
continue the relationship with Bilsea International and to provide the
asphalt tanker chartering services under the 2021-2023 Bilsea Master
Service Agreement and the 2024-2026 Bilsea Master Service
Agreement to Bilsea International. For details of the renewal and
annual cap of 2024-2026 Bilsea Master Service Agreement of these
continuing connected transactions, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 1 December 2023.
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As for the sales amount, for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
annual cap for these continuing connected transactions in total was
USS$34.5 million, and the actual transaction amount for the year was
approximately US$12.5 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, our independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that such
transactions were entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) onnormal or better commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the agreements for such transactions, the
terms of which are fair and reasonable, and are in the interest of
the Shareholders as a whole.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all of its
non-exempt continuing connected transactions.

The Company'’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions disclosed above.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors of the
Company provided a letter to the Board confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board,;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(3)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the cap.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2023, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions which are required to be disclosed by the
Company in accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure
of connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 and to the date of this
annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director's and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
or the controlling shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company nor any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) that competed or might compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person had or might have with the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2023.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
our Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not make
any charitable or other donations.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company did not change its auditors in the past three financial
years.

By order of the Board
Mr. Chen Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is delighted to present our sixth Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") report (the “ESG Report”’ or “Report’) to illustrate
our management approach and performance in sustainable
development.

Reporting Scope and Period

The reporting scope covers the performance and measures of the
Group's ESG development of the operations of our offices in the
People’s Republic of China (PRC), Hong Kong and Singapore, and our
asphalt tanker chartering business and bulk carrier chartering business
in the Reporting Period from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023.

Reporting Standards and Principles

This Report has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guide”) set out in
Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules updated by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong in 2023. This Report has strictly complied with all provisions
of “mandatory disclosure requirements” and “comply or explain” in the
ESG Guide.
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The following reporting principles have been adopted in the
preparation of the Report:

Materiality

Quantitative

Balance

Consistency

We have conducted a materiality assessment and
collected stakeholders’ feedback. The importance
levels of various ESG issues to the Group and
stakeholders in 2023 were assessed, thus serving as
the disclosure focus of the Report.

To evaluate the ESG performance of the Group
during the Reporting Period comprehensively, we
disclosed the applicable quantitative key
performance indicators in the ESG Guide and stated
the standards, methods, assumptions and
calculation reference and basis used to quantify the
key performance indicators, including the sources of
major conversion factors.

The Report discloses the Group’s progress and
challenges in sustainable development
management, to fully demonstrate our sustainable
development performance.

The statistical methods used in the ESG Report are
generally consistent with those used in previous
years, and an explanation is provided on any
changes in relevant factors, such as statistical
methods or key performance indicators.

Feedback on the Report

Your comments and recommendations on the Report and our
sustainability practices are valuable for our continuous improvement.
We welcome and appreciate your feedback through the following

channels:

Address:

Telephone:
Email:
Website:

Room 02-05, 40th Floor
International Commerce Centre
No. 23 Changting Street
Taijiang, Fuzhou

China

+ 86-591-87573330
angelazhu@xysgroup.com
WWW.XYSgroup.com
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
MANAGEMENT APPROACH

In our pursuit of business expansion, we proactively collaborate with
stakeholders, systematically assess our environmental and societal
influence, and conscientiously fulfil our social obligations to contribute
to the sustainable development of the community.

Oversight in Sustainability

The Group adopts a proactive stance toward ESG and sustainability
management with the implementation of a resilient ESG governance
structure. This governance structure empowers the Group to address
ESG issues that reflect the Group's substantial environmental and social
impacts, safeguarding stakeholder interests and aligning with our
corporate values.

SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

ESG Governance Structure

ESG Governance in the Group

Our governance structure emphasises our commitment to
environmental and social responsibilities. We have defined the roles
and responsibilities of the Board and established a Group-wide
governance structure, forming the cornerstone of our sustainable
development.

The Board has the overall responsibility for supervising ESG practices
across the Group and, delineating ESG management priorities,
approaches, and strategies. To facilitate and monitor ESG management,
the Board has established the ESG Working Group, comprised of
representatives from various functional departments. These members
are committed to implementing ESG strategies in our day-to-day
operations. The ESG Working Group not only acts as a link between the
functional departments and the Board, implementing decisions and
reporting on progress but also plays a crucial role in overseeing the
Group's overall ESG development.
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Working in tandem with the ESG Working Group, the Board effectively
oversees various aspects of ESG development, including the
management of material issues, identification of ESG risks and
opportunities, and the review of ESG performance. Our ESG
governance structure ensures continuous monitoring of implemented
policies and practices in our operations, thereby facilitating ongoing
improvement in key ESG targets, performance, and progress.

ESG Governance Structure

The Board

ESG

FRE (e RERIENMINBGST -
EELANEERRE HELEREA
HNER PREEMHZENEE  H
FIIRE - g REGRR LS LR
AMRE HEREREM -RE &
RERNERAEBRRISELEELSEBR
BHEEABEREE  EmEERE
WEBBORRE T2 hEREE X
BRER o

R HERERNERRSR

Working Group

Marine
Department

e
A5 ER

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

Technical
Department

B

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

HR & Administration
Department

ASE1TEED

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

Business
Department

EhEs

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

BRE AP R4REHY
iz

Accounting
Department

B 58D

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments

B EE BB 4R REHY

- ESG Governance Structure of Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited

° ﬁ:/ﬁﬂ:%%@ﬁﬁﬂ
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HERERHEAARE

Purchasing
Department

S

Dedicated ESG
work leader in
the functional
departments
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Responsibilities of ESG Working Group

The ESG Working Group meets at least once a year and whenever
necessary to closely work with the Board in managing ESG issues
regularly. The main responsibilities of the ESG Working Group include:

88

Organise the Group's ESG work, and formulate relevant systems
and procedures, according to the Group's overall ESG
management goals, management strategies and guidelines;

Coordinate and supervise implementation and execution of ESG-
related work by various functional departments of the Group;

Review the progress of achieving ESG goals, and assist the Board
to review the progress of ESG goals and targets;

Coordinate relevant departments of the Group to prepare and
review the annual ESG Report, and submit it for the Board’s
approval;

Regularly report to the Board on ESG management work
(including but not limited to evaluation, prioritisation and
management of important ESG-related matters);

Communicate with stakeholders on ESG matters, and provide
feedback to the Board, management or relevant departments,
etc, if necessary;

Perform other ESG-related work at the request of the Board,

including but not limited to providing ESG-related training to the
Board.
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ESG Risk Management

Utilising the foundation of our established risk management and
response mechanism, we conducted an ESG risk assessment in 2023,
aiming to systematically identify and assess potential ESG risks that
could impact our business operations.

The ESG risks assessment is conducted based on the megatrend
analysis and peer benchmarking. The identified ESG risks are evaluated
and prioritised under two perspectives, namely “severity of potential
negative impacts” and “possibility of occurrence”. We classified ESG
risks into five levels: “Very Low”, “Low”, “Moderate”, “High” and “Very
High". The "High” and "Very High" level ESG risks are identified as
significant ESG risks.

nou

In the Reporting Period, we have identified 19 ESG risks and
incorporated them into our ESG risk checklist. 18 “Moderate” level and
1 "Low” level ESG risks are identified and no significant risks are
identified.
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The following table shows details and corresponding internal
management action of two major ESG risks rated “Moderate” level

analysed during the Reporting Period.

ESG Risk Risk Level Risk Description
RE -8Rk RBEBER JEB| B 4 ot
ERE b

TRINANFEEHANS Tﬁu-l—-ﬁ"zfﬁf:'—ri
ERHNMARRE e hERRRKRAE
S RARE A EIRITE ©

Internal Management Action

A EETE

Energy Use and Moderate Enterprises need to
Efficiency % promote energy saving,
BEIR(E A K consumption reduction
= and clean energy

development.
EERF2HEDRE -
FEBREERER
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The internal management of energy use includes:

REREANAREEBEE

Establish a monitoring and control system for
energy efficiency to monitor and record the
energy use of ships in real time, so as to
identify and solve energy waste problems in a
timely manner

BB G EERS UARERK
MM EERERBIBER - R .ﬁk%ﬂ&%
RELIRORE A&

Utilise computer-aided route method to

optimise fuel saving when planning voyages

EA%EEIHMEHT - M| PR 2 B o B A AR 05 A
RV EVES

Improve ship design, including optimisation
of trim and draught to reduce sailing
resistance

BUEM ARG BRE T EAE KK
VAR ﬁﬁ?ﬂ?ﬂj}

Procure and install solar panels on board ships

RE LML R KGR

Formulate energy use plans and targets and
implement measures for energy use
HEBEREMFEI N BRE - WEIEER
15 P ¥& bt

Strengthen personnel training and
management to improve the energy saving
awareness and skill level of employees, and
encourage them to actively participate in
energy saving
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ESG Risk Risk Level Risk Description Internal Management Action
RE -8Rk EABSR B B 4 A EETH
Eram
Greenhouse Gas ~ Moderate Increasing production We have a team of specialised engineers actively
Emission and FE scale involved in ship design to manage greenhouse gas
Management AEREEXR emissions, including:
RE RN BPEEEXTIRAMEL  BE2EMMER
NER Open and fair O UERBEREEN B

purchases

NFEATFERE 1. Modernise the fleet by phasing out older

vessels and upgrading to lighter, more
energy-efficient vessels

FRBAAZEMM BEFRER
BeRIMME - BEIRMBEIRARAE

2. Establish a sound environmental management
system, including taking effective disposal
measures for different types of pollutants,
ensuring that the discharge of all pollutants
meets the requirements of international and
local laws and regulations, and eliminating
the occurrence of environmental pollution
incidents
BURTHREERERE  BEHETE
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ESG Risk Risk Level Risk Description
RE -8R RABE®R L B i 3
EREM

Internal Management Action
A EETH

92
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Adopt low-sulfur fuel to reduce air pollutant
emissions, improve the energy efficiency of
ship sailing, reduce fuel oil usage, and
eliminate air pollutant and greenhouse gas
emissions at the source

BRAERR R AR D 2= RO5 R B

E = A AT B BE R W as R A R A
B URRREHEBRZER SR IORE
RS HE L

Set emission reduction targets in line with the
IMO and other international organisations to
comply with international standards

R AR IMO 2 EL b B B 4 4 19 22 SRl T2 Rk
R AR aBREE

Optimise its operation strategy to reduce
unnecessary emissions, including more
rational route planning, ships’ energy
efficiency improvement, etc.
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Provide environmental training and education
to employees to enhance their environmental
awareness and skills
RETIRHERFINHE REaRFE
IRR B B SRR

Share resources and experience with our
counterparts to accelerate the process of
emission reduction
BRITHZEERKER - AR B HE
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We have formulated corresponding risk internal management
strategies for different levels of ESG risks and implemented sound risk
management and control measures in business operations to prevent
and mitigate major risks. Risk response strategies include but are not
limited to launching internal policies to regulate our risk exposure,
engaging professionals to ensure compliance, product, and
technological innovation to reduce environmental impacts in
operations. We will continuously monitor, analyse, and review the
potential ESG risks and opportunities in our business.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group is dedicated to generating sustainable value for its
stakeholders. To ensure alignment with the diverse needs and
expectations of our stakeholders, we actively engage in effective
communication and routinely solicit feedback through various
channels. We endeavour to uphold open dialogues, cultivating trust
with various stakeholders through sustained and systematic
engagement initiatives. The concerns and perspectives of our
stakeholders play a pivotal role in strategically advancing our
sustainability performance.

The table below summarises the key stakeholder, their main concerns
and the engagement channels adopted in our operations.
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Engagement Channels

BBERE

Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns
TBRBE TRRTHE
Government and regulators Compliance with laws and
BN R EEE S regulations
PR RRBI
Corporate governance
JL%E/D
Suppliers Increasing production scale
HEm BAREEREK
Open and fair purchases
NGNS ST

Abiding by laws and regulations
BPIER MR

Implementing relevant policies and
measures according to the laws
and regulations

HOEMKAR B b AR R BUR M B 7

Tendering

R

Regular communication
ERER

Inspection and evaluation
TR {4

Awareness training

B
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Key Stakeholders Issues of Main Concerns Engagement Channels
TERGE FERETEE BERE
Shareholders and investors Financial and operating Shareholders’ meeting
IR R MG EE performances N

B REERE Roadshow

Growth strategies and business BB

prospect Investor presentation

BRRIENEBRTR REERES

Risk management Announcement

[ Bz B 38 nE

Trade and industry associations

ITHEpe

Customers and potential clients

BEPLREBREERP

Employees
8T

Local communities

AR

Information disclosure

BRI E

Labour issues

BTHME

Safety

ZE

Sharing best practices for
operations
NEREEEEE

Pricing

EfE

Quality of products and services
EmkREEE
Compliance with laws and
regulations

RSP EI N

Salaries and benefits
FE L@
Career development
BEER

Team building
LSz

Community engagement
HEm2E

Environmental compliances
RIEAH
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Abiding by relevant laws and
regulations

B THERAR AR D
Business communication

E %3

Company website
NGIEER

Email

5

Satisfaction survey

mEERE

Regular meetings
EHER
Training

&3

Staff activities
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Company website
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Shareholder Annual General Meeting

REBFEAE

Materiality Assessment

The Group strives to align its ESG strategies and practices with
stakeholders’ expectations. To this end, we engaged a third-party
professional consultancy to perform a stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment for 2023 to identify ESG material issues.

Our material assessment process includes the following four steps:

Analysis of the
materiality
assessment results
AITESME

A A

Identifying Conducting survey

FEHE

materiality issues

BRIEZ I ERE

Following a comprehensive analysis of trends within the shipping
industry, a benchmarking evaluation of our performance against
industry peers, and integration of stakeholder feedback, we have
strategically identified relevant ESG issues tailored to our business
nature, strategy, and market dynamics. This year, we have broadened
our selection of ESG issues and pinpointed a total of 37 issues relevant
to the Group. For streamlined prioritisation, we categorised them into
three major dimensions: environmental, social, and governance,
conducting assessments accordingly.

Supplier Carbon Tax System Training
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EEE =5 BRI 17203 F 3
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Vertification of the
materiality
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We engaged major stakeholders including the Board, the management,
the ESG Working Group, employees, Shareholders and investors,
suppliers and customers in the materiality assessment through online
surveys. Stakeholders prioritised the importance of relevant ESG issues
to them or the Group. We identified high materiality issues with scores
higher than 5 out of 10 in environmental, social and governance
aspects from the dimensions of “Importance to stakeholders” and
“Importance to business operation”, which were then reviewed by the
ESG Working Group and confirmed by the Board.

The following materiality matrices and list summarise the high and
other materiality issues relevant to us.

@R L AEFEIERHNE B
=g BEEE - RE HEKLERT
BN -BE BRREKEE HER
LREF2EBENFG - FHEIAM
RE - Halkgr@@f EAsEN
ERMETELNF - BRI EFN
ENERN I MIUEREZNERE]W
BEfEERRE B RERATEHERS
Ko (10D mA) MEEEEMHE
WERE g keaTENERHK
Exg®R -

UTERERERIIES RIS E
HER  REBERMEEE -

Materiality Matrix for Environmental Issues
RERENEEMIEMR

High

=

Sustainable Ma\r\i/neipollution
investment R
TR A |
Environmental and
ecological protection
n RGN AR
ey Greenhouse gas
% Emissions
S REREEYEN Air pollution
ZERSR
< *
i A
o Responding to o—— nzrgye c_wen;y
5 HH]H climate change igﬁe%egigflﬂg
o % EHTRE \ —
—
1) <\'3 Waste management \. Water resources
Y it BEEYEE management
c i KERER
© I
o
S
o]
o
£
Low Importance to Business Operation of the Group High
fe HAEBEFLBENEEN B
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Materiality Matrix for Social Issues
HERENEEMIEME

High
=
Customer Talent attraction Product and
) d and retention technological
. . :erg;essn AT RE| B innovations
Maritime security eedbac SRR A5
and piracy BPRHRRE B SR
BEREEER
Service quality and safety
Emergency RGERRALZS
measures
B2 Occupational
w health and safety
= RERRERETSE
) Protecting customer BREENEE
E privacy and ® —— Employees'rights
(@) information security and support
-ﬁq:) H REFFLBRERZE BITHAEYE
-~ Iﬁ-b( @) [ Employee training
8 e ) b " and development
A = Community Zé%egr' Yy BIHEIIMBEER
o) communication  —~__ ™"
- #{II and engagement )
R e mEsR ® Sustainable procurement
O oo e B 5 SRS
c ik
© "#?H Community Labour§tandards
g . investment o BITEeE
o HERE Pulic reputation
E NREE Supply chain management
= HrERER
Diversity and equity
ZtRTE
Low Importance to Business Operation of the Group High
A2 TV -
& HAEEXBLEENEEM =
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AN
/A

&

Materiality Matrix for Governance Issues
ERRENEE M

High

Transpareency and
disclosure

iﬁﬂﬂﬁé&%ﬁzé@\.

Reporting and
Complaints Policy

W RIREFBUR Risk managem

e

\

Financial performance

BTRE

i

Corporate governance
BEER

Compliance operations

./ B

Responsible freight transportation
(contraband management and
anti-smuggling of sea freight, etc.)
BEEE (BEREERELE
EEREMLE)

Importance to Stakeholders
HiFMENEEN

\,/

Anti-competition
R

J/

Anti-corruption
k&S

Board independence
and diversity

EERBUERSZTTE

Low
&

98

Importance to Business Operation of the Group

HAEEEBEBNER M
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We have identified the following ESG material issues:

Aspects
FHE

High materiality issues

BEEEMNERE

BPCHEATEENERRE L8R

-
VAR

Other materiality issues

HittEE M HRE

B

Environmental
RIE

1.

Environmental and ecological
protection

RIR R A RRIRE
Sustainable investment
ARERE

Marine pollution

RGPS

Energy efficiency and energy-
saving

BEIR UK N B B

Air pollution

ZERT F

Greenhouse gas emission
= R B

Water resources management

KEREE

1.

Responding to climate change

FEH R IRE L
Waste management

FEEEYEIR

FEREESEERAF/2023FFH
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Aspects High materiality issues Other materiality issues
FHE EEEEMRE Hith EEMEHE
Social 1. Talent attraction and retention 1. Maritime security and piracy
ne AT B 5| B R BELTEER
2. Employees' rights and care 2. Labour standards
BTAEEE BIRE
3. Service quality and safety 3. Supply chain management
RBERER S HEsE R
4. Occupational health and safety 4. Diversity and equity
BREENMZE Lt T E
5. Customer service and feedback 5. Cybersecurity
B PR HE R R HERET s
6.  Product and technology 6.  Public reputation
innovations NREBE
72E om B R Al 1) 7. Community communication and
7. Employees’ training and career engagement
development HEBRESE
BTHIINBEER 8. Community investment
8. Emergency measures HEREE
EoHR
9.  Sustainable procurement
QIEST 24
10.  Protecting customer privacy and
information security
REZFLERERLZSE
Governance 1. Compliance operations 1. Transparency and disclosure
=P BRRE BERE R E
2. Financial performance 2. Boardindependence and diversity
BRI SRS ED 4
3. Corporate governance 3. Responsible freight transportation
TEER (contraband management and
4. Risk management anti-smuggling of sea freight, etc.)
[ f 32 BEREREERERNELE
BREME)
4. Anti-corruption
R&EF
5. Anti-competition
f 55 5
6.  Reporting and Complaints Policy
R MARIFRER
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In preparing the ESG Report, we reviewed the latest developments in
our ESG management approaches and strategies and incorporated the
material ESG issues identified through the inputs and efforts of our
stakeholders. Disclosure of the material issues is provided in the
following chapters:

RBHEERE e hERMER - B
ERFAIRE HEREREENEMRRE
BAORHER YHAEBRNHENS
EERABINERE HERhELRER
MHHEE BEEMRENRBERARNATE
#n

Chapters High materiality issues
56 EEEEMERE
Sustainability Governance »  Compliance operations
ARHEERER BRgE
> Risk management
[\ b & IR
> Corporate governance
TEER
Environmental Performance »  Marine pollution
RIBEM R

> Environmental and ecological protection

RN AR RE

»  Product and technology innovations

FE o M BT 2

> Energy efficiency and conservation

BEIRRUER [ B B
>  Airpollution
ER5R

»  Greenhouse gas emission

i 2 5 RE HE IR

> Sustainable investment

ARBERE

> Water resources management

KERERE

»  Sustainable procurement

AR ERE

»  Financial performance

MI5RA
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Chapters High materiality issues
#E BEEE R
Employee Development »  Talentacquisition and retention
BREZERE AT 5| B A
»  Employee training and development
8 T 5ol SR B 3 3
»  Occupational health and safety
BERERELD
»  Employees' rights and care
BTHRNEEE
> Emergency measures
2
Responsible Operations »  Service quality and safety
BEAERE REEEEZ S
> Customer services and feedback
BRI ERE
> Protecting customer privacy and information security

REBEFPLELRERZE

We look forward to continuously improving our ESG performance BRAMERFHERRE N BERE

through a concerted effort with our stakeholders.

HFIIRIR - 18 MEIRER -
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Compliance Operations

We strictly adhere to the laws and regulations of the jurisdictions
governing our operations, as well as the requirements of international
conventions, with a focus on business compliance in various scenarios.
A comprehensive description of our business compliance actions,
relevant laws and regulations, and internal policies and guidelines is
provided in the appropriate chapters of this Report.

During the Reporting Period, we enhanced our employees’ awareness
of the latest international and regional regulations and policies through
diverse training and information sessions. The sessions covered key
regulations that we adhere to, including but not limited to the
International Ship and Port Facility Security Code (“ISPS Code"), the
International Convention for the Safety of Life at Sea ("“SOLAS"), the
International Convention for the Prevention of Pollution from Ships
("MARPOL"), Maritime Labour Convention, 2006 and IMO initiatives
such as Existing Ship Energy Efficiency Design Index ("EEXI"),
Operational Carbon Intensity Index (“Cll") and Ship Energy Efficiency
Management Plan Part Ill ("SEEMP Part lIl"). Internal meetings on
research and findings related to the most recent industry
developments have been scheduled on a regular basis to ensure that
we remain in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and best
practices. Additionally, we scheduled the 2024 training plan ahead of
time, aiming to align with regulations, including the International
Maritime Solid Bulk Cargoes Code (“IMSBC Code"), International
Convention on Standards of Training, Certification, and Watchkeeping
for Seafarers ("STCWS 95"), International Convention on Load Lines
("LL"), and Maritime Labour Convention (‘MLC2006").

EREE

TP ER AR B ST R IR 2B PR TE AR
B HERIERANBERERGONENR &
HEETRBE TS REE BRI
PIERBERITE  HEEREZRALA
BB R M 48 5l MY 7 & HE I B AN 3R 5 A
FEEED -

RBEHA AMBRSEEIREER
Wete - MBRE THRIOER K@
EHREBRORHE Z ST ERER
METHEEER  BEEBTRERABEE
fEmaAE O R pER LA ([1ISPS#RAI]) -
B EADMELZERY ((BEREEAMD
ZEAN]) - BB IR R RL ([H
BREFLEREARSS R AMN]) ~ 20065854
TRALAKRIMOE R » 2038 A M A g8 K
RETIEH ([HERRFTER]) - EERA
EEH ((HEEEE]) Rt ieER
AFEIE =D ((MMHENEEFEE=
Bal) BMEBHERBEERNITER
BARREROADSH  ABREABK
BTEAER  EEUARTEREER -
LN - B P4 AT HIl E 2024 F 15 FI 5 E
EEEMEBEARE B BREEKRE
BEREEHEEWHRA ([IMSBCHRA]) -
Mg ARG BEEERMITE BIZEER
BRA#) ([STCWS 95 ) -~ BB A AE E 4R
AH(ITLL]) BB EELE T AHY
(MLC2006]) °
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Stay up-to-date with changing environmental regulations
from the IMO and in the shipping industry

The Group faces elevated compliance risks and potential negative
impacts on financial performance and corporate reputation due
to shifts in environmental legislations and policies. IMO has
recently issued and updated a set of regulations and policies
aimed at enhancing environmental protection and resource
conservation within the shipping industry.

In response to these developments, our ships have undergone
retrofitting to improve energy efficiency and reduce carbon
emissions. We consistently align our operations with the latest
international standards and industry trends to stay current with
regulatory changes.

Throughout the Group, substantial measures have been
implemented to proactively address the most recent rules and
guidelines. Collaboration with engineers, customers, shipyards,
and international Classification Society has been a key aspect of
our strategy, allowing us to explore cutting-edge advancements
in ship hardware and shipping systems. Our concerted effort
involves assessing the feasibility of integrating state-of-the-art
low-carbon technology into our ships and operations.

Both the ESG Working Group and our operations team remain
vigilant in monitoring environmental compliance issues, tracking
market dynamics, and staying abreast of industry advancements.
Preparations are underway to mitigate compliance risks and
potential impacts on our business, ensuring ongoing attention to
environmental concerns.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

THRIMORMEXTHSILWIRE
ERNEFER

MRIRRERREERNE (L &
E G E = 8 A AR R B DA K B
ARG EBENETAATE -
IMOBT MW E ¥ —E 5 £ M58
MEERREELERAER KK

Paras

ﬂio

BEHZEHE  RIOYBAES
By - b 3R 7 BE SRR 0 i E B
RMMEE —EREFEEEER
FEBBRFE B AR LEEE
e

REBRBMAERG  BHREY K
AR A R8T 8 o B TAZAD -
BEP - MB L ER MR A E—
EREBEN—EERZT @  ERM
BEMRR MR MAMER SR
HRAT - MM KRB N BEFE
1 &% ST M ERR R I B & EM &
BERAITIE

RIE e RERTHENDEREM
MELBBESEERRREAR
mad BT PENRITRE
o BAIE/EL EETIE ARE
ERRBEEHEBNEEZE
BRGEBIRREER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERES

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Aligned with our environmental commitments, we have heightened
our focus on enhancing sustainability performance across all business
units. Our objective is to minimise any adverse effects stemming from
our operations, encompassing environmental impacts related to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste. We strictly comply
with the latest IMO regulations, international conventions, Port State
regulations, Classification Society rules, and other regional and local
environmental laws and regulations, both at sea and in ports. These
regulations include but are not limited to, the Marpol Convention, the
International Management Code for the Safe Operation of Ships and
for Pollution Prevention (“ISM Code”) the Environmental Protection
Law of PRC, the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC,
and the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC.
In order to instil environmental awareness among our customers and
suppliers, we are actively implementing diverse sustainable policies
and initiatives.

During the Reporting Period, there were no reported prosecution cases
for violation of laws and regulations related to environmental
protection. And the Group has a reliable and sustainable water supply
for its operations, ensuring no issues in sourcing water.

Green Strategy Highlights in 2023

Having established a series of environmental objectives and
corresponding action plans, the Board conducted a thorough
monitoring and assessment of our progress against these targets in
2023. This review aimed to evaluate the effectiveness of the policies
and initiatives implemented. Moving forward, we anticipate
establishing more meaningful targets that are rooted in the material
environmental impacts of our operations.

Low-carbon transformation

IMO's decarbonisation objectives represent the predominant long-
term technical challenge within our industry, necessitating the
establishment of novel low-carbon operations and associated
bunkering services on a global scale. Consequently, we have
implemented measures and innovative technologies aimed at
diminishing our carbon intensity and enhancing fuel consumption
efficiency. The following outlines our commitments in alignment with
the overarching goals of our industry:

RIBEX

ARABRMOIREARE  RMEMNKAD
ERERMAEBHBPFANAIFEZERE
R-ZAMECKEEEENEMINF
ERIGE(BEEABRRIAEREE
W mAKETHOBESUEREEAEER
BEBRZEVNRRTE) - KPIEKEST
BATIMOER ~ BIFRAK) - BABER -
MR RA - e R E S ER
BORBZERRER ZEEHBERE
AR BB IEMMER TR AL - B
B 22 EMET L5 2ERR A
(MSMRBIL) ~ REBRIFBREE - PEIK
BRI RENR P B RR)FRMIRE -
RAEFPREEEEGRRES BN
TR E i S TR A 5 B UK MIE T ©

RBERAAN BEZREAERBBERE
RENEZREAMEERBRM - KK
EmEEREA A EAAFENHK
ORI SKERKR Y A R

2023 F iR BB R E B
EE2CH T ERBEESELEETH
FHE - WHZFEIRER2023FMNERE
TEEEE LW URFEITEER
LEmONERME - BEARK  HMEH
EREENERRREFEIVEEER
HEIZ
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IMOBI EfiR L E R AR MITERNREE
MRS TE2E2REERNE
SRR AR & E R ARBE AR RS o Lt
BRMERSERGERAIF RN BER
Kk ERIESMREDERERE LA TA
A BEMABERITEBEEEMIEL
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Our commitments and progress:

B ERERER

Increase in fuel efficiency, reduction in carbon intensity and air emissions

RERBME  BEEEAERBERER

Short-term Indicators

BHER

All existing ships should meet the
latest IMO requirements of EEXI
and Cll from January 1,2023
B2023F 1 A1AR -FERA
fr AR 39 JE 38 <7 IMO £ 37 #Y BE RX
RETIEE MR EEHREX

Strengthen the fuel management
of our fleet, sulphur oxide emission
intensity and carbon emission
intensity will be reduced

meEf B ER - BRERSA
W BERGRE KAk HE i o8 =

Align air pollutants reduction target
with the reductions of our carbon
intensity targets, as air pollutants
such as particulate matter (PM)
emissions and Nitrogen oxides
(NOx) emissions are closely
correlated

{58 R SR05 2 VRl BE B 13 B 31
WiRZE TR B RRF -3
B RBIZHFE KRS EMYE
MR ALY ) R

106

Progress

ER

Target met
EIT

Target met
EIT

Target met
T

Actions in 2023
2023 FEHEUMITE

>

Studied and strictly abided by the latest IMO regulations and
standards

B 7T 0 B8R 15 3 <F IMO B fT A H IR %

Monitored and reviewed fuel consumption and carbon
emissions

B % I BE B FE R AR B DL

Used low-sulphur fuel oil in all operations to meet IMO's
sulphur limits and reduce pollutant emissions

R EEBLERERERMASD - LAFFEIMORIRE
ERE W5 R

Strengthened fuel management and improved fuel
efficiency

ISR IRELE I - RS IR R

Improved maintenance of engines, machinery and
equipment of ships to ensure combustion efficiency
INGRFI AR E M - A - REBEVERRE ARG
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Increase in fuel efficiency, reduction in carbon intensity and air emissions

Middle to Long-term Indicators

TR RER

Continuously track and disclose
energy efficiency indicators and

performance
FEEMIIRERRY LS E
YRR M AR R

Strive to meet the energy efficiency
obligations that are expected to
apply to our ships
BEETREERMM
MELEE

fA O BE TR

Keep focusing on technological,
regulatory and related
developments in the shipping
industry to ensure we are well-

prepared
BEEZENMEERMN AR
MBAERE  BREPIELTE
1

Progress

ER

In progress

#EITH

In progress

HEITH

In progress

HEITH

Actions in 2023
2023 FHREMITE

>

Performed and recorded routine inspection and
maintenance of ship machinery to keep them in the best

condition
MITW R B MR O PITTIR E M - FHARF &
EAREE

Utilised computer-aided routing service to plan voyages
with fuel-efficient and economic considerations
) R B i 6 B B AR BR TS5 #E 17 B A B BV AR AR B
Improved ship design, including trim and draft optimisation
to reduce drag
BUEM AR RRET - BIEHHE Rz KB AR A B8 FE 7
Increased the use of clean energy progressively through
measures such as installing solar panels on ships

BBP MM ERGREEOREER - BZFENER
Hu/ﬁa’ﬂiﬁﬁ

Conducted research and investment in clean energy
applications

EITRRERERNTT R MRE
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Wastes and Resources management BYRERER
Marine Discharges & Waste Management BEHER R R E
Minimise hazardous waste and dispose responsibly
RERSEERBYANESENFTRNETERE
Short-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023
BHER BE 2023 FEREVAVTTEY
Identify and prevent the Targetmet »  Established an inventory of hazardous substances for newly
application of hazardous #EZ commissioned vessels, developed rules for the use of
substances, and regularly update hazardous substances for purchased products to comply
the Hazardous substances list with internal policies, and assured that all hazardous
BRI RFEMEREEDNE & substances on board comply with relevant requirements
HEFBEEMEBE RMREMMEVEEDERE  HERBERES
MEFERRNATEARNEBE RN LEAEEED
BRaEEEX
» Updated the inventory of hazardous substances from
shipbuilding regularly and remained abreast of recycling
requirements at ports
EHEMEMASYEBRE M THEBEORKRTE
Develop a hazardous waste Targetmet »  Hired professional waste management services to dispose of
management approach EE hazardous waste in accordance with laws and regulations,
HlE B EREYEBHE thereby reducing disposal at sea
KRER IR BREMEERBEERZAERERR
BEY) - e e FRE
Regularly provide safety inspection Target met »  Performed regular inspection and maintenance of black

and maintenance of hazardous #=1Z
waste storage equipment
EHHBEEEY R TRELET
ZRmE NEE

water and grey water storage tanks to avoid waste oil
leakage
TE B BOK RIROK R AEETTIRE M - 8 R RE
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Minimise non-hazardous waste and dispose responsibly

BERVEEBEYIYUNRBENATANETER

Short-term Indicators Progress
RHER BEE

Increase waste sorting and Target met
. . R
recycling devices EIZ

BREM D EREIWEKE

Middle-term Indicators Progress
PHIER EE

Install and use more onboard waste In progress
disposal machinery to reduce the #477
waste amount
TRUEREZHNMEEY R

BB EYE

Reduce plastic waste generation In progress
B SBR BE Y EE HEITH
Manage waste treatment In progress
EIRRERE Y BRI HEITH

Raise employee awareness of Target met
emissions reduction and recycling 1%

TRTHE B SR 5 2 e 338

Introduce paperless shipping Target met

SIAERES ERR

Actions in 2023
2023 FEREMITE

>

Separated food waste from other household waste for
recycling

% B S 1 3% B L A A R 3 3% o0 B [B 1

Actions in 2023
2023 FHREMITE

>

Installed devices such as garbage compactors and garbage
mashers and used the devices installed in accordance with
the requirements of the anti-fouling convention

RN IRBERRIF RS RE - LRGSR
HBRLZERME

Implemented drinking water purifiers, reduced the
consumption of plastic bottles and required suppliers to
decrease plastic packaging in product deliveries, etc

B BAORbES - MBI ERE - 2REHED
EEMmERTRIERBES

Stipulated for proper storage of all types of waste and
procedures for disposal ashore, etc.

RESBREYNEEREMN LFREERFS

Provided training for crew members to separate garbage
accurately, etc.

BITEANBRHERSIF D RS ENE

Maximised the use of electronic devices to replace
traditional paper, electronic diskettes, etc.

RAREHHAEFREDVNERVMARE - EFHEK

=T
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Manage wastewater treatment to minimise harmful marine discharge

EEBKEEUNRSERLBAENEFHER

Short-term Indicators

RHER

Further equip and optimise
wastewater treatment facilities
E- P RERELSKEER
iicH

Middle-term Indicators

PHIER

Manage and review ballast water
management, implement
innovative techniques in reducing
potential harm

EENRA BEHKERE B
BIFT R AR DB EEE

Progress

BE

Target met
E12

Progress

BE

In progress

#EITH

Actions in 2023
2023 FEREMITE

» Ramped up investment to increase the number of
wastewater treatment facilities
MARENE - BIN5KERREEHE

»  Prioritised vessels with more efficient wastewater treatment
facilities when purchasing or upgrading vessels
EBE R BMME - BEERRBR S BEKEIE
A% Tt ) A A

Actions in 2023
2023 FEHEUMITE

»  Checked existing ballast water management plans and
relevant crew records regularly

TSR AREKERE LA B
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Offshore Water Efficiency KK E
Avoid unnecessary water wastage
BEFTLENKEFRRE
Short-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023
BHER EBE 2023 FEREAVITE
Increase the water-saving Targetmet »  Managed and maintained faucets and pipelines to prevent
equipment on ships EIZ unnecessary water waste
R E KR EENGEKEALREE MIETBENKERRE
Middle-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023
hRER BE 2023 FEREUNTTE
Regular maintenance of water Inprogress 3»  Developed a maintenance schedule for water supply
supply and storage facilities HEFTH facilities
TE B 4 K N Bk R b il 7 KRR i A T 2
Long-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023
ROER EE 2023 FEHREITE
Regularly check on the water- Inprogress »  Monitored water consumption and the effectiveness of
saving initiatives’ progress EITH water-saving initiatives regularly

IR E AR e E R

TE HA B2 R A K % B K HE B B A 3K
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Strengthen desalinating seawater work

bR AR L T4

Middle-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023

RHIER BEE 2023 FEREVAVITE

Optimise and maintain desalination Targetmet »  Performed regular inspection and maintenance of
water generators, and strengthen 1% desalination units

desalinated water reserves HENKRMCERBETERREREE

B K 4 FNOR(EH - hnog

RIKE

Strengthen the usage ratio and the Inprogress »  Increased the usage ratio of water from seawater
applications of seawater 77/ desalination

desalination R =8 OK L TR K 89 FI A 2

ISR B KR B A B R % fE R

Reduce the fresh water demands from ashore

B = EHRKER

Short-term Indicators Progress  Actionsin 2023

RHER EBE 2023 FEREAVITE

Increase recycling uses of water Targetmet »  Added rainwater harvesting systems for non-potable use
resources EF IEINFEER VK AR RS KINER R4

BEIKEIREERA A
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Sustainable Ship Designs

Our ship engineering experts incorporate eco-friendly features and
practices into vessel design and construction to minimise potential
environmental impacts across the entire business cycle. By utilising
advanced technology and integrating environmental protection
concepts into the design, we have achieved a pronounced decrease in
energy and fuel consumption at various stages, including design,
construction, operation and maintenance.

We strictly complied with the requirements of the IMO, which
stipulated energy efficiency and greenhouse gas reduction
requirements by 2025, and imposed limits on the sulphur content in
the fuel oil used on board ships. We have enhanced the Energy
Efficiency Design Index ("EEDI") of all the newly commissioned ships
significantly with their fuel consumption well below international
standards and contributing to the fight against climate change. During
the Reporting Period, we widely utilised very low sulphur fuel oil
("VLSFO") on our ships to ensure compliance with the IMO 2020 global
sulphur cap throughout our operations.

3 LED lighting
r RREEER
MGO supply unit system
ERHRNSEHRE

Shore power system & L
EERG
1
|

Monitor and alarm
system and power
management system

ERRERGREREES

Advanced ship type
yigst

Bigger black and grey water tank
FEANHBRKR
Stern tube SW. cooling system
BABREEH / \ Coating system (sea mate NB)
\ (REBDE5%) ZHER
| Low speed and long stroke M/E
\%ﬁ%ﬁ@}@g&ﬁﬁg\ﬂﬂ%g\li'kiiﬁ

Ballast Water Management system

EHARRRE

A B M A AR ET

HANMMIREERBRAFERER
MAERTREZEBES  UHKKRE
WD BEXGBERTOEBERZTE -
BB T AR RR T R BR A ST Y BT R AT
W5 ARRE S - HAIERET - 2E
L8 N M IRED KRR KRB IR MR ERE

I P9 B A% 5T IMO 38 45 A 51 2025 F H9 BE
OB EREE R B E MM E S W
ERHIZENRTE - BEH TR MK
PERNER  RMERBIERSME T
HEMMAEE BT IEE ([EEDI]) + &
BEREARBEBRZE - RIEHAR - &K
P A N MM LB EZIERRIE RS
(TVLSFOJ) -+ TR T M9 1E 2 &8 & 1B 12
4R 4238 ST IMO 2020 F HY 2 BR A R 2 7
2FR-

Hydraulic system uses plant-based oil (VGP compliant)

BEARAENRES (FAVGPEE)

Halogen-free cable

ERESE

Non-Asbestos
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Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited Eco-Friendly Ship Designs
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Enhancing Energy Efficiency

Skeg stern, fin stabiliser, streamline style and other
advanced vessel designs are employed to reduce water
resistance and improve vessel efficiency.

Advanced energy management systems are in place to
enable efficient energy allocation. The systems are
monitored and adjusted continuously during sailing to
maintain high energy efficiency consistently.

Variable-frequency control system and energy-efficient
lighting system are introduced to reduce energy
consumption.

Ensure full compliance with the latest IMO regulations on
fuel and energy requirements, work towards compliance
with EEXI reduction requirements, and track and monitor
Carbon Intensity with reference to ClI.

Use onshore power systems during berthing to reduce
energy consumption on board and emissions at the dock.
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. Preventing Pollution
Ballast water treatment devices are installed to prevent the
growth of microorganisms in ballast water and mitigate the
risk of biological water pollution during sailing.

Stern tubes along the seawater cooling system are fully
concealed to minimise the risk of oil leakage in the event of
a stern tube failure.

Eco-friendly materials such as halogen-free cable, fluorine-
free refrigerant, plant-based biodegradable hydraulic oil
and asbestos-free binder are used to minimise pollution
during vessel construction and operation.

Low-sulphur fuel oil systems are installed to reduce sulphur
emissions.

Copolymer antifouling paint is used in the coating of the
entire vessel to avoid potential marine pollution and
prevent marine species from attaching to the ship hull,
thereby minimising disruptions to the marine ecosystem.

. Managing Waste
Hull-mounted incinerators are installed to treat solid waste
and oil waste at high temperatures.

A large-volume black/grey water tank is constructed to
store the oil waste generated.

In addition to incorporating environmentally friendly features into the
design of our vessels, we are committed to reducing our environmental
footprint through comprehensive management practices.
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Sustainable Operations

In the vessel management business, we acknowledge the potential
emissions produced by the Capesize vessel and have established a
Ship Energy Efficiency Management Plan (“SEEMP”) to collect data on
parameters such as fuel oil consumption, voyage distance, and
underway hours. This allows us to efficiently oversee environmental
impact and ensure safe operations. All our vessels have obtained the
Statement of Compliance, confirming that our fuel oil consumption
reporting adheres to the methodology outlined in the SEEMP. To
enhance our initiatives further, internal guidelines titled “Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction Measures for All Ships” have
been issued in 2022. Presently, all Group-owned ships have been
awarded the Engine International Air Pollution Prevention Certificate,
affirming their compliance with international standards for air
emissions.

To proactively address the potential environmental impact arising from
hazardous materials and waste, we enlist a team of qualified
professionals to oversee the management of hazardous waste
generated during the operational phases of our vessels. Additionally,
we undertake inspections and sample all conceivable hazardous
materials present on the vessels, thereby devising a more
comprehensive management plan for the future.

As of 31 December 2023, 11 vessels operated by the Group were
managed by outsourced third-party shipping companies. To
systematically mitigate potential environmental impacts, we employ a
comprehensive strategy that encompasses not only the design,
production, and maintenance of vessels managed by third parties but
also entails ongoing communication and monitoring of their
environmental performance. This approach is essential to ensure
adherence to relevant laws, regulations, and our internal standards. For
instance, we have devised vessel-specific ballast water management
plans to minimise the environmental footprint of our operations. In
addition to conducting inspections for hazardous materials on our
vessels to create an inventory, we have enlisted the expertise of
Verifavia HazMat specialists to ensure proper maintenance of Inventory
of Hazardous Materials ("IHM"). The Group's dedicated commitment to
hazardous material management has yielded significant outcomes,
exemplified by the issuance of the Statement of Compliance on IHM
for one of our owned vessels. This achievement underlines our
proactive approach towards ensuring the safe and environmentally
responsible handling of hazardous materials on board our vessels. The
IHM serves as a comprehensive inventory, documenting and
categorising all hazardous materials present on the vessel, providing
transparency about their locations and quantities.
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Climate Change Response

In response to increasing societal concerns and the tightening of
regulations concerning environmental protection, we have adopted a
proactive approach to address and mitigate the impacts of climate
change. The prioritisation of decarbonisation strategies has emerged as
a collective focus within the international shipping industry, aligning
with broader sustainability initiatives.

The Board and senior management are resolutely committed to
leading the Group in the identification, monitoring, and resolution of
significant climate-related challenges within our operations. They have
actively participated in the formulation and implementation of
strategic policies to ensure compliance with the latest IMO regulations
pertaining to carbon reduction. Furthermore, with the backing of the
ESG Working Group, we persistently explore and assess both physical
and transition risks associated with climate change in our operations.
Physical risks such as weather disruptions, operational losses, and
geographical constraints, may cause financial losses. While the
challenge of decarbonisation, regulatory changes, and the need to
adapt to technological innovations necessitate robust risk
management strategies for successful navigation in the Group. We
adjust internal measures accordingly to effectively respond to
emerging climate-related risks, demonstrating our commitment to
fortifying the climate resilience of our business and proactively
preparing for potential impacts.

Sustainable Procurement

We are dedicated to elevating our holistic environmental performance
through identifying, assessing and mitigating environmental risks
across the supply chain. In addition to financial aspects, environmental
considerations hold precedence in our procurement procedures. This
entails assessing criteria such as environmental technology
certifications, adherence to emissions and energy efficiency
benchmarks established by IMO and other global bodies, as well as the
comparative energy efficiency of vessels against industry counterparts.

The Green Procurement Standard (the “Standard”) has been
developed to enhance the management of environmental risks within
our supply chain. Suppliers are required to comply with the policies
and specifications detailed in the Standard, encompassing supplier
assessment standards, mandates for environmentally conscious
manufacturing practices, and responsible material usage guidelines. By
adhering to this Standard, our procurement practices are fortified to
mirror our steadfast dedication to sustainability.

FEHRIREL
RESASERNEEEILRKERRH
RERENRE  HASKRDEGEE

EHRERRRELCNZE - BEER
BB RS DX RSB AUE R KRR
WEHREEZWAIFEEREZRT R -

EFe oA BREEERNRELRE
B EEREHBEMALSEFHEKN

RIS - RECEEHEL2EGIE
KB e RBEBR - LAREIR TS & IMO & %
HURBR AR D) o th 5 EIRBE - HERE
A TR NEN S FHHE T - RIAIEER
REFHEBRMALETARRIEREZ(CAR
B R MR R E R c RRTEB &
LEBEMEIERFIEYIERRAIESE
HMBER  RMmkE  EER2(CAR
BRERMAFNEE  HHFRENER
BILREE T Al R ANEEBUSAL) © Fit
AP EAN I - AB R IR
BRAR RS E B - FA R PIAR hnog
75 ) SR M1 3 FE 7 0 PR EXAR 45 45 5 ) #8

TEETE -
ARFERE

BB R~ A s SR g L e SR R IR IR A
2 BPBAOIRSERRREER K
BhmS RERBRES  HAKES
ZRRERER - W BRMGEE 1R
REMREE ~ EFIMO K B th 2 IR 18
T B BERR S BE RUERZE - DA R A AR X
ARTTRIBER LB

HPEFE (e RBERE) ([ZRE])
Apnse e R B E R EIE - R
P W6 JR 8 ST SR IR R SR D BOR e AR
BRHERFGHEEE ABERREED
FEERERUNAE TN EHERE
Sl-BBEBETHREE RMANKBEER
BUAME  URBRBMEATHEERD

BX TGS ©

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 117



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERES

Our supplier assessment process includes meticulous scrutiny of raw
materials and components to mitigate potential environmental and
health risks stemming from chemical misuse. Aligned with the
Standard, we have formulated the Environmental Load Material
Management Standard, which identifies substances warranting
heightened scrutiny due to their potential environmental impacts,
including paint, foam concentrate, and hydraulic oil. Suppliers are
mandated to furnish a Material Safety Data Sheet for each listed
material in the Environmental Load Material Management Standard,
confirming compliance with safety thresholds.

To ensure effective management of environmental risks within our
supply chain, we conduct an annual assessment of the environmental
practices of our parts and materials suppliers, aligning with the
standards outlined in our Green Procurement Standard. Suppliers are
obligated to disclose their certification status, such as I1SO 14001
Environmental Management System and ISO 9001 Quality
Management System. Those suppliers falling short of satisfactory
environmental performance undergo a remedial action process,
including the development and reporting of improvement plans with
regular progress updates and supporting evidence. When engaging
new suppliers, preference is given to those meeting the criteria
established in the Environmental Load Material Management Standard,
alongside benchmarks for quality, performance, and pricing. All
suppliers undergo annual evaluation through the “Annual Evaluation
Form on Suppliers”.

Sustainable Investment

Advocating for green and low-carbon practices has become a global
trend as the environment gradually deteriorates nowadays. Green
development is not only a social responsibility that listed companies
should fulfil but also an intrinsic requirement to reduce costs and
enhance efficiency. It holds significant importance for the operation
and sustainable development of companies.
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As a global leading provider of asphalt tanker chartering services, the
Group adheres to the principle of responsible business operations. We
consistently balance business development with corporate social
responsibility. We strive to integrate the concept of sustainable
development into our daily business operations and major business
decisions, aiming to create long-term value for Shareholders,
customers, employees, supplier partners, and the public, bringing
about positive and constructive impacts.

In terms of sustainable investment, we are committed to diversified
development and a decarbonisation strategy, aiming to establish a
leading and future-proof asphalt tanker fleet, making the Group a
practitioner of sustainable shipping. Specific measures have been
taken, including gradually phasing out old ships and seeking suitable
opportunities to invest in advanced and green new vessels; exploring
new energy sources such as LNG, hydrogen fuel lithium batteries, etc,
for applications in new ships; promoting the application of energy-
efficient technologies through technical upgrades to reduce harmful
emissions from ships. During the operation, besides focusing on
economic performance, we incorporate governance, risk management,
energy conservation, environmental protection, low-carbon operation,
and stakeholder engagement into daily management. We actively
undertake social responsibilities to ensure the sustainable development
of the enterprise, striving to provide positive feedback to all
stakeholders.

Sustainability Ashore

In pursuit of establishing a sustainable and environmentally conscious
workplace, comprehensive guidelines have been devised to articulate
our green office policies for the benefit of our employees. These
policies encompass various aspects, including but not confined to the
Measures of Energy Saving and Environmental Protection in Offices,
the Principles and Measures of Environmental Protection in Offices, and
the Waste Management System. By implementing these green office
policies, we not only align ourselves with global sustainability goals but
also contribute to the creation of a work environment that values
environmental responsibility. Regular updates and communication
channels are established to keep our employees informed about these
policies, fostering a collective commitment to sustainability across all
levels of the organisation. As we continue to evolve, these guidelines
remain integral to our ongoing efforts to create a workplace that
harmonizes productivity with environmental consciousness.
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Green office targets and actions

To improve our overall environmental performance, we have
developed green office targets and action plans based on the scope of
our operations. Our progress in the Reporting Period is as follows.

Greenhouse Gases Emissions and Energy Saving Initiatives

Improve energy efficiency of office equipment

RERARBHERRER

BRERAZEERRTH

REUERMANERRREYS  RFAZR
BEHLEREGESENQBRENRT
Batdl - RMEHRAR - WAINERDET -

BB R B RETE e

Short-term Indicators

BHER

Replace and phase out high
energy-consuming equipment

B REARERERE

Regularly maintain and upgrade
office electronic equipment to
improve energy efficiency
EHRERTRPREFRBE
AR = RE TR UK

Middle-term Indicators

hRER

Discover the latest energy-efficient
products and keep in touch with
manufacturers of various
technologies
BRGMOEEDRESER
1M B2 585 P IR R Bt 4

Progress
ER
Target met

EIR

Target met
EIT

Progress

ER

In progress
HEITH

Promote an energy-saving culture

Actions in 2023
72023 FHENITE

>

Utilised energy-efficient, environmentally friendly lighting
equipment in the office

M AEE B EREIRREREAR

Upgraded office electronic equipment regularly to
improve energy efficiency

EHRTTARREEFRIBARSERAE

Actions in 2023
R2023 FEHEEWITE

>

Participated in Lloyd’s Register seminar on the Energy
Efficiency Design Index and Carbon Intensity Index for
Energy Efficiency Management Program

208 KM AR BN BE R EH IR B B B TR 5T &
R G E -

HITERE XL

Middle to Long-term Indicators Progress Actions in 2023

PHERBER ER 72023 FEREMNITE

Increase green office energy-saving Target met »  Set copiers, printers, and other office equipment to power

initiatives ER save or auto-off mode

B NAR & A ED BeFE b EAEENH - ITEN R KM AR BREREEXE
AR

Regularly check on the emissions In progress »  Reviewed the effectiveness of existing green office and

reduction progress HEITH energy-saving measures regularly

EHRERERBR

E R IR B RO A M ETRE IR M A AU
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Waste Reduction L REY)
Reduce the production of solid wastes
BOERBENNELE
Short-term Indicators Progress Actions in 2023
RHER BR 2023 FEREMNITE
Widely apply electronic platform Target met »  Promoted paperless office to reduce paper waste
and advocate paperless practices 12 REEELHA  UWBPHEEKRE
BrERETFFE BEEMN
i3/
Prioritise the purchase of office Target met » Upgraded office electronic equipment regularly to
supplies that could be recycled and 1% improve energy efﬁciency
reused EHALRPRAENETFHRE  LIREEIREE
18 55 48 B 7] [ 4 K B 7 A A 9
NERT
Middle-term Indicators Progress Actions in 2023
HHER ER 72023 FERIMITE
Solid waste management In progress »  Ensured that the sorting, transportation, storage, disposal
& B8 RE ) E 1R HEITH and transfer of solid waste complied with relevant laws

and regulations

BRERBEDNSE ER 7 RENREBR
BHBERIERORE

Onshore offices employed dedicated cleaning staff to
clean solid waste weekly for proper sorting, recycling and
disposal
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Promote a recycling culture

HEATE KL

Short-term Indicators Progress Actions in 2023

BHER ER 2023 FEREVMITE

Increase waste recycling facilities Target met »  Set dedicated recycling points in onshore offices and

8 0 151 W 5% B EIZ employed cleaning staff to sort and recycle solid waste
ERIPAERBEEMANLDKE  TEABZEAER
HEBEYETOBEREK

Middle-term Indicators Progress Actions in 2023

PHIER ER 2023 FEREMITE

Organise activities to enhance the Target met »  Circulated waste sorting methods and organised waste

awareness of recycling, waste Z{Z
avoidance and reduction
HEEBARS R - e E
EREY MR L BRI E

Recycle and dispose kitchen waste  Target met >
(0] 47 % B 38 B R B 3K EIT
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reuse and recycling activities
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Separated kitchen waste from other waste and provided
dedicated kitchen waste bins in office buildings for
disposal
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Water Efficiency

JH K34 R

Encourage water conservation, and reduce average water consumption

SREQNAK RO FEIRKE

Short-term Indicators Progress

BHER ER

Regular inspection and Target met
maintenance of water pipes and ¥EiZ
water systems

EHRE M EEKE MK

G

Organise activities to improve Target met
water efficiency awareness ER

ARE B RS B R B

Middle-term Indicators Progress
RHER ER

Improve the water efficiency of Target met
sanitary ware ER

= ELZ AN AKYE

Actions in 2023
72023 FHENITE

>

The property manager of the office building inspected the
plumbing and water supply system daily and managed
water taps and pipes to prevent unnecessary water
wastage
MABHYMELEBEGRREEBRIKRG &7
KEEBENEE  IETBENKRE

Incorporated water conservation into staff induction
training and developed an internal policy to reduce
unnecessary use of water in offices

18R K AR A B T ABIEFI - X6 E W EBER
AR ERT U EE K

Actions in 2023
R 2023 FEHEENITE

>

The property manager of the office building inspected
and maintained water-saving devices daily to prevent
unnecessary water wastage
MABHYERBGRIRE MEEEHKRE  DIE
NRBRENKORE
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Green office measures

In our commitment to mitigating the carbon footprint associated with
office operations, diverse energy-saving and emission-reducing
initiatives have been introduced and successfully implemented.
Employees are actively encouraged to use natural light whenever
available, complemented by the installation of advanced LED lighting
systems throughout our office spaces to enhance overall energy
efficiency.

To curtail unnecessary energy consumption, stringent policies have
been established concerning the use of electrical equipment such as
computers, printers, and other devices. These appliances are constantly
powered off when not in use and during non-business hours, fostering
a culture of energy conservation within our working environment.

Our commitment to energy conservation extends to the management
of the office’s air-conditioning system. Our air conditioner operation
has been set to moderate temperatures during business hours to
minimise energy wastage. Additionally, employees are reminded to
keep windows closed when the air conditioning is in use to optimise
its efficiency further.

In our procurement practices, priority is accorded to the acquisition of
energy-efficient electrical appliances with commendable energy labels.
This preference emphasises our commitment to sustainability across all
aspects of our operations. Simultaneously, our internal green office
policies and procedures undergo regular review and refinement,
ensuring alignment with the latest advancements in environmentally
conscious practices.

Additionally, to address emissions from vehicle usage, employees are
encouraged to adopt alternative ways of transportation, such as
carpooling with colleagues or utilising public transit whenever feasible.
To streamline the management of the Group's vehicles and prevent
unauthorised usage, employees are required to submit formal requests
according to a standardised policy. Through these concerted efforts,
we endeavour to cultivate an environmentally conscious workplace
culture that benefits long-term sustainability.
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While our locations may not be directly impacted by water scarcity, our
commitment to water conservation remains steadfast, manifesting
through our daily operations. Measures have been implemented to
reduce water wastage and enhance efficiency, including the
prohibition of car washing with tap water, the utilization of water-
efficient appliances within our office premises, and meticulous
management of faucets and pipelines.

In addition to advocating for water conservation, we prioritise the
cultivation of a recycling culture among our employees, promoting the
use of eco-friendly office supplies that are reusable, recyclable, and
biodegradable. The integration of electronic document management
and office automation systems facilitates the seamless sharing and
access of documents electronically, thereby minimising reliance on
printing and its associated energy consumption. Embracing the
transition to a paperless office, employees are encouraged to adopt
double-sided printing practices whenever printing is indispensable.

Furthermore, our commitment to environmental stewardship extends
to waste management practices. We have clear procedures for
handling non-recyclable general waste, electronic waste, and
hazardous waste. Engaging qualified professionals ensures that office
waste is managed in compliance with regulatory standards. Hazardous
waste, such as batteries and ink cartridges, is specifically handled by
professionals provided by product suppliers. In addition, our employees
are incentivised to reduce resource consumption and maximise
recycling efforts, with recyclable materials being systematically
collected and forwarded to recyclers to prolong their lifecycle and
minimise waste generation.

In our constant dedication to fostering a green workplace, we have
instituted comprehensive policies and procedures outlined in our
Green Office Policy. Through our adherence to these guidelines, we
anticipate substantial advancements in our environmental
performance, aligning with our predefined objectives. Enhanced by
the dedication of our employees and the implementation of cutting-
edge environmental management methodologies, we are confident
that our concerted efforts in this domain will gain increasing
recognition.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

The great importance we place on our workforce is evident in our
staunch recognition of employees as our most valuable asset. In line
with this principle, our human resource strategies are strategically
oriented towards the acquisition and retention of highly skilled
personnel. Through the provision of competitive remuneration
packages, diverse training programs, ample career advancement
opportunities, and robust health and safety measures, we are
committed to cultivating a work environment that is not only safe but
also good to employees’ well-being and fulfilment.

Protection of Employees’ Rights and Interests

In strict adherence to the labour legislation stipulated by the PRC
Labour Law, the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), the Employment Act of Singapore, and other laws and
regulations governing the jurisdictions where our operations extend,
we have meticulously formulated our Personnel Management System
and Employees’ Handbook. These documents comprehensively outline
our employment policies, encompassing various aspects such as
recruitment, promotion, termination, compensation and benefits,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, anti-discrimination
measures, as well as training and development initiatives. Each
employee is entitled to the rights and responsibilities designated
within these internal frameworks.

Throughout the Reporting Period, we are pleased to report a clean
record with no reported incidents of prosecution for violations of
labour laws and regulations or infringements upon employees’ rights
and interests. Additionally, no complaints on such matters were lodged
against the organisation during this period. This exemplary track record
underlines our dedicated commitment to upholding the highest
standards of labour practices and ensuring the well-being and rights of
our workforce across all operational jurisdictions.

Employment Practices

In alignment with our dynamic business expansion initiatives, we
formulated an annual human resources plan tailored to each business
unit's requirements. This plan serves as a strategic roadmap for talent
acquisition, facilitating the filling of key positions within the Group.
Additionally, a comprehensive recruitment plan is developed to attract
and engage suitable candidates through a transparent and merit-
based selection process.
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Throughout the recruitment journey, we remain steadfast in our
commitment to the fundamental principle of “Appointing employees
according to their merits and utilising their talents to their fullest
potential.” This ethos shows our dedication to fostering a work
environment characterised by equity, diversity, and inclusivity. All
aspects of our employment practices are conducted with utmost
transparency and fairess, ensuring that every employee and candidate
is afforded equal opportunities for recruitment, advancement, and
compensation based solely on their merit. Discrimination on the basis
of nationality, ethnicity, race, gender, religion, or cultural background is
strictly prohibited within the Group.

Simultaneously, the Group maintains a stance against the exploitation
of child labour and forced labour. In accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, we have established stringent policies outlined in our Child
Labour Prevention and Remedial Procedures. These measures are
designed to prevent the recruitment of individuals under the age of 16,
with thorough background checks conducted during the hiring
process and routine investigations conducted within one month of
employment to mitigate the risk of omissions or candidate
impersonation.

If any inadvertent hiring of individuals under the age of 16, immediate
action is taken to rectify the situation according to the stipulations
outlined in the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and
other relevant legislation governing child labour and forced labour
practices. Additionally, employment contracts are strictly administered
to ensure that all employees fully comprehend and consent to our
employment policies, further reinforcing our commitment to ethical
labour practices and the protection of workers' rights.

Employees’ Rights and Welfares

To further safeguard the rights and interests of our valued employees,
we have outlined the terms and conditions governing mutual
termination of employment, resignation procedures, and the fair
settlement of wages and compensation. These provisions are detailed
to ensure clarity and transparency, thus fostering an environment of
trust and respect within our workforce.
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In our dedication to promoting a healthy work-life balance and
ensuring equitable compensation for overtime work, we have
established rigorous working hour requirements underlined within our
comprehensive Employees’ Handbook. These guidelines serve to
guarantee that employees who commit additional hours beyond the
standard work schedule are duly compensated for their dedication and
effort.

In our relentless pursuit of acquiring and retaining top talent, we have
devised a multi-aspect approach encompassing competitive
remuneration and benefits, coupled with clear career progression
pathways tailored to recognise and reward employees’ contributions.
Central to this endeavour is our robust salary system, which underlines
the principles and structure of our compensation policy, comprising
standardised salary scales for each hierarchical rank and a systematic
framework for promotion and career advancement.

Our compensation package is thoughtfully designed to encompass
various components, including base salary, performance bonuses, year-
end bonuses, and allowances, all commensurate with employees’
performance, responsibilities, experience, and prevailing industry
standards. Additionally, our employees enjoy access to a range of
supplementary benefits, such as marriage allowances, maternity
allowances, and consolation payments, further enhancing their overall
well-being and job satisfaction.

In addition to statutory holidays, we recognise the importance of
providing comprehensive leave entitlements to cater to diverse
employee needs. As such, we offer a suite of leave provisions, including
annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave, maternity leave, bereavement
leave, and breastfeeding leave, ensuring that our employees can
effectively balance their personal and professional commitments.

Following the prevailing laws and regulations in the PRC, we extend a
comprehensive insurance package to our employees, encompassing
pension insurance, unemployment insurance, occupational injury
insurance, medical insurance, maternity insurance, and contributions
to the Housing Provident Fund. This holistic approach to employee
welfare underscores our commitment to supporting the well-being
and prosperity of our workforce.
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Staff Demographics BI&s

At the end of the Reporting Period, we had 41 employees in Hong R FREH KR - HMIEEE - P H L FHM
Kong, PRC and Singapore. The composition of our workforce by ¥ BH41 88 T - F M8 THMKIZE
gender, age group, employment category, and geographical region 5l ~ F#R AR - EE B R KB E &l
are as follows: DU

Employee Distribution
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Employee Engagement

Ensuring effective communication channels with our employees not
only fosters motivation and dedication but also provides invaluable
insights into their needs and expectations. We highly value the
feedback received from our workforce and are committed to promptly
addressing their concerns through open communication and
assistance whenever feasible. To streamline this process, our
meticulously crafted Employee Feedback System outlines the specific
channels and procedures for lodging complaints, enabling employees
to voice their grievances regarding their rights and interests or share
their opinions and suggestions through various mediums such as face-
to-face interactions, email correspondence, our Office Automation (OA)
system, WeChat, or traditional written communication.

Upon receipt of complaints or comments, our management team
persistently engages with the concerned employee, arranging personal
meetings to collaboratively devise appropriate solutions. We recognise
constructive feedback as a catalyst for continuous improvement and
actively seek and respond to employee opinions on areas for
enhancement.

We are deeply committed to safeguarding the physical and mental
well-being of our workforce, striving to cultivate a happy and
supportive work environment favourable to overall wellness. Our
concerted efforts in this regard extend to promoting a better work-life
balance, encouraging employees to prioritise family time and social
engagements. Additionally, regular team-building activities are
organized to foster camaraderie, infuse joy, and elevate team morale,
thereby contributing to a cohesive and harmonious workplace culture.
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Team-building event for our employees in 2023
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Occupational Health and Safety

The Group upholds the utmost commitment to ensuring the health
and safety of the workforce. In strict adherence to the Law of the PRC
on Work Safety, the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases, and other legislation governing occupational
health and safety, we prioritise the protection of our employees from
potential occupational hazards. To this end, we have enacted the
Occupational Health and Safety Management Measures ("Health and
Safety Measures”) to systematically manage and mitigate risks
associated with workplace health and safety across all operational
domains.

The Health and Safety Measures comprehensively outline procedures
aimed at effectively managing safety products and equipment,
addressing potential occupational health and safety hazards, and
implementing preventive measures to mitigate the risks of various
occupational diseases, including pneumoconiosis, eye ailments, and
occupational deafness. As a preventive measure against workplace
accidents, strict adherence to these measures is mandated for all
employees. Moreover, to ensure comprehensive understanding and
adherence to these procedures, new hires undergo rigorous pre-job
training sessions designed to familiarise them with the procedures
outlined in the Health and Safety Measures and enhance their
emergency response preparedness.

Recognising the critical importance of ongoing training and
development in maintaining a safe working environment, we provide
regular training sessions for all employees, irrespective of their seniority
levels. And we have scheduled monthly training for safety
management for 2024 in advance. These training programs cover a
spectrum of safety topics, including fire safety, electronic safety, and
the proper utilisation of safety equipment, thereby equipping our
workforce with the necessary knowledge and skills to navigate
potential workplace hazards effectively.
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Our regular safety training on fire drills and emergency evacuation in 2023

F AP 2023 F F B #E 7T E A E

In strict adherence to regulations set forth by the Maritime Safety
Administration of the PRC, we mandate that all Chinese crew members
engaged in international voyages possess a valid seaman’s book issued
by the Harbour Superintendence Administration of the PRC, alongside
other certifications. Crew members possessing maritime qualifications
are obligated to participate in regular training sessions to uphold the
currency and validity of their seaman’s books and cargo operation-
related certificates. These training modules encompass a
comprehensive range of safety-focused topics, including firefighting,
first aid, security awareness, and other aspects crucial to ensuring their
readiness and eligibility for shipboard duties, including repair and
maintenance tasks.

To further bolster the competency and preparedness of our crews, we
orchestrate safety meetings, emergency drills, and specialized training
sessions designed to enhance their proficiency in responding to a
diverse array of maritime emergencies. These initiatives are
meticulously crafted to fortify crew readiness for scenarios such as oil
spills, ship abandonment procedures, fire outbreaks, collisions, and
communication disruptions, all while ensuring stringent compliance
with the ISM Code.
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Our crew members participating in the safety training
#1282 2 15 3l a9k B

In addition to our vessels, we also put a strong emphasis on the health
and safety of employees in the office premises. We provide adequate
fire safety, first aid and sanitation equipment as well as emergency
medicines in the workplace. To ensure workplace sanitation, we
regularly arrange for dedicated personnel to clean carpets, water
dispensers, air-conditioning systems and other equipment, and arrange
health check-ups for employees. During the Reporting Period, we
organised a comprehensive health check-up for all employees.
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Workplace Fatalities and Injuries

During the past four years (including the Reporting Period), there were
no accidents in which we suffered any injuries or death due to work,
nor were there any cases in which we were materially affected by non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to occupational health
and safety.
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REE-

Employee Health and Safety

BEREHEZZE

Number of Work-related Fatalities’

ITHHAE

2023 2023 4F Person A 0
2022 2022 F Person A 0
2021 20214 Person A 0
2020 2020 4F Person A 0
Rate of Work-related Fatalities ET T = % 0
Number of Work-related Injuries EATITZEHNAZ Person A 0
Lost Days Due to Work Injury TEBEEATHERR Day H 0

Learning and Development

Investing in employee development is vital to the overall success of
our business. Therefore, we provide employees with relevant and
consistent training to develop their skills, knowledge and
competencies, thus achieving the aim of “One post, multiple functions”.

Employee training system

We have established the Employee Training System to design annual
training plans based on the employees’ level, position, and individual
needs, as well as our development priorities. Each year, a wide range of
training programs are organised for employees in accordance with the
annual training plan. As part of our onboarding process, new hires
undergo comprehensive orientation sessions designed to instil
familiarity with our corporate culture and organisational structure.
Additionally, they receive a copy of the Employees’ Handbook to
acquaint themselves with their roles and responsibilities within the
organisation. Furthermore, vocational and professional training
opportunities are made available to enhance their skill sets and
proficiency in their respective roles.

! The definition of work-related fatalities is determined in accordance with the
Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances, the Decision on Recognition of
Work Injury, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, the Human Resources
Management System, etc.
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To gauge the effectiveness of our training initiatives, employees are
tasked with submitting Internal Training Evaluation Forms and Post-
training Review Reports, providing valuable feedback on course
content, trainer expertise, and learning outcomes. Further assessment
of training outcomes is conducted through on-site evaluations,
examinations, or knowledge-sharing sessions. These assessment results
are integrated into the employee performance appraisal process,
influencing promotion decisions and motivating active participation in
future training programs.

Throughout the Reporting Period, we conducted a diverse range of
training sessions covering external regulations, internal policies,
occupational health and safety, anti-corruption measures,
management principles, maritime safety, and other topics aimed at
bolstering employees’ professional knowledge. These well-designed
sessions were conducted by both external and internal subject matter
experts, supplemented with valuable learning materials. The duration
of each training session ranged from 2 to 16 hours, depending on the
complexity and scope of the topic covered. This comprehensive
approach to training underscores our unwavering commitment to
equipping our workforce with the necessary knowledge and skills to
excel in their respective roles.

SEERMFIASNNS  BEFE
RARBFINFFE R R GFIERBRT
WE)  HREAD - BRI EEAE
REEBRREHEENEEER - 157
FXREVE — FRHBREBIR GG &
ABAMBNY ZFGET - ZEFAEERE
MARERBAZZRE FESTORE
IR B B TS 2 BRI RS )T & -

RBEHEA - HOBRRZEFIRE -
MW R HNEBIAM - MBEPBUR ~ B R
FREZE2 RERERE BERAE
U REMEEREEEEXNHE
B E R ° % 5450 R AT Y IF Bl 3R A2 f S
MEATNEEEREE THAEE
BEHNEBEMH - RIEMBEZETENEM
RELSBE  SFIINEREE2/NEE
16/ AE - A EIT A MR
MBBEITBEBINSERERHKLEN
AR ee  EEERAES BB L
BIEMR -

Our staff participating in diverse training sessions
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RESPONSIBLE OPERATIONS

Maintaining responsible and environmentally sound operations
remains a priority for our sustained success in all endeavours. Our
dedication to responsible and sustainable practices is evident in our
proactive engagement and collaboration with stakeholders throughout
the value chain. Through ongoing communication and partnership
initiatives, we strive to align expectations and ensure that our
operational standards are met and upheld. These concerted efforts are
integral to fostering the holistic and enduring growth of our
enterprises.

Supply Chain Management

To continue our track record of service excellence, we recognise the
need for practical and thorough supply chain management practices.
Meanwhile, through constant engagement and interaction, we
maintain strong relationships with our major suppliers, including ship
brokers, ship management companies, ship manufacturers, and
suppliers of parts and materials.

To mitigate potential environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, we employ stringent criteria in the selection of new suppliers.
Beyond assessing factors such as quality, pricing, product and service
standards, and technical capabilities, we strictly evaluate suppliers’
integration of environmentally and socially responsible practices into
their operations. Our annual supplier evaluation, conducted by the
Purchasing Department between August and October each year,
encompasses a comprehensive review of delivery performance,
documentation quality, rectification efficiency, and other factors.

To further enhance risk management efforts, we have established
internal guidelines such as the Provisions on the Management of Spare
Ship Parts and Material Supply, the Instruction for Vessel Asbestos
Control, and the Instruction for Management of Medicines and First-aid
Equipment on Ships. These guidelines are designed to mitigate
environmental and social risks associated with our supplier network.
For instance, the Vessel Asbestos Control Instruction mandates the
prohibition of asbestos-containing components and materials in
procurement, requiring suppliers to furnish an Asbestos Free
Declaration Report or equivalent laboratory assessment. Non-
compliance with documentation requirements leads to the rejection of
supplied parts and materials.
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The Group has implemented a comprehensive set of Supplier Bidding
Procedures, outlining various aspects of the tendering process. These
procedures encompass detailed specifications regarding the format of
tendering notices, criteria for supplier eligibility, as well as standards for
contract management and other critical aspects. By adhering to these
meticulously crafted procedures, we uphold transparency,
accountability, and fairness in all our procurement activities.
Furthermore, as part of our commitment to streamlining
communication and enhancing efficiency, we have introduced an
innovative all-in-one portal to facilitating seamless interactions
throughout the tendering and bidding process. This centralised
platform serves as a hub for all communication channels, ensuring
standardised and transparent exchanges between the Group and our
suppliers. Through the implementation of this advanced portal, we
strive to foster a collaborative environment that promotes openness,
fairness, and equal opportunity for all participating suppliers.
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EREAE o
T/

with 31 suppliers.
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Service Excellence

We uphold the mission of “Safeguarding personnel health, ensuring
ship safety, and protecting the marine environment” in our relentless
pursuit of service excellence. We are committed to enhancing the
quality and reliability of the ships in our fleet.

In addition to adhering rigorously to both domestic and international
laws and regulations, including the ISM Code, to uphold navigational
safety and safeguard marine ecosystems, we have instituted an
extensive quality control framework to meticulously oversee the vessel
production process. Within our Product and Service Health and Safety
Policy, we have delineated our management directives, objectives, and
quality assurance policies on safety, environmental preservation, and
product excellence.

Customer complaints and feedback

We value client feedback and consider it an important part of our
initiative to improve the quality of our products and services. As such,
we have developed the Complaint Handling Procedure, detailing our
policies for responding to and investigating customer complaints. We
ensure the accessibility of complaint channels, offering multiple
avenues for customers to voice their concerns, including mail, hotline,
and in-person visits. It is noteworthy that throughout the Reporting
Period, we did not receive any complaints about the quality of our
services.

Customer privacy and information security

The Group upholds the highest standards of integrity and professional
ethics across all perspectives of our operations. In addition to our
adherence to relevant laws and regulations governing intellectual
property rights and privacy, such as the Contract Law of the PRC and
the Specifications for the Administration of Intellectual Property Rights
of Enterprises, we have taken proactive measures to safeguard our
intellectual assets. This includes the registration of patents for our logo
and domain, fortifying our defences against potential infringements.

To mitigate the risks of data breaches and other information security
breaches, we have devised a robust Confidential Information Security
System. This system, developed in accordance with the
aforementioned laws and regulations, serves as a guiding framework
for the hierarchical management of confidential and sensitive
information, ensuring comprehensive protection and compliance.
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During the Reporting Period, no cases were recorded in which we were
materially affected by non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains a firm stance against any form of bribery,
extortion, fraud, money laundering, or other illicit activities. Within our
latest updated Anti-corruption and Anti-bribery Code of Conduct
("CoC") and Integrity and Self-disciplinary Regulations (Provisional), we
have clearly emphasised the standards of behaviour expected from our
employees, along with the framework of our anti-corruption measures.

In our pursuit of fair, transparent, and equitable business practices, we
support the highest standards of ethics and governance. Rigorous
adherence to laws and regulations governing bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering forms an integral part of our operational ethos.
These legal frameworks include the Company Law of the PRC, the
Criminal Law of the PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC,
and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Group remained untainted by
any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud, or money laundering
involving either the Group or any of our employees. Moreover, there
were no instances in which our operations were materially impacted
by breaches of anti-corruption-related laws and regulations.

Internal control of corruption risks

To promote integrity and prevent unethical behaviours, we have
implemented a range of preventive measures. These measures include
a requirement for all employees to affirm their understanding and
adherence to relevant standards outlined in the CoC through a formal
declaration. Specifically articulated within the CoC is the mandate for
the inclusion of fraud and corruption-related risks in the scope of the
annual corporate risk assessment.

RBERA RPLERERBBAERE
Bz EE BRELRMEBEENEHE
EREBROIMERPIERBERATE -
RES

AEBEHTMBE R BF T8
Sk H AN SERTT MR BRI 5 o R&HT
MR BBMR BT RERD ((ITHE
D)) RCEZB RGO (E1T)F - 3l
EBMR T8 TRETMITRIEERRK
PR EISIRMEIELR ©

RERATF - FARLCENEBETA
BAXHESNBRELERIZE B
BB TERBEE R REFRKE
FOERMRG - 1t R PIE TR 1R ey —
My e ZEEARERBAE(PEARKM
BRRDE) ~ (REARKMEME) - (F
EFARKMBREERE) REBBEE
201 ELFT LERERE R B -

RBERA AEENEMNE T EY
NI #$R RFHARESF R
BARBRB I EMZERETZE
AN TR E R REISHEBAE MR
I & EERERTERESE -

R E 5 L B 9 o B 4
RESBERBETERITA BB
EZREBENER ZFREEEEX
FPEE T RBIEAZHARIBRFERL
BT AT RD R R A HRRERE - (17
A ZERI|) A B B AR TE SRR B 88 RRAR A
fRWAFELERRFAHLE -

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 139



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R HERERES

To root out any irregularities within the Group, we have established a
whistle-blowing policy dedicated to reporting suspected instances of
fraud and corruption. Employees and affiliated parties are encouraged
to voice concerns regarding potential impropriety via mail, telephone,
or email. Maintaining strict confidentiality to safeguard the identities of
whistle-blowers, all reported cases are channelled through the Audit
Department, which serves as the designated entity responsible for
managing such matters. Regular reports are submitted to the Board
and the Audit Committee to ensure systematic risk management. In
the event of substantiated violations, disciplinary measures or
immediate termination will be administered to the implicated parties.

Business ethics for the Board and employees

In our ongoing efforts to strengthen anti-corruption awareness across
the Group, we integrate comprehensive anti-corruption education into
the employee onboarding process. All requirements and standards are
strictly outlined in the Employees’ Handbook, providing employees
with a readily accessible resource for reference whenever needed.

In addition to anti-corruption training for newcomers, we continued to
organise anti-corruption education for the Board and employees at all
levels during the Reporting Period, such as the training on warning
education and conferences to strengthen their awareness of self-
discipline. On 31 January 2023 and 28 March 2023, we organised two
training programs on integrity and legal compliance for the Board,
senior managers and key employees from the Chartering Department,
Purchasing Department, Technical Department, and other
departments. In response to the Ethics Promotion Programme for
Listed Companies of the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC"), we also distributed the “Compliance and Beyond
Training Package on Business Ethics for Listed Companies” published
by the ICAC to the Board and senior managers. Comprising a
hypothetical case, three training videos and lessons, the publication
covered typical ethical challenges faced by these individuals and
effectively enhanced their awareness of business ethics and integrity.
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In line with our commitment to fostering a culture of integrity and
ethical conduct, we will expand our efforts to provide comprehensive
integrity education to our employees. Through various communication
platforms such as the office automation (OA) system, email
communications, and WeChat, we will disseminate regulations and
case studies on integrity practices, anti-corruption measures, anti-
money laundering guideline, and related topics, aiming to reinforce
employees’ awareness of ethical standards and best practices,
empowering them to uphold integrity principles in all aspects of their
work.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group places great importance on fostering positive and enduring
relationships with stakeholders while actively participating in the
communities where it operates. Our overarching goal is to facilitate the
advancement and well-being of these communities, thereby
contributing to the realisation of a more sustainable future.

As part of our commitment to social responsibility, the Group has
developed comprehensive Management Measures for the
Administration of Charity and Public Welfare Activities. These measures
serve as a framework to guide our community investment endeavours,
including the effective management of charity funds and the
orchestration of various community engagement initiatives. Moreover,
we actively promote a culture of volunteerism among our business
units and employees, encouraging them to dedicate their time and
expertise to meaningful causes, particularly in the realms of
environmental education and conservation.

Recognising the significance of forming stable partnerships with local
communities, we acknowledge that such collaborations are integral to
the Group’s enduring success. Looking forward, we are poised to
expand our philanthropic and community engagement efforts on a
broader scale, seeking opportunities to make a more substantial and
lasting impact. Through our commitment to corporate social
responsibility, we remain steadfast in our mission to pave the way
towards a more sustainable world for the benefit of future generations.
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KEY PERFORMANCE SUMMARY MRESEE
Environmental Performance? REEXN?
Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BE By 2023 F 20226 20214
Air Pollutant Emissions®*
ERITRYBER

NOX Emissions Tonnes 746.83 1,213.92 1,867.58
B T8

NO, Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile 0.01 0.02 0.01
Rt MHEEE Mg, g8

SO, Emissions Tonnes 83.10 135.11 208.78
B b WEEm Mg

SO, Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile 0.001 0.002 0.001
mealtmEmEE rpi=g:=

CO Emissions Tonnes 84.67 129.50 202.16
— 8L IRBER 7

CO Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile 0.001 0.002 0.001
—S LR E W, R

PM, . Emissions Tonnes 13.89 22.26 34.35
PM,s FF IR 7

PM, . Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile 2.03x10* 3.60x10* 2.29x10*
PM,s BE R E WE, 88

PM, , Emissions Tonnes 14.93 23.89 36.89
PMio HE R A

PM, , Emissions intensity Tonnes/nautical mile 2.19x10* 3.87x10* 2.46x10*
PM o BERE E =g

142

One of the two ships within our scope of the operation was sold in August 2022,
and one car was not in use in 2022, contributing to a reduction in emissions and
resource consumption compared with 2022 during the Reporting Period.

Air pollutant emissions generated by vehicles owned and managed by us in PRC,
as well as ships managed by us. The emission data was calculated in accordance
with the Technical Guidelines for the Preparation of Air Pollutants Emission
Inventory for Road Vehicles (Trial) and the Technical Guidelines for the Preparation
of Air Pollutants Emission Inventory for Non-road Mobile Source (Trial) published
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC and the EMEP/EEA air
pollutant emission inventory guidebook 2019 of the European Environment
Agency.

The wide adoption of VLSFO in ships during the Reporting Period has contributed
to a significant decrease in SO, emission. We will continue to implement more
green measures in the future to minimise our environmental impact.
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BE B 2023 & 2022 2021 €

Resource Consumption and Intensity
BREERRE

Direct Energy Consumption®

EEERERES
Total Direct Energy Consumption MWh 120,184.81 191,386.06 271,695.03
EEEREEAE 1 T F B
Natural Gas Consumption® MWh 4.34 450 4.25
RARAE® & T FL B
Natural Gas Consumption Intensity MWh/person 0.11 0.1 0.12
AARRAERE FEFREA
Petrol Consumption’ MWh 46.12 24.96 52.72
YU H RS & T FL B
Petrol Consumption Intensity MWh/person 1.15 0.62 1.46
FURHEE R FRERFERE/A
Marine Gas Oil and Very Low Sulphur ~ MWh

Fuel Oil Consumption® 120,134.35 191,356.60 271,638.06

REmMERERAE® FE T R B
!\/\arme Gas Oil and Very Low Sulphur ~ MWh/nautical mile
Fuel Oil Consumption Intensity 1.76 3.10 1.81
AL REREnAERE THETRR GE

Indirect Energy Consumption

3% BE OB ¥

Electricity Consumption? MWh 31.37 34.37 30.56
AER TETRES

Electricity Consumption Intensity MWh/person 0.77 0.86 0.85
RERE FEFRE/A

Other Resources Consumption

H At & FH 3%

Water Consumption' Cubic metre 180.00 182.00 171.00
FA7KE AV

Water Consumption Intensity Cubic metre/person 4.39 4.55 4.75
AKEE SHKSA

> Direct energy consumption refers to the direct consumption to the non-  ° BEERERERNASEEENIER BA

renewable fuel consumed in the Group. The data has shown by type of fuels and )f)fﬂ B % /Ef% ° %ﬁg#a H?@ﬂ}*ﬁﬂ%ilj N
the intensity has shown in the unit of productions (employee and nautical mile) EEMARIRELEN (BRER) IR -
accordingly.

i The hatural gas consumpltion data comgs from our kitchen at PRC office. . 6 TARASER G T \%1%&5& TR o
The increased consumption on petrol is related to the fully recovery of business 7 MNEEERE AR ER NS EBTHRN
activities in post-Covid-19 pandemic in the reporting year. Covid-19 & IE& TR IREFR -

8 As we strictly follow the IMO MARPOL regulations, we have widely applied the 8 A F P9 B A% 38 57 (IMO B BR B LE B AR 3ERS
VLSFO on our ship we owned in the reporting year. All VLSFO related calculation POUN %’U>> 5%’ B RmEFE  RMARKMAM
is based on the scientific data stated on the Review of 2020 Marine Fuels Quality g’%ﬁ E’J %’%@T%ﬁ% F%ﬁ%%,\}/égg

ichi i i i Al K N MRS E =
document, which is the agenda Item 5 submitted to the IMO Marine Environment P ESY R BESEED - 2 B

Protection Committee on the 76th Session. B % IMO BFREREZBEF 6 EEH
s A -~ B8 S
FEENEE TER
o The electricity consumption data comes from our offices at PRC and Hong Kong. 9 BE
10 The water consumption data comes from our office at PRC. 10 K

g%ﬂ)““?ﬁ@ PEREBOMERE -
EREREPEIMER -
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
=g B 2023 F 2022 F 2021 4F
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity
BERBHEHRERRE

Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Tonnes 31,983.37 51,067.42 78,409.06
BMERBHEHRES Mg
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Tonnes/person

Intensity 780.08 1,276.69 2,178.03
BMERBHEHREERE IZYN
Scope 1 Emissions (Direct Emissions)'"  Tonnes 31,966.47 51,050.19 78,392.86
E P (B 8
Scope 1 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person 779.67 1,276.25 2,177.58
HEIHREE Wa, A
Scope 2 Emissions (Indirect Emissions)'? Tonnes 16.90 17.23 16.19
&2 2 HFpr (R ) 2 A
Scope 2 Emissions Intensity Tonnes/person 0.41 043 0.45
HE2HENEE PN

144

Scope 1 emissions refer to direct emissions from vehicles owned and managed by
us, the ships and the diesel generator on ships managed by us and the natural
gas combustion at PRC. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of the Stock Exchange, the Guidelines
for Accounting and Reporting Greenhouse Gas Emissions by China Land
Transportation Enterprises (Trial) and the Guide for Calculating Methods and
Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)
issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC, the Reduction of GHG
Emissions from Ships: Fourth IMO GHG Study 2020 — Final Report, and the
Greenhouse Gas Inventory Guidance — Direct Emissions from Mobile
Combustion Sources by the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
Scope 2 emissions refer to indirect emissions resulting from electricity generation
that is purchased by us. The emission data was calculated in accordance with the
2022 emission factors of CLP Group and 2022 China Regional Power Grid Average
Carbon Dioxide Emission Factor published by the National Development and
Reform Commission of PRC.
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BE B 2023 F 20225 2021 4F
Non-hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity'?
BEBRYELEEBREE"S

Household Waste Tonnes 0.45 042 046
AR RIIK 7

Household Waste Intensity Tonnes/person 1.10x10? 1.06x107 1.30x107
HEENIRE R W, A

Wastepaper Tonnes 3.10x103 2.50x107 2.00x10°
JBE 4 73

Wastepaper Intensity Tonnes/person 7.56x10° 6.25x107 5.00x10°
BERTE Wa,/ A

Wastepaper Recycled Tonnes 7.00x10* 6.00x10™ 5.00x10™*
(0] 15 & 4% g

Kitchen Garbage Tonnes 0.20 0.20 0.21
T R 1 U

Kitchen Garbage Intensity Tonnes/person 4.88x103 4.92x107 6.00x107
B R bR 2 2 Wa,/ A

Hazardous Waste Generation and Intensity'
BFERREYELEEREE™

Waste Batteries Tonnes 1.25x103 1.10x107 0.01
BEEEM WA

Waste Batteries Intensity Tonnes/person 3.04x10° 2.76x10° 340x10°
BEEMTE Wa,/ A

Waste Fluorescent Tubes Tonnes 8.00x10* 8.00x10* 4.00x10°
FERRAREE 7]

Waste Fluorescent Tubes Intensity Tonnes/person 1.95x10° 2.00x10° 1.11x10*
BEEXCBERE LEYN

Waste Ink Cartridges Tonnes 1.25x107 8.00x107 0.01
BEEED 7

Waste Ink Cartridges Intensity Tonnes/person 3.05x10* 2.00x10* 3.00x10*
BEREEE LEY@N

Waste Ink Cartridges Recycled Tonnes 2.50x103 2.00x10° 2.00x107
EREES- 8

Waste Electrical Equipment' Tonnes 0 0.028 0.015
BEREEHRE" 7

Waste Electrical Equipment Intensity ~ Tonnes/person 0 7.00x10 4.17x109
BEEBNRETE LEY@N

Waste Electrical Equipment Recycled  Tonnes 0 0.028 0.015
CYEEEE HRE 8

The non-hazardous waste generation data comes from our office in PRC.

B BEEEVEASEBERATEMRER -

The hazardous waste generation data comes from our offices in PRC and Hong BEERVMELEBERATEREERSE
Kong. B °
5 OREWESR UERESERENR

During the Reporting Period, no waste electrical equipment is recorded.
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Social Performance

Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
& By 2023 F 2022 FF 2021 4

Employee Distribution

EBESMH

Total Number of Employee Person 41 40 36
EE#H A
By Gender
w14t 5IZ 5
Male Person 24 23 20
S A
Female Person 17 17 16
g A
By Employment Type
ZIERBHEEE 5
Full-time Person 41 40 36
2 A
Part-time Person (1] 0 0
3R A
By Employee Categories
= 1E X 5 & 5
The Board and Senior Management Person 9 9 8
EEghafEE A
Department Managers Person 7 7 7
E b A
Other Employees Person 25 24 21
H8T A
By Geographical Locations
i = 2 5
PRC Person 33 32 31
s A
HK Person 3 3 2
BB A
Singapore Person 5 5 3
T hN3% A
By Age Groups
HHEHAE 52 7
30 or below Person 7 7 6
30BREIA T A
31-40 Person 10 11 14
31-40 5% A
41-50 Person 16 14 9
41-50 B%, A
51 or above Person 8 8 7
STEREA E A
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BEE B 2023 2022 F 2021 4
Employee Turnover'®
EERK™
Total Number of Employee Turnover Person 1 5 6
BEERKAE A
Total Turnover Rate % 2.44 12.50 16.67
mmR X
By Gender
714t 52 5
Male Number of Turnover Person 1 3 5
S R AE A
Turnover Rate % 4.17 13.04 25
MKt &
Female Number of Turnover Person 0 2 1
pegid R ANE A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 11.76 6.25
Kt
By Geographical Locations
=t i &) 53
PRC Number of Turnover Person 1 5 6
a3 MmEANE A
Turnover Rate % 3.03 15.63 19.35
ot
HK Number of Turnover Person 0 0 0
BB mRANE A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 0.00 0.00
MKt &
Singapore Number of Turnover Person 0 0 0
¥ mARANE A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 0.00 0.00
Kt
16 The turnover rate is calculated based on “Total Number of Employee Turnover per ° MR ERR[GREBBRRAY SRE

category/Total Number of Employee per category”, which is with reference to the

guideline provided by the ESG guide.

BHRBIFE BDE2EGRE HERE

AESID) -

EREEXEEBR AT /202BFFR

147



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERHS

Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BEE By 2023 2022 F 2021 4F
By Age Groups
R FHe il 5l ) 57
30 or below Number of Turnover Person 0 2 1
30BRE AT A AE A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 28.57 16.67
MK b=
30-40 Number of Turnover Person 1 2 2
30-40 5% MARNE A
Turnover Rate % 10.00 18.18 14.29
R b=
41-50 Number of Turnover Person 0 0 2
41-50 5% MmEANE A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 0.00 2222
MK H 2
50 or above Number of Turnover Person 0 1 1
S50pREIA E MR AEL A
Turnover Rate % 0.00 12.50 14.29
MR b=

Employee Training Distribution
ZIRE D

Total Number of Employees Person

Participated in Training 41 35 32
ilfE 8 &R A
By Gender
#1115 & 5
Male Person 24 22 20
EEgis A
Female Person 17 13 12
gegid A
By Employee Categories
% E B 15| 5
The Board and Senior Management Person 9 9 7
ExelaMEEE A
Department Managers Person 7 7 7
E A
Other Employees Person 25 19 18
HiBT A
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BE By 2023 F 20224 2021 4F
Employee Training Hours"’
EEZ IR

Average Training Hours Completed Hour

per Employee 10.24 11.98 262
BHEB A X8 T 158 8 N
By Gender
togi il =By
Male Hour 12.33 15.96 18.10
Bt 2N
Female Hour 7.29 6.59 7.88
egid AN
By Employee Categories
% IE B 2R 5| & 75
The Board and Senior Management Hour 7.11 9.11 7.38
EEghERERE /N
Department Managers Hour 13.50 20.79 20.70
E R B
Other Employees Hour 10.46 10.65 13.50
HtET B

17

The average training hours completed per employee are calculated based on
“Total employee training hours per category/Total Number of Employees
Participated in Trainings per category”, which is with reference to the guideline

provided by the ESG guide.

17

BREETHRXINTHRERIGHES
ZIRRE SEXIEELHIE it
TES2EGRE g RERIESD -
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Indicator Unit 2023 2022 2021
BE By 2023 F 20224 2021 4F
Percentage of Employees Trained'®
THlfEEE DL

Total Percentage of Employees %

Trained™ 100.0 87.5 88.9
XiMEERA DL
By Gender
#1115 & 5
Male % 58.5 62.9 62.5
B4
Female % 41.5 37.1 375
Legd
By Employee Categories
ZIE B2 5| & 75
The Board and Senior Management % 22.0 257 219
EEghaRER
Department Managers % 171 20.0 219
E
Other Employees % 61.0 543 56.3
Hi 8T

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category are
disclosed and calculated based on “Employees took part in trainings in the
category/Total Number of Employees*100%", which is with reference to the
guideline provided by the ESG guide.

9 The total percentage of employees trained are disclosed and calculated based on
"Percentage of employees trained = Employees who took part in training/Number
of employees*100%”, which is with reference to the guideline provided by the
ESG guide.
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RIE HERERHS

CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG GUIDE OF THE STOCK

EXCHANGE

Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements

R H B R R

AEE ]
Description
i

BX(RR e RERIELD

Section

B

Governance Structure

E/H;JIE%

Sustainable Governance

AFHEER

Reporting Boundary
HREE

A statement from the Board containing the
following elements:
HEFSEHNZER EPHE MRS

(i) disclosure of the Board’s oversight of ESG

issues;

) REEFSHRE HENEREEW
BE S -
m B

(i)  the Board's ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to
evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-
elated issues (including risks to the issuer’s
businesses); and

(i) EFETNRE HELELFEEFHK
FHE - B { REFFI R EBEE
IRIR - (g RES *HF‘%%H (BiEEE
TAEBRER) 8BE

(i) how the Board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an
explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

(i) EFFMMARIRT LB REREHE
SR EE  YHECMMAERITA
B HE

A description of, or an explanation on, the
application of the following Reporting Principles in
the preparation of the ESG Report:

il BETRERE e RkE6MEH
el FE A N3 E SRR A :

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of
the ESG Report and describing the process used to
identify which entities or operations are included in
the ESG Report. If there is a change in the scope, the
issuer should explain the difference and reason for
the change.
MERE HehEARENERER &
T MPEPLEBIEBERAARE HER
EoRENARE GERBEFAE - &
TAERENR 2 G MEFRE -

Sustainable Governance

AFEERER

About This Report

About This Report
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BRENEERE ®E HEES B
A. Environment
BRIR
A1 Emissions General Information on: Environmental Performance
ATEERR ) Disclosure  BEARBERIAZERETM « MKE LT Sustainable Operations
—MRRE HWHES - AEREEEEVHESZR : Sustainability Ashore
(@)  the policies; and Sustainable Investment
@ BE:k iﬁi‘*‘%?ﬁ
(b) compliance with relevant laws and Al EE
requlations that have a significant GRS T ?"‘@fj:lﬁf
impact on the issuer A FERE
() BTHETABEAZENHEH
BRI

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.
EE R

A1 The types of emissions and respective Key Performance Summary
emissions data. FAREMRE

BE iR R L ARRE IR -

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1)and energy direct(Scope 2) Key Performance Summary
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, FRESEE
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BE(BE—) MpREE (BEZ) R
EREBAEENE (AMEETE) & (@A)
ZE (MAGESBA - BEREAE) ©

A13 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Key Performance Summary
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per FRENRE
unit of production volume, per facility).

FMEEBEREEYRE (LIETE) X
(ﬁumﬂ%)?f(uuutFE“u HI15
B
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in Key Performance Summary
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity FRENRE
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FELBREREEMEE CAEGHE) X
(WER)ZE (WASEEEN - B1A
Rt E
A15 Description of emission target(s) and steps Green Strategy Highlights in 2023
taken to achieve them Sustainable Ship Designs
HAET B E B IR R AEDEL  Sustainability Ashore
B IR FTERENAY B o Sustainable Investment
203 FRRBEBEER
AR EMA RS
AEERELTE
AIFFEIRE
A16 Description of how hazardous and non- Green Strategy Highlights in 2023
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction Sustainable Ship Designs
target(s) and steps taken to achieve them Sustainability Ashore
HMMEIEREEREZTEEZEYMNITE B 2023 FACHBER
FFERNAEDEL B ZMRIN IR o EEmMRE
ARBEERELIE
A2 Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, Environmental Performance
Resources Disclosure including energy, water and other raw Sustainability Ashore
A2 BIR1E — R E materials. BB s
BRERER(BRER KEEMR AHEERFLETE
FED) BYBUR -
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption Key Performance Summary

by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total

(kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of

production volume, per facility).

REAE SN EE R EERR (N

B Rgol) @EE (U TRETRERAE

&TF(QDLK1F5$4 BEXZ MR
#) o

FARENRE
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
& m BAREANRER KB MBEER B
A22 Water consumption in total and intensity Key Performance Summary
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per FRESEE
facility).
BAEKERTE(WNBESENL &
R E) -
A23 Description of energy use efficiency target(s)  Green Strategy Highlights in 2023
set and steps taken to achieve them Sustainable Ship Designs
e RTEA MR EERRESELE  Sustainability Ashore
TR ERER A 2 B 03 FROEREER
IR B M A AR AT
AREEREETE
A24 Description of whether there is any issue in Environmental Performance
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Green Strategy Highlights in 2023
efficiency target(s) and steps taken to Sustainability Ashore
achieve them. RIBAEA
HHSKEGE A KR EA]BEMBERE - LA 203 F S ER
RIFTTRAKEGREREEREIGELAR AIREEREFLTIE
FTERERE) 2P 5% -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The use of packaging materials

154

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

R mrABREMENES (ABEGTE)
MnER) BEEEM(RE -
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is not material to the Group
due to our business nature.
MR BRMNRBKIEE
BEMHERHAEE
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RIE HERERHS

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
A3 The General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant ~ ESG Risk Management
Environment Disclosure impact on the environment and natural Sustainable Ship Designs
and Natural — R FE resources. Sustainable Operations
Resources BARBITAHRERRAERENEKR BR g REGHER
A3EIRIE M TENBEK - BESE VRS
RREIR AHEES
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of ESG Risk Management
activities on the environment and natural Sustainable Ship Designs
resources and the actions taken to manage Sustainable Operations
them. Sustainable Investment
REBETBHRENRARERNERX RE L8 MELANARERE
TERCEKDEBEETENITE - Tﬁf#ﬁ at
—Hi zt?y\
A4 Climate General Policies on identification and mitigation of Climate Change Response
Change Disclosure  significant climate-related issues which have & ¥ R & &b
IR — MR R impacted, and those which may impact the
issuer.
Bl K EE B Kk %Qﬁ%ﬂAFE
TENBEARFEBEENBR
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  Climate Change Response

issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.

R REHEITAEEZEN
BARIGEBREE  REKELHEH
FENTH -

eSS IR
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
B. Social

e

Employment and Labour Practices

1EIE R4 T # i

BT Employment  General Information on: Protection of Employees’ Rights
BIIE(E Disclosure B : and Interests
— R B R (@ the policies; and REE THERNEF=
@ BX

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

() BIFHETABERTENIEE
ERRIROIER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment Key Performance Summary
type (for example, full- or part-time), age ARENRE
group and geographical region.
RIER - BERL (2REGRE) - FiK
BRI Kb El 5 e e B AR -

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Key Performance Summary
group and geographical region. ARENRE
RIMR - FEAER MR B DR E B IR
KH = o
B2 Health and General Information on: Occupational Health and Safety
Safety Disclosure  BERMHLZE2THERBELREREREE 2 BFERHEAL

BREREZE —REE BEELED

(@)  the policies; and

@ BE: &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

(o) ETHETABERTENIHEREA
ER KA

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

B ERY o
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
& m BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities Occupational Health and Safety
occurred in each of the past three years BERERTS
including the reporting year.
RBE=F (BRBEFE) B IIEBE
ML TEAB R L -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health and Safety
RIGHEEXIIERH - BEERERZS
B2.3 Description of occupational health and Occupational Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are BEERELZS
implemented and monitored.
F At FTER AN A BB R A2 FR B 246 7 - A
KRBT MRERITEA -
B3 Development  General Policies on improving employees’ Learning and Development
and Training Disclosure knowledge and skills for discharging duties 28 B R
BIFR NI —REE at work. Description of training activities.
ERRAREBEITIIEBREMME L
BERIBUR - I F RS o
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by Key Performance Summary
gender and employee category (e.g. senior  BASRAE NI E
management, middle management).
RIEFINEERR (MERERE -+
REBEZ)ESNXIEEBD -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per Key Performance Summary

employee by gender and employee
category.
RIEFINEERBDNETREE TN
FH PR -

FRRAEMRE
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
B4 Labour General Information on: Protection of Employees’ Rights
Standards Disclosure By 1L ZE T k@ HI45 T - and Interests
B4 45 T #E 8] — R E (@ the policies; and RES TH#ERRF=
@ BE: Kk
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
() BTHETABEATZENHEH
ERE KA
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
HEFY
B4.1 Description of measures to review Protection of Employees’ Rights
employment practices to avoid child and and Interests
forced labour. {RIZ B TH)#E ) & F &
i d A 5 R BB B DA 8 SR EE T Ko oA Il 45
THyHEE
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such ~ Protection of Employees’ Rights
practices when discovered. and Interests
MAEZERERBEARERBABENN RES TOEMNEF =R
PREREY 2P 8% -
Operating Practices
=2EED
B5 Supply Chain General Policies on managing environmental and Sustainable Procurement
Management Disclosure social risks of the supply chain. Supply Chain Management
BSftIEEEIE —MEE EIRHEENRE Mg E R BR QIESE £73:
HrEmER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  Supply Chain Management

158

miES D EREE -

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

HrEgEEIE



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%iﬁ * 7‘2'2%&%/6

wE

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  Sustainable Procurement
suppliers, number of suppliers where the Supply Chain Management
practices are being implemented, how they A #5 & £ i5
are implemented and monitored. e
et G RARE A ER VB - mHERTT
BRABHNHEREE  ARBEHAED
BFITRER %
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Sustainable Procurement
environmental and social risks along the GIESE 23
supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored
et G R BRI 3 T EEREN AV IR R 2
tgRBOERN - LARBIEGINENTT
NEERETTE -
B54 Description of practices used to promotes Sustainable Procurement

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Tt A BRE LB R B e i 2 IR IR E m
NRIGHIED - LARBRE BT R
BEETTA -

AR

EREEXEEBR AT /202BFFR
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B

B oHERER®RE

Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=gi:] ARENIEE HE HERERS fEE
B6 Product General Information on: Service Excellence

Responsibility Disclosure  BEAFTRHEERMRGHERELZ S -

BoEm A 1T —RBE EE - BRLALEFE L RMERITAR -

160

(@)  the policies; and

@ BR: R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

() BIFHETABERTENIEE
ERE KA

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to

products and services provided and

methods of redress.

B ERY o

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
EENCDEREMEHTAL 2 EER
BHhmAERNKHBE DL -

B6.2 Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

PR E on KRG BV IRFBLE A R
ke
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= AR S

Due to the business nature of
the Group, matters related to
advertising and labelling of
products and services
provided are not covered
in this Report.

MR AEBEHNEBKIEE -
N R FR A
REEE MEHRBUNEE -

Not relevant to the Group’s
business.

BAREBEEBETEEAE -

Service Excellence

= AR S
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BRERER ®E MEBED HE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  Service Excellence

and protecting intellectual property rights. & AR 7%
ot B A R ARIE A E R D o

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  Recall procedures are not relevant
recall procedures. to the Group's business.
S SR TEREREMmBIUKIZT o 72E n B Wi AE Fr B 7K £ [ 56 75
TR -
The Group will consider disclosing
relevant information on the
quality assurance process in

the future.
REBHRARRE B E
BERTHREN
HEAE R -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection Service Excellence
and privacy policies, how they are RS

implemented and monitored.
MIURE EERRERMLEBBE - LR
HERTRERT A -
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
B7 Anti-corruption General Information on: Anti-corruption
B7RES Disclosure BRI IEERRE - B1R - MEFREERERN: RES
— R (@ the policies; and
@ BER: K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

b) BTHETAGEAZENEHA
N EN G

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BB -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding ~ Anti-corruption
corrupt practices brought against the issuer R &5
or its employees during the Reporting Period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RBEHAHETAIEEERLALD
BRENESHARMBE MFLER -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are KRES
implemented and monitored.

I S HE b R B - A MARRIH
TRERTE-

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
provided to directors and staff. KRES
fmEERE TRENRESHEI -
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Aspect KPI Disclosure Section/Remarks
=] BREXRER ®E MEBED HE
Community
iz
B8 Community General Policies on community engagement to Community Engagement
Investment Disclosure understand the needs of the communities fl@ 2
B8t R IR E — R where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BRALMR2ER T RETANEEME
HEZEZNBEREXKIDEERLR
M Es Y BUR ©
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, Community Engagement
environmental concerns, labour needs, S iE]
health, culture, sport).
EIEREE (HE  RREE 4
IHEKk-f2E b 87) -
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,

to the focus area
HEIHBEFRINER (NEERRE)

there were no community
service activities held in this
Reporting Period. The Group
will consider disclosing relevant
information in the future.

HREFEEE  RARERRA
I AT R ARG IE S o
REEBRARRE BHKE
HEAE R -
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RSM Hong Kong

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

T +852 2598 5123
F +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

RSM

RS- B ES
%E::

EE +852 2598 5123
£ H +852 2598 7230

www.rsmhk.com

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xin Yuan
Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group’) set out on pages 172 to 254, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
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B A% B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter
we identified is the impairment assessment of vessels:

RROER

B REZB ST ASHEMGNEE
B EAN((EBESER]) ETEG -
BHMEZFERTAENEED EAR
SRS R B R RRAENE
EIRE D R R — P M - RIEF B S
fngBEmEE S ERTR ([
B ®&MBIN SE&E YEETT
STRIFEEMBREREE - RAMEE
BPMESHETRERARLEE
RBFINET B RREER

FREETEE
FARETFASREBERMNFRHE
RAHAREE M B RENENFR/E
ENER FULFTHEERMETEER
RAERBHRR & AS R ETRIEN -
BT eH LS RERERANER
P93 RN O BE B B AT IR S M AAORLE Y
i
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

BEETSEEG

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMWETNAEEFERET SR

Impairment assessment of vessels

o AR R (B T

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

R iR a B IMRMEE 19

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's vessels amounted
to US$161,291,000, representing 86% of the Group's total
assets. They are key assets held by the Group and drive its
significant cash flows from the asphalt tanker chartering
services and bulk carrier chartering services. The Group
reviews the carrying amount of its vessels at the end of
each reporting period if impairment indicators are
present.

MR2023F12A31H ESENMMERE
161291000 7T 1 EEBEEH(ESN % F
R BEEERBRENEESE  WRESMHEM
BREEMEMBEMBEELEAHSRE 5
EREREHRRT EMANREER R FER
BIR o

The impairment assessment requires management to
consider both internal and external sources of
information, in determining whether there is any
indication that any vessel may have been impaired. The
assessment of whether impairment indicators are present
requires significant management judgement.
Accordingly, we considered this area as a key audit
matter.
HMEFHRER2EREEE TSRO AP RBREM
A AT B2 2 ORUE RS E B EB K SN BB E R RO © BF A
EEFERENRFTEZEANEREEHE - Fit
BPRALEIEEARBETEIE -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

HPIBEREEERMENENEF SR

— Understand management’s impairment assessment
process, and evaluated the key control procedures
related to management’s identification of indicators
of impairment for vessels;

— THERBMREMHER KA HEEES
Rl RARE R R O BA SR % AR 1

—  Review profitability analysis for each vessel, current
vessel price and any changes in time and voyage
charter rates; and

— EBHEEMMOETNENIIN  BEMMER
ANHERREE RN ERET : &

—  Challenge management’s assessment of whether
indicators of impairment are present.

— HREREYETTEAENRMOTE -
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B A% B R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

SEFEAHHEMENAR -HMEHNBR
FIRARER B B R R IR0 X 2iED
HEIIPTAER

BAUREMBEREANERL TREHR
ER  HATTHZFEMERER
T ANEZ S o

BEKRMYEE M HHRROEF - B
METSHEREMERN FLItBRESd
ZEEMEMEORGAMBHHRRAK
PMEBRTBEFATHENBERAFEEX
HEREUTFFEERERBRAABER o

ERBMERTHIE IREMRBR
Hit B FEEARHERRL  RMFE
BEZFE-#HETE RFRAEM
W o
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

170

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% B R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
Note Uss$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEr FET
Revenue KA 8 58,916 64,124
Cost of sales $H 65 B AN (41,891) (48,882)
Gross profit ERX 17,025 15,242
Other income HAh A 9 1,954 5978
Other gains and losses H b Y25 M B 1R 10 (185) 75
Administrative expenses THRAX (4,350) (4,580)
Other operating expenses Hh & BRI (480) (341)
Profit from operations RE SRR 13,964 16,374
Finance costs Bl & B 12 (5,373) (5442)
Profit before tax BR B AR R 8,591 10,932
Income tax expense FRE T 13 (94) (1
Profit for the year FERFN 14 8,497 10,931
Earnings per share BRER 18
Basic (cents per share) BN (FRRAL) 1.93 248
Diluted (cents per share) g (&) N/A N/A
EAR NEA
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBEERkREtEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 20226
Uss$’000 USs$'000
FEx FET
Profit for the year FEERF 8,497 10,931
Other comprehensive income: Hh 2 EU s -
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A] BE#EEFT 7 FE B m A B -
Exchange differences on translating MEBINEHE R 5
foreign operations 19 (83)
Other comprehensive income BREBEENEFEHMZEKSE
for the year, net of tax 19 (83)
Total comprehensive income FE2EWZARE
for the year 8,516 10,848
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R R

At 31 December 2023 7220234 12 A31 H

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Note US$’000 USS$'000
et FEx FETT
ASSETS &=
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WENEE 19 161,484 122,710
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20 546 47218
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 162,030 169,928
Current assets REBEE
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIT A 21 = 58
Inventories FE 22 1,651 1,777
Trade receivables B 5 EW A 23 333 600
Other receivables, deposits and HEM W FIE - Hae &
prepayments SEENE O 24 965 570
Pledged bank deposits BRREITER 25 - 1412
Bank and cash balances RIT RN EER 25 22,744 38,306
Total current assets RBEEHAE 25,693 42,723
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 187,723 212,651
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERE8E
Share capital AR AR 26 4,400 4,400
Reserves e 28 119,967 127,478
Total equity ERAE 124,367 131,878
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 29 47,323 47,158
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 461 645
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEETE 47,784 47,803
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R R

At 31 December 2023 7220234 12 A31H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
Note US$’000 USS$'000
B aE FEx FETT

Current liabilities REAE
Contract liabilities BHaE 31 130 -
Borrowings &% 29 10,902 13,080
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 185 14,340
Trade payables B 5 ENFIE 32 1,581 3,062
Other payables and accruals EE BN ETE R 33 2,774 2,488
Total current liabilities ABEEHAE 15,572 32,970
Total liabilities BEA%E 63,356 80,773
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREEHEE 187,723 212,651
Net current assets REEEFR 10,121 9,753
Total assets less current liabilities ZEZAEBERABAES 172,151 179,681

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Xu Wenjun

X33

MR2024F3 06 HESEESH A WA
TIATHRREE

FEREXEBARRAR/20BFF5H

Chen Ming
BR 88
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERBREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANTEE AR
Foreign
currency
Share Share Capital Merger translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BE  ROEE EARE  AURE MERERE  REER a3t
US5'000 US$'000 US$'000 US5'000 US5'000 US5'000 US5'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At January 2022 RanE1A1H 4400 74892 9310 833 (35 31,630 121,030
Total comprehensive income and & 2 AN EE K
changes in equity for the year B EE) - - - - (83) 10931 10848
At 31 December 2022 RanE1 AR 4400 74892 9310 833 (118) 42,561 131878
At January 2023 RuBFEIATH 4,400 74,892 9,310 833 (118) 42,561 131,878
Total comprehensive income for FE2 AN L
the year - - - - 19 8,497 8,516
Dividend paid (Note 17) ERRE (HE17) = - - - - (16027)  (16,027)
Changes inequity for the year ~ FEERE - - - - 19 (7,530) (7,51)
At 31 December 2023 RBENANA 4,400 74,892 9,310 833 (99) 35,031 124,367
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Consolidated Statement

RERIRMER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

of Cash Flows

2023 2022
2023 20226
Note Us$’000 US$'000
BT TEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHETRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PR 354 A A 8,591 10,932
Adjustments for: BT IR A
Bank interest income RITH B M 9 (596) (189)
Depreciation of property, Y% BELRRBETE
plant and equipment 14 9,002 7407
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14 1,070 3,424
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BE K&
plant and equipment &= 14 - (5472)
Gain on early extinguishment of leases  #2 F 42 I & /U 25 - 8)
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative  $TE @@ T AR FE
financial instruments, net Eie (W) F58 10 58 (218)
Finance costs 2NN 12 5,373 5,442
Unrealised exchange losses/(gains) KB IRE K AR (W) 8 (25)
Operating profit before working LB B o BRI E R T
capital changes 23,506 21,293
Decrease in inventories FERDP 126 388
Decrease in trade receivables g 5 W FIaER > 267 699
Increase in other receivables, HiaEWFTE - e K
deposits and prepayments TR SRIBE AN (395) (107)
Increase/(decrease) in contract a8adEEm  Cad)
liabilities 130 (257)
Decrease in trade payables B PN IR (1,481) (2,836)
Increase in other payables and H A & A 5RIB I
accruals JEET & FBIE N 286 1,465
Cash generated from operations KEFSIRE 22,439 20,645
Income tax paid ERPEH (94) (1
Interest and bank charges paid ENMERRITFEER (4,628) (3,289
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE (500) (1,487)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBFFRESFE
activities 17,217 15,868
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Note US$’000 USS$'000
B 5 FEx FETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease/(increase) in pledged ERARITFOR D ($E0)
bank deposits 1,412 (13)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank 5 PR HIl$R1T &5 8808 (3 0)
balances 25 4,513 (3,650)
Interest received 2 U 8 596 189
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HENEEZ
plant and equipment FriS s F 58 - 20,533
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME - WE LEE
equipment 19 (2,172) (3,804)
Net cash generated from investing KEEZHMERE T
activities 4,349 13,255
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEITHHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Principal elements of lease payments ~ FHE TR AL EH 34(a) (14,415) (17,253)
Borrowings raised CANEEN 34(a) 12,000 51,935
Repayment of borrowings BEEx 34(a) (14,192) (32,924)
Dividend paid ERIRE 17 (16,027) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from ’EEE (FTA) g
financing activities W FHE (32,634) 1,758
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASEINCASH &R RS ZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) /g hniF 88 (11,068) 30,881
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 [ R %4 &) #) g2 22 19 7
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT REVMNRERBRLSEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 32,549 1,739
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTSAT REXRNBEERBLZEY
END OF YEAR 21,500 32,549
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRESEEYDI
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIR e 22,744 38,306
Less: Restricted bank balances B SR BISRTT A R 25 (1,244) (5,757)
21,500 32,549
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands on 28 June 2016.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 31119, Grand
Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-
1205, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”"). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (‘"HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
and with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

3.

180

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates

HKAS 8
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

Amendments to HKAS  Disclosure of Accounting Policies
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
(b) Revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

3. 3.

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

RAFHIT R BB BB Y&
HEER (8)

(b) T FEMRE M 5 A S MO AE 5 ET
EBHBREER

K 4 3 4 42 8 P T 5 B R
5181 5k HE R AR B B R R B
e

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT B 2%

FRIGH S B E AR

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
FR G ERNE 1R (BN —BEIBARBD AR 202451 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
FEGFERE 1R (BITA) — WHERAENIFERBAE 202451 A1 B
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
TRV BRELENE 165 (BFTA) - EROENHERE 20241 A1 H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements —

1 January 2024

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on

Demand Clause

BERBESH (BEDMBHRRZE)N —ERAHBSBHEREE

Xz BHER 2 DR
Amendments to HKAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability
AT ERIE 215 (BATA) —RZ A 4t

The directors of the Group anticipate that the application of
all amendments to HKFRSs will not have material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

20241 H1H

1 January 2025
202551 A1 H

AEBEREN BRAEE
BHMBHREEABTAKTE
B RARKNGZAEMBEHREKRE
REAZE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 4, BERETHERER

182

INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The area
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed in Note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity's
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

184

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Separate financial statements

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received or
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Foreign currency translation

(c)

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
United States dollars ("US$"), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items
that are measured at fair value in foreign currencies
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

186

INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Vessels

Vessels, other than vessels under leases which were
classified as right-of-use assets (Note 4(e)(i)), are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Vessels (other than the abovementioned vessels
under lease and the dry-docking component) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 10-25 years, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. Depreciation method,
estimated useful lives and estimated residual values
are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

Upon acquisition of a vessel, the components of the
vessel which are required to be replaced at the next
dry-docking are identified and their costs are
depreciated over the period to the next estimated
dry-docking date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-
docking of the vessels are capitalised and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. When significant dry-docking costs incurred
prior to the expiry of the depreciation period, the
remaining costs of the previous dry-docking are
written off immediately.
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4.

188

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(ii) Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
is calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates

are as follows:

Office equipment and motor vehicle
Leasehold improvement

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of

an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

(e)

consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from

that use.

(i)

The Group as lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

190

(e)

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the individual lessee, which does
not have recent third-party financing, and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to
the lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

(e)

(i)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus
any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

192

(e)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the
Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group as lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EREFHERERER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)
(f) Inventories

Inventories comprise bunker and lubricant oil for vessels
remaining on board at the end of the reporting period.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
Net realisable value is the expected amount to be realised

from use as estimated by the directors/management.

(g) Contract assets and contract liabilities

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECL") in accordance with the policy set out in Note
4(w) and are reclassified to receivables when the right to

the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be

recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of

unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued

under the effective interest method.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred

or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EREFHEERER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)

()

(k)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.
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INFORMATION (Continued)

)

(m)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
COsts.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from voyage charter and contract of affreightment
("CoA") is recognised over time when the asphalt tanker
chartering services are performed.

Revenue from vessel management services is recognised
over time when the management services are performed.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(q) Revenue and other income (Continued)

198

(r)

Rental income from time charter and bulk carrier charter is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of each
charter, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(ii) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw

(iii)

the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(s)

(t)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing that remain
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended
use or sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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INFORMATION (Continued)
(u) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit
and at the time of transaction does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(u) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

202

(v)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the
case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less
costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values
are computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
pro rata amongst the assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade and
other receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.
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4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the 10ss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained
from economic expert reports, financial analysts,
governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar
organisations, as well as consideration of various external
sources of actual and forecast economic information that
relate to the Group’s core operations.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
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4. EREFHEHERER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

XIN YUAN ENTERPRISES GROUP LIMITED / ANNUAL REPORT 2023

w) ERHEEREGHNEERE

(#&)

FERBRAEEM (&)
LER  FHEEERRA S
FERIAKR A B ARIEEINE S
B NIER

— @I ENFR(WE)HIA
=BT ERR T8 H
EREL

— HESRMIAGERRD
SNEP ISR R ERRIL |

— TEHIREREMSABRITE
EFETHEE D KIE T
BETS - MBS EEM R
VIR A S TR A &

— BEHRARLERENERX
BHBEAR

— R—EBANEGLTRT
AW EERRAREEN

— BHEBABRTHERER
ERRE N AR MR ER
AEE « EBERXMIRE
MERSFBHEATHE
) o

Aam L PR SR - AR &
BRAaNNZaRBE®30 818
AT - BEEBREEZEER
% B V)RR AR E K IE 1§
mEAEEESEREERERE
X2 BRBURB AL SE Mt
AtERG



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{ZE 2023 12 A31 B IEFE
4, BERETEHRER (&)
w EREERGHNEERE

4, MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)
(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(I The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(I Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood
definition or if an external rating is not available, the asset
has an internal rating of “performing”. Performing means
that the counterparty has a strong financial position and
there are no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.
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4.

206

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts
assets (Continued)
Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
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4. EREFHEHERER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(w) Impairment of financial assets and contracts

assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the exposure
at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY

4. EREFHEERER @)

INFORMATION (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

(x)

(y)
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5.

210

Bt 75 R 2R Y &

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

In applying the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in Note 4, the directors are required to make judgements (other
than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact
on the amounts recognised and to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset;
and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2023 were approximately
USS$161,484,000 (2022: USS$122,710,000) and US$546,000 (2022:
US$47,218,000) respectively.
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6.

212

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of respective Group entities such as Singapore
dollars ("SGD") and Renminbi ("RMB”"). The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

At 31 December 2023, if USS$ had strengthened/weakened
5 per cent against SGD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been approximately US$4,000 (2022: US$224,000)
higher/lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange losses/gains (2022: gains/losses) on bank and
cash balances (2022: bank loans) denominated in SGD.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Trade receivables and contracts assets

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables, for voyage
charter, generally are due within five business days
after completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the
balances generally are due within three business days
after completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage
claims, the balances normally are due within 30 days
after the finalisation. Debtors with balances that are
more than 3 months past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases. The
ECL rate of current trade receivables and contract
assets is assessed to be 0% (2022: 0%). No loss
allowance provision was recognised during the year
(2022: Nil).

Other receivables

The Group assessed that the ECL for other receivables
are not material under 12-month expected losses
method. No loss allowance provision was recognised
during the year (2022: Nil).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. THERERE®)

(c) Liquidity risk () REBESER
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and REEMHRE AT HHERBA
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains RIBHOREE TR - AW
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements RAKEEHFTHRSHEHEE
in the short and longer term. NEGHERARBESTEK -
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEEFETESRABERER
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities ABERERELINNIN S
is as follows: T
On demand Between Between
or within 1and 2and Over
2years 5years 5years Total
RERS
MER 122% 2E5F S5EHNLE st
UsS$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TEn FE TErn TEn
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H
Borrowings fE 20,868 29,350 5,628 71,486
Lease liabilities MEER 235 278 - 753
Trade and other payables B 5 R E o BT 5B - - - 2,590
At 31 December 2022 R2022612A31A8
Borrowings B 13,822 36,243 5,161 72,732
Lease liabilities MHERE 240 512 - 15878
Trade and other payables & 5 R H i B 318 - - - 4192

(d) Interestraterisk

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk mainly arises from
its bank deposits, and other loans. Bank deposits of
approximately US$4,000,000 (2022: US$5,413,000) and other
loans of approximately US$11,707,000 (2022:
US$14,049,000) bear interest at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk. Bank
deposits of approximately US$16,587,000 (2022:
US$15,060,000), bank loans and other loans of
approximately USSNil (2022: US$4,618,000) and
US$46,518,000 (2022: USS$41,571,000) respectively bear
interest at variable rates varied with the then prevailing

market condition.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Bt 75 R 2R Y &

Interest rate risk (Continued) (d)
At 31 December 2023, if interest rates had been 100 basis

points lower/higher with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately US$299,000 (2022: US$643,000) higher/

lower, arising mainly as a result of lower/higher interest

expense.

6. THERERE®)

= ks (48)

R2023F12A31H AR T
&,/ EF100EEE MAE
Eﬁﬂ“ai’&%T“ Al F Z 4R
AR E SR BIE N B DL
299,000 3 7T (20224 : 643,000
o) EBREMNEAIT
B&,/ EFHFTER o

Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e) MA2023F12HA31HZz &/
December 2023 TEREER
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEr FET
Financial assets: TREE:
Financial assets mandatorily BHlEAFEFABRIE
measured at FVTPL W mEE
— derivative financial instruments —PTEERT A - 58
Financial assets measured at REHERK AT ENEREE
amortised cost 23,365 40,659
Financial liabilities: cRAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR E R AT EN SR B E 60,815 64,430
Lease liabilities MHEEE 646 14,985
Fair values H 2FE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and iR E BTG AR 3R N R B 8 7R
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement SEemEERSRMBENR

of financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in

circumstances that caused the transfer.

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31

AFEE

ATEANSSERENHEAME
B R 5 R H 6 B
AT (2 @45 o T AT EE
SHBIRAEAT A EHERZ
EEH A AR RAZEER
WATEER :

F-—RBABE AKERFER
HA G ZHEREELBBERERE
M52 ME CREHE) o

F_RBARE TERAEER
RZBEXNBBENBAZE(TE
EE—BRAZRE) -

F=RBWABE: EEXAEBETH
BRZBARE -

AREBOBRAEEHERNEMH
SERBEHNERER =EFRE
AEAREL -

(@) MR2022F128318 22 ¥F

December 2022: EEREE:

Fair value measurements using: At 31
FEATIERNATENE December
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2022
PR 20225
R ER FH F=#%H 12A3H
USs$'000 US$'000 US$'000 USS$'000
TEr FT=r FT=Erx FEx

Recurring fair value REMEQNTETE:

measurement:
Financial assets TRMEE

Interest rate swap contracts ~ #l| Eig Hi & 4 - 58 - 58
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{ZE 2023 12 A31 B IEFE

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. QAVEFEE)

(b) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (b) AEBMR2022F12A31H
Group and valuation techniques and inputs used AR EREFUARATE
in fair value measurements at 31 December STEFEAGERERRBA
2022: B E
Level 2 fair value measurements E_HZATETE

Assets
Valuation EE
Description technique Inputs 2023 2022
it fHE R % WA 2023 F 20224
US$'000 US$'000

Fxx TET

Derivatives

PTETHE

— Interest rate swap Discounted cash flows Interest rate - 58
contracts Discount rate

— FEEEA 4 FRASRE F 5 3735

There were no changes in the valuation techniques used. FrAfEER AW mES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

8. REVENUE 8. WA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by F N R AR 75 B W T 52 B T 81 5 |
services and the timing of revenue recognition for the year are as KEBEPEHMBADT :
follows:
2023 2022
2023 2022 F
USs$’000 US$'000
FTEx F=ET
Revenue from contracts with ERMBBREERE15H
customers within the scope of HERNREBEFEHHBA
HKFRS 15
— Voyage charter and CoA, —RRERBESYH  DERER
recognised over time 19,856 30,808
Revenue from other sources REHMBRAEA
— Time charter — HiFR 39,060 33,316
58,916 64,124
9. OTHERINCOME 9. HMWA
2023 2022
2023 2022
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 596 189
Compensation income BEWA 1,323 271
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  WELRZREBERZE
plant and equipment - 5472
Government grants (Note) BT # B (M%) - 4
Gain on early termination of lease REXR EFHEN RS - 8
Sundry income HMIEIA 35 34
1,954 5978

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies provided by

the governments of Singapore and Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10. Hib iz R 518

11.

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
USs$’000 US$'000
FTEx F=E7T

Fair value (losses)/gains on derivative TESMIAEAFE
financial instruments, net (E518), W F 5 (58) 218
Exchange losses, net ME H 518 F 5 (127) (143)
(185) 75

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has two operating segments as follows:

Asphalt tanker chartering  —  Provision of asphalt tanker

services chartering services

Provision of bulk carrier
chartering services

Bulk carrier chartering —
services

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include unallocated
interest revenue, unallocated interest expense, unallocated
corporate income and unallocated corporate expenses. Segment
assets do not include certain other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and certain bank and cash balances. Segment
liabilities do not include certain lease liabilities and certain other
payables and accruals. Segment non-current assets do not
include certain property, plant and equipment.

L SEER
REEEATMIELEDE :

ESHENR — RHEESM
AR %5 A AR
HEmEs  — REHEEm
AR %5 A AR
REBAETZHRNDAH/EETR

E%&HEWW@X%%%&M o EZ%
DEOHERE  RRAASEKS
AN[E) A9 FE AT K e g B o

DERR S At R AR A M R
%Wﬁﬁﬁi_%iﬁlﬂ ° 7> HB it A 3
BERETERERD @Eﬂgl&)\ RO

HA\

EE?"J%?%EZ A BE A A ROR
NG ’\ﬁliiéf?T@%**
?Hﬁﬂﬁgl& RIR -~ RE MR FR

ARETRITEREHER - D EE
BErERETHERRE LA&%?%
A RIB R BB - 2 #B3E R
HEETBRETYE BEER
o
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DEEHR (B)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, ERERE S WENDEHE  EE
assets and liabilities: REENEHR :
Asphalt

tanker Bulk carrier
chartering  chartering

services services Total
Vi iz AE /A
A PR 7% e PR 7% et

US$'000 Us$’000 Us$’000
FXR TR FTXR

Year ended 31 December 2023: #E(Z2023F12H31H

LFE:

Revenue from external customers R B NGB P AYUA 53,511 5,405 58,916
Segment profit pal=ipinkl 11,317 1,123 12,440
Interest expense B 4,357 942 5,299
Depreciation e 8,523 1,268 9,791
Income tax expense Frigtif 2 - 2
Additions to segment non-current  NE D BEIERENE E

assets 2,155 - 2,155
As at 31 December 2023: M2023F12H8318:
Segment assets DEEE 160,323 13,956 174,279
Segment liabilities nEBE 50,138 11,707 61,845
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #{ZE 2023 12 A31 B IEFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2EEHR (B)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FRARE s RRTEE  EE
assets and liabilities: (Continued) REENER : (8)
Asphalt
tanker Bulk carrier
chartering chartering
services services Total
BT M ARE M
i AR 75 i AR 75 et
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
F=T FET F=ET
Year ended 31 December 2022: B ZE202F12A31H
IEFE
Revenue from external customers R B NGB P AYUA 53,536 10,588 64,124
Segment profit 7 86 A 6,898 8,144 15,042
Interest expense A BEHX 3,859 1,487 5,346
Depreciation e 8,465 2,076 10,541
Income tax expense FRiS TR X 1 - 1
Other material item of incomeand ~HiE XWX IERE :
expense:
Gain on disposal of property, plant ~ HE W% - KE &
and equipment BEWE - 5,472 5,472
Additions to segment non-current A B D SBIEMENE E
assets 2,243 1,337 3,580
As at 31 December 2022: 2022612 A318 :
Segment assets DEEE 177,996 15,622 193,618
Segment liabilities HEEE 64,860 14,049 78,909
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DEEHR (B)
Reconciliations of segment profit or loss: DRGSR R -
2023 2022
2023 2022
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Revenue LBU\
Total revenue of reportable segments AT EWmMHHWALEE 58,916 64,124
Profit or loss AR B
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 78 F £ ¥R 7 56 & £ sk & 18 48 12,440 15,042
Unallocated interest revenue Ao BEH B WA 297 71
Unallocated interest expense KD EE ﬂ NG (74) (96)
Unallocated corporate income KO R E 2 10
Unallocated corporate expenses FoBERAFIAX (4,074) (4,095)
Consolidated profit before tax %3 %R Al fo\é i A 8,591 10,932
Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: PTHEEREGEHER:
2023 2022
2023 20226
Uss$’000 US$'000
FER FET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments BATEWMHHEERE 174,279 193618
Unallocated amounts: R BERUA -

Other corporate assets EMAREE 13,444 19,033
Consolidated total assets mEBEERE 187,723 212,651
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ATEBHIABERTE 61,845 78,909
Unallocated amounts: AR5 B RIE

Other corporate liabilities HEt A R&E 1,511 1,864
Consolidated total liabilities meaBEERE 63,356 80,773
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11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7 EER (&)
Geographical information: WEEE :
Revenue WA

The Group's business is managed on a worldwide basis. The
revenue is generated from provision of asphalt tanker chartering
services and provision of bulk carrier chartering services which
are carried out internationally, and the way in which costs are
allocated, preclude a meaningful presentation of geographical
information.

Non-current assets
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, over 99% of the Group's non-
current assets are vessels.

The vessels are primarily utilised across geographical markets for
shipment of liquid asphalt and dry bulk cargo throughout the
world. Accordingly, it is impractical to present the locations of the
vessels by geographical areas and thus no segment analysis is
presented.

AEBNEBEMEZIK - RHES
Y A A AR 7% Ko 1R B E M AR s AR TS
(E2BREBEARER) EENRA KR
DERANTASTH2IEREE R

IRBEE
R2023F K202 12A31H A&
B 5 99% MIEREIEE AMM

MMEZRREERESHWET S
BEERBIES RIFRAEM -
It R IR (S 15 2 5 A AR B I A
B MY EZ 5 DO

Revenue from major customers: KEHFEEFHWWKWA :
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Provision of asphalt tanker chartering 1= it JE & #5718 fi IR 7%
services
Customer A BEFEA 12,511 11,099
Customer B ZFEB 9,114 6,958
Customer C EPFC 8,663 16,884
Customer D (Note) ZFED (M) N/A
7,934 E A

Note: Revenue from Customer D represented less than 10% of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

e 2RERP DM AN AREBE = 2022912 A

3INEIEFEWATRI0% ©
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12. @& KA
2023 2022
2023 2022 %F
US$’000 USS$’000
FEx FET
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEZMEMZ (M3E20)

(Note 20) 574 1,579
Interest rate swap expenses F R HFA - 57
Interest on borrowings EE S 4,799 3,806

5,373 5,442
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FREBIBA X

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: RBREANERHFE/ROT
2023 2022
2023 20224
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEn FET

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income EVERRRIE — AP B AT

Tax ("PRC EIT") (HEEMREHR])

Provision for the year NEEEAE 92 -
Current tax — Singapore Corporate BVHATR IE — 3T AN3

Income Tax EFH

Underprovision in prior year TFEREBEIR 2 1
Income tax expense FriS i < 94 1

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") and Singapore.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
subsidiaries’ income are derived from overseas sources which are
not liable to Hong Kong Profits Tax or the subsidiaries have no
assessable profit for the year (2022: Nil).

Singapore Corporate Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
17% (2022: 17%) except that the income of the subsidiaries in
Singapore derived from vessel owning and chartering is
exempted from Singapore Corporate Income Tax.

Under the Law of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, PRC EIT has been
provided at a rate of 25% for the year (2022: Nil).
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13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate is as follows:

Fﬁ S BB 5T (4
5 %Rﬁ'ﬂiﬁéﬁiﬁffﬁﬁl i KSR A E B
%'J?%ﬁﬁ%Fﬁ?%nu%ﬂﬁffﬁ%lzDT

2023 2022

2023 2022

Uss$’000 US$'000

TEx FET

Profit before tax B B A& A 8,591 10,932
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% &% /8 F| 15 Fi 57 & 16.5%

(2022: 16.5%) (20224F : 16.5%) FF E BT IE 1,417 1,804
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARMIM ARG E (10,071) (11,613)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ ] 314 5 Sz 89 Fi 75 52 28 8,280 9,515
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTBABENORGLE 582 453
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  Mi/B AR TR XA FE (116) (159)
Underprovision in prior year TFERETR 2 1
Income tax expense Fr St F 2 94 1

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately US$3,832,000 (2022: US$4,609,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax assets have been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
from those loss making subsidiaries. The aforesaid unused tax
losses of the Group have not yet been agreed by respective tax
authorities. The expiry dates of unrecognised tax losses are
summarised as follows:

R2023F 128318 KREBAXH
FA %% T8 /&5 18 49 3,832,000 3 7T (2022
F 1 4,609,000 7T) ATt AR 85 R
KoaHl e HBRZEHEEENNE
QET%*X@?TIJ/mTT%E/EIJ ﬁ&jl
EHAREMIBEEE - LR AKHE
KRB A BIE B M R S AE R R S 1
BRE - RERTIEE BN A
AT

On 31 December 2023
On 31 December 2024
On 31 December 2025
On 31 December 2026
On 31 December 2027
On 31 December 2028

MR2023F 12 A31H
R 2024F 12 A31H
202512 4318
R2026F 12 4318
2027 F 12 A31H
20284 12 A31H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
- 799

973 971
1,227 1,225
1,019 1017
598 597

15 -
3,832 4,609
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FE&R
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) RNEBFERMNDENE(GTA)
the following: T3 &BEEZT
2023 2022
2023 F 20226
US$’000 USS$’000
FEr FETT
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B 2 T 136 132
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEMEETE
equipment 9,002 7,407
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 1,070 3424
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  WER&RBRZE
equipment - (5,742)
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAMX
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Employee benefits expense: EERMAX :
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e fBANORER 1,744 1,716
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K18 ) 51 2| 4L 3k 151 130
1,895 1,846
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has joined defined contribution retirement
schemes for the employees arranged by local government
labour and security authorities (the “PRC Retirement
Schemes”). The Group makes contributions to the PRC
Retirement Schemes at the applicable rates based on the
amounts stipulated by the local government organisations.
Upon retirement, the local government labour and security
authorities are responsible for the payment of the
retirement benefits to the retired employees. Contributions
made to the Central Pension Scheme vest immediately.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong
Kong) for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws
of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to
the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group's subsidiaries operating overseas are required to
make contribution, no forfeited contributions will be used
by the employers to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

15. EEEABAX (®)

(a)

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH

RAE — ERAKGE
AEERTBERBEEERE
BEZAMTERHEFRNEEIE
H B o

RIBEFENBEBERIER
AEECREESINEE R
T8 B4R & B % BE 9 TE B i
FOR R ER & ([ & B R 4K &
8  AEEREE BT
BRENSBIZEE L RMA
O BR R ET Bl R o AR
% BEMBRASBHLRERA
B AR E B ST RIRAEF) o
A AR SRR R 5 81 F H RO SR
THENRSER B -

REBREEF B EFIFE48E
SR B ERTEESFTENEGIE e —
Hog b ATEEFE ([RES
B BWRAEBBEFFEST
ERBEAIEEHE T 2R
B g Eertal i —HERE M
FORRETE - ABUETAR
EEE -RERESE &
FREEERBELKEERH
W A B 5% [A) 58 & € 71 &) 1F
w"H BAERAKANERA
30,0008 7T © [A] 58 15 & 7t &I 1
H R R TI RS SR o

RIBH RBERERGHE - N
BEEIME LN B AR MBA
EHEF SO ERTE
WIEERIERDIRA HFOKFE
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued)

15. EEEABAX (®)

228

(a)

(b)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (Continued)
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 31 December 2022 and 2023 under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included four (2022: four) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in Note 16. The emoluments of the remaining
one (2022: one) individual are set out below:

(a) BRE — EEMIAKEE(H)
B E2022F K 2023F 12 A 31
HIEFE  AEERFBERNK
FrEIRsaE ST &I TR
R UE R - TR FE 8 WA
HAATBRAEEARNRIRE
HEFOK T o 722022 F F 2023 F
12A31H @ AERRKETEI &4
BerrEIIE T EEL A #
KOBAAEBEARNB D RRE
[ERERTEIfHER -

(b) EEERESHFMAL
FRAAEERERSFHMAL
REREINE (20224F : U%R) &
EHEGMAM IR - K
th—H (02F : —%) ALTH
s

2023 2022

2023 F 2022

US$’000 USS$'000

FTEx FETT

Salaries and allowances e MERL 86 96
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 33 59
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & 4K 1& |5 21| £ Fx - 4
119 159

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEFMO R THIEEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = % 1,000,00078 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T = 1
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EETEANRER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EZHM
The emoluments of each director are set out below: BEENHME T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

PREFALAZERBELAAESRERENELAREREH

Retirement

benefit

Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total

BB
e  HERER BiEEA B st
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER TER Txn TER TER

Year ended BZ23 %
31 December 2023 12ANALEE

Mr. Chen Ming 5y 85 - 32 - 17
Mr. Chen Jiagan RRBEE 178 - 65 6 249
Mr. Xu Wenjun ®XHEE 153 - 59 - 212
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TEEI%E 31 - 11 - )
Mr. Lin Shifeng NS - m 39 5 155
Mr. Suen Chi Wai BEERE 31 - 8 - 39
Mr. Wei Shusong REDLE 31 - 8 - 39
Mr. Xu Jie RiERE 31 - 8 - 39

540 m 230 1 892

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 229



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEARER (B)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEHM (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

PEAFAAAEMBELAESREREME N REREHH

Retirement
benefit
Salariesand  Discretionary scheme
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
EARERIE
e FHERER Mg & EHY
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
TER TEn Txr TER TER
Year ended HZnf
31 December 2022 12A31BLEE
Mr. Chen Ming 5y e 89 - 58 - 147
Mr.Chen Jiagan (Note) ~ FRR & 55 4 (Fii7E) 149 - %3 4 246
Mr. Xu Wenjun mxaEsE 161 - 103 - 264
Mr. Ding Yuzhao TESI%EE 30 - 9 - 39
Mr. Lin Shifeng NS 108 - 69 5 182
Mr. Suen Chi Wai REBLE 31 - 7 - 38
Mr. Wei Shusong RENKE 31 - 7 - 38
Mr. Xu Jie AL 31 - 7 - 38
630 - 353 9 992
Note: Appointed on 11 March 2022 BsE R 2022F3 A 11 BEZ T
There were no arrangements under which a director waived FARBESHNEXRENRE
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year, there EREHMNZEE - BREEE
was no director received any emolument from the Group REEWEEA M2 ERMA
as an inducement to join the Group and there was no REEHEE - TFEESE W
director received any compensation for the loss of office EATBER A (S (20226 - &) -
(2022: Nil).
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors of the Company received any
termination benefits during the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

Consideration provided to receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
did not pay considerations to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 37, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate and connected entities with directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the
Company or subsidiary undertakings of the Company,
where applicable, in favour of any directors, their controlled
bodies corporate and the directors’ connected entities
(2022: Nil).

16. EEEAN R ER (&)
(b) EERIRBFEEF

(c)

(d)

(e)

REZE20203F 128318 IEF
B ARREEBEWE(ER
KA BRTEAE R (20224F « #E) o

REFIESE=FUEM
ARAEERBENKE
REZE2023F 128318 ILF
E AREYERE=STEZN
RETBESRBEHRE (2022
F | o

EERRS  THIEHFP
MEX#ERE

BRETEE37 AT EE SN - BB
RARFERINAFEAEM
BN A FEN B RE R
B ARBIREFINTER
NEBESEREFCHEALTE
BEYAHERETHAE R
MEMEARS K REH -

BEUES HIEZZIER
HEEERAZTRANE
R EERRHEMRZNE
REZ2023F12A31BIEHF
R /N % NS o[ TSN
AlI(NER) MENES - EX
EEEREENHEERAT
mARIVEMNER EER K
HMRZ 5 (20224 « ) o

EREEXEEBR AT /202BFFR 231



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR
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17. DIVIDEND 17. BE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
USs$’000 US$'000
FER F=E7T
Special dividend of HK$0.285 EERIRE R EBER
(2022: Nil) per ordinary share paid 0.285 77T (2022 F : #&) 16,027 -
18. EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the BREARZNETEERATEIE -
following:
2023 2022
2023 2022
USs$’000 US$'000
FER F=ET
Earnings ZF
Profit for the year attributable to RNRBIEB ABIMRFE R
owners of the Company 8,497 10,931
‘000 ‘000
TR T &
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of L5 AR N 8L
ordinary shares 440,000 440,000
No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year ended AT EEERETERR Bt
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil) as there was no potential ordinary WEZHNEZE2023F12 431 HIEF
share outstanding. EREREERF (2022F : &) o
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥  BERZE

Office
equipment
Vessels and and motor Leasehold
dry-docking vehicle improvement Total
MHEREE BOAREBRAE HEWEEE st
US$'000 US$'000 USS$'000 US$'000
TEx TET TET TET
Cost DN
At 1 January 2022 20241 A1H 137,205 158 137,363
Additions NE 3,580 62 162 3804
Disposal HE (18415) - - (18415)
Transfer from right-of-use assets % B {F A& E 47,778 - - 47,778
Exchange differences BN EH - (12) ) (21)
At 31 December 2022 and R202F 128318 R
1 January 2023 203F1A1H 170,148 208 153 170,509
Additions NE 2,155 12 5 2,172
Transfer from right-of-use assets & E{F L E 55,943 = = 55,943
Write off Pask ] (1,157) - - (1,157)
At 31 December 2023 2023128318 227,089 220 158 227,467
Accumulated depreciation ~ RFTITE
At 1 January 2022 720221 A1H 23839 69 - 23,908
Charge for the year FERNB 7,355 30 2 7407
Disposal HE (3,354) - (3354)
Transfer from right-of-use assets 8 5 1§ FR#E 4 & 19,842 - - 19,842
Exchange differences i 5 =58 - 3) M )
At 31 December 2022 and R202F12A8318B R
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 47,682 2 21 47,799
Charge for the year FRME 8,934 36 32 9,002
Transfer from right-of-use assets & B {f A& & 10,339 - - 10,339
Write off ke (1,157) - - (1,157)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F 128318 65,798 132 53 65,983
Carrying amount RREE
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A31H 161,291 88 105 161,484
At 31 December 2022 20229128318 122,466 112 132 122,710

At 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of vessels pledged
as securities for the Group's bank loans and other loans
amounted to approximately USSNil (2022: US$29,331,000) and
US$99,855,000 (2022: US$89,673,000) respectively (Note 29).

ERITEN

B2023F 128318 BHEAAE
R H B FRE AR &9 M A
REED N AHOZTEIT (20224F :
29,331,0003 7T ) %% 99,855,000 3 7T

(2022 : 89,673,000 7t.) (Mt

29) o

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH
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19. 1% - BMERREE)
M2023FE 124228 REBE—F
B E=H R EMME]LHE
84 K18 516,950,000 7T ° i fH B
REEMBEMRIEAETEHRD I -
REWR2024F 31 BEK °

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
On 22 December 2023, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of a vessel, at a
cash consideration of US$16,950,000. The vessel is within the
reportable segment of bulk carrier chartering services. The
transaction was completed on 1 March 2024.

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. ERAEEE
Leased

Vessels properties Total

i AR HEY= #Er

Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

FET FTET FET

At 1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 77,583 289 77,872

Additions =T - 993 993

Depreciation e (3,186) (238) (3,424)

Early extinguishment REKRIEEE - (230) (230)
Transfer to property, HEYE BWERRE

plant and equipment (27,936) - (27,936)

Exchange differences b H, 2= %8 - (57) (57)

At 31 December 2022 2022512 A31H 46,461 757 47,218

Depreciation e (857) (213) (1,070)
Transfer to property, HEYE WERRE

plant and equipment (45,604) - (45,604)

Exchange differences M W, = 5E - 2 2

At 31 December 2023 2023512 A31H - 546 546

20235128318  RAHEEAE
#9646,000 3 7T (2022 4F : 14,985,000
ZEJT) - AR A E E #9546,000
E 7T (20224 : 47,2180003 7T) ° K&
HHEARENHEEE EERER (M
FE30) 40 - FHE % W BE AN (1R
RE - HEEGCHEEERERR
L (2022 4F © 46,461,000 TT) ©

Lease liabilities of approximately US$646,000 (2022:
US$14,985,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately US$546,000 (2022: US$47,218,000) as at 31
December 2023. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor (Note 30). There is no other leased
asset that was used as security for borrowing purposes (2022:
US$46,461,000).
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20.

21.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20. ERAEEE®)
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Depreciation expenses on TRAREENITEERR
right-of-use assets 1,070 3424
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAENFERX
(included in finance costs) (GFARE R A) 574 1,579
Expenses relating to short-term leases HGHBEERENRAX
(included in administrative expenses) (FFATTHAX) 25 25
Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in Note 34(b). HERES RO BREFBFIHNME

For both years, the Group leases certain vessels and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms
ranging from 1 to 5 years (2022: 1 to 5 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

No lease of the Group includes an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.

34(b) °

RREFE  ASBERRARERE
EETHMERAZE -FIUMEE
BHETHR A1 E25F (2022F 1
E5F) o HEMRKIIILE I EAERE
B BESETRAER AR -
FAEE TE R HA K B4 AN 0 S HARR B
AEEERAAGYNEETYETASD
Al sR HBITRIHARR ©

AEEMNHEBRTBESRENE®
BEBAIREIERE -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fTEE€RMI A
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
US$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
Financial assets cREE
Fair value of interest rate swap contracts ~ F| R HI& 4 A FE - 58

The Group entered into certain interest rate swap contracts with
banks to manage its interest rate exposure.

The interest rate swap contracts were measured at FVTPL. The fair
value had been estimated using discounted cash flows that are
based on interest rates and discount rates. At 31 December 2023,
there were no outstanding interest rate swap contracts.

AREBERITRILE THEREHE
MAEIEEM KRR -

AR EA O A FEF ABR
B RAFENFEAERFERITE
EMIIRIA S REMAEET o R2023F
12A318 WEHKRTHEZFEE
HIE 4 -
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22.

23.

236

= B %% ¥R R MY R

INVENTORIES 22. &
2023 2022
2023 & 2022
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FE7T
Bunker and lubricant oil for vessels A RRR L K2 BB 1,651 1,777

TRADE RECEIVABLES

For time charter, the Group generally receives monthly
prepayments from customers. For voyage charter, the Group
generally receives full payments within five business days after
completion of cargo loading. For CoA, the Group generally
receives full payments within three business days after
completion of cargo discharging. For demurrage claims, the
balances are normally paid within 30 days after the finalisation.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

23. ESEWFIE

RHEMmE  ARE-RERARE
FPYETENZ - pliglEmME » A&
E-ReaRETKEAEEXA
MR 2 EF0E - LEEARNME -
AEE-BRERHER=[\ZX
BARKEBREEHIE - ERNFHER
B ARESR - MRNEERIOARA
Xt BREFHUARSEERHE
RE B BRI S LR EERKFIR -
EETHmABRER -

BRERZHH2II0E ZRKFIAR
woMT

2023 2022

2023 & 2022

US$'000 US$'000

FEx FET

0 to 30 days 0&30H 333 600

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
denominated in USS.
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24, OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

25.

24 HEWRTE RERAARK

PREPAYMENTS |
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 5
US$’000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Other receivables H b & W sk I8 153 60
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 812 510
965 570

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

At 31 December 2023, bank balances of approximately
USS$ 1,244,000 (2022: US$4,098,000) were restricted from being
used and charged over the Group’s other loans (2022: bank and
other loans) (Note 29).

At 31 December 2023, bank balances of approximately USSNil
(2022: US$1,659,000) were restricted from being used and
charged over the Group's lease liabilities (Note 30).

At 31 December 2023, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in RMB and kept in the PRC amounted to
approximately US$59,000 (2022: US$8,087,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

25 CHEARTERURBRITR

BHe ek

2023412 A31 8 + 41,244,000 3%
7T (2022 % : 4,098,000 7T) HY R 1T
HEHRIRBRHERRIEAREB HM
EREH(Q02F BRI LREME
K (FzE29) o

B2023%F12831H T ETT
(20224 : 1,659,000% 7T) K SR 1T 45
BEBREIFEARMEALNEEHES
ERE R (K15E30) o

R2023F 128318 KREBUAR
BAEITHFERPEMBRITRES
4R 4 259,000k 7T (2022 4F -
8,087,0003E7T) o AR I i 5N
AR OMNE B IRIGH) R
B - EERNEEEHRTE)HER -
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26.

238

SHARE CAPITAL 26. R4
Number of
shares Amount
BB S|
US$'000
FET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 20221 H18 -
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2022F12H31 8 -
(US$0.01 each) 20231 A1 H K20234F
128318 (&&0013E7T)  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, 20221 A18 -
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 2022F12H31 8 -
(US$0.01 each) 202351 A1 H K20234F
12A318B(&R0013ETT) 440,000,000 4,400

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that, for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have
a public float of at least 25% of the shares. Based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules. As at 31
December 2023, over 25% (2022: over 25%) of the shares were in
public hands.
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of financial position of the Company

(a)

g
(a) ADFHBARRR

27. KR T M BRRARREEE

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2023 2022
2023 20225
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5T FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries I B A FRIEE 38 55,603 55,603
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables, depositsand ~ E B FKIE « & &
prepayments Tt sRI8 25 41
Due from subsidiaries JEUR BT B A R IR 38 32,866 17,346
Bank and cash balances RIT MBS &% 306 22
Total current assets MBEEHE 33,197 17,409
TOTAL ASSETS EE#E 88,800 73,012
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EnkB8E
Share capital [N 4,400 4,400
Reserves i 27(b) 74,493 68,046
Total equity ERAE 78,893 72,446
LIABILITIES a&
Current liabilities REBEaE
Other payables and accruals Hth &~ 5008 K
EETER 418 492
Due to subsidiaries NN ] 38 9,489 74
Total current liabilities REBEEAHE 9,907 566
TOTALEQUITY AND LIABILITIES &= R B B4 88,800 73,012

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2024 and

is signed on its behalf by:

Xu Wenjun

"I

R2024FE3 6B EEESHE -

WA TFIIALTREREE -

Chen Ming
PR 5

FEREXEBARRAR/20BFF5H
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27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 27. R BRRRE F#EE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B (@)
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) AATREEH

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
IR 10 % B A3t E At
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FE7 F=71 FET
At 1 January 2022 20221 H1H 74,892 (5,168) 69,724
Loss for the year FEEE - (1,678) (1678)
At31 December2022and  72022F 12 A31 B K&
1 January 2023 2023%F 1 A1H 74,892 (6,846) 68,046
Profit for the year F & A - 22,474 22,474
Dividend paid (Note 17) BEATIRE (FFE17) - (16,027) (16,027)
At 31 December 2023 2023512 4318 74,892 (399) 74,493
28. RESERVES 28. f#f&
(a) Group (a) A&&EE
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements TEBNRFRESBELREEZHF
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of RINTREGEEBEaKAMEE
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and WamkARGEEREEE -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (b) FEHHEEREN
(i) Share premium (i) B@RE
Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the BEREHEEARNE R
funds in the share premium account of the Company KARIRD BERNES
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company AR FARRRIRE
provided that immediately following the date on AR R BEBEER D KRS
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the < BEAAFIHRENIBE
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as HARESHrEEER -

they fall in the ordinary course of business.
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28. RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents wavier of amount due
to the controlling shareholders. As the waived amount
is in substance equivalent to a capital contribution to
the Group, hence, it has been accounted for as capital
reserve.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the cost of investment in Xin
Yuan Ocean Shipping (HK) Group Limited (“Xin Yuan
Ocean’) over the nominal value of shares of Xin Yuan
Ocean acquired pursuant to a reorganisation for the
purpose of an initial public offering of the Company
which was completed on 19 December 2017.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange difference arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance

28. f##E (&)
(b) &%
(ii)

(i)

(iv)

MEERB N E)
BEXRRE

CENGEYY AR
FIEF R - HRERHR R
HEE LRERAAEE
WHEE - Bt ARINEE
ZNE L

EOtREE
TEENEHREBEARE
RRFER (B8 SEE
AR ([EREF]) Mg
BERABBEARRRLE
RARBEMmEITER (B
72017912 A 198 5T A)
BT Uk B8 (=R = 0F B (D A
pdial:op:=- -0

S S IR

SNERBRERRERESR
SINSE 5 B 755 SRR P EE A AT
BIMEERE - HEIIRIE
R B B 15 R M R 4

with the accounting policy set out in Note 4(c)(iii) to FrE M & st R RIE o
the consolidated financial statements.
29. BORROWINGS 29. B

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
US$’000 USS'000
FEx FET
Bank loans, secured IRITER - BikH - 4618
Other loans, secured EMER  BikHF 58,225 55,620
58,225 60,238

FEREXEBARRAR/20BFF5H

241



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F 12 A31 HILFE

29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

242

The borrowings are repayable as follows: JEERERAT
2023 2022
2023 2022
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Within one year —F LR 10,902 13,080
More than one year, but not exceeding ~ —4F A _F{B T iBiBM E
two years 17,588 10,309
More than two years, but not more than A _H{B R Bi@ R G
five years 25,025 31,730
More than five years AEFEUE 4,710 5119
58,225 60,238
Less: Amount due for settlement AR RBEARNBEESEE
within 12 months (shown Bl BRBEE)
under current liabilities) (10,902) (13,080)
Amount due for settlement after RREREINREESSE
12 months 47,323 47,158

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are NEBEZTHE@MEN T ST
denominated in the following currencies: 18 :

2023 2022

2023 20226

Us$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Us$ e 58,225 55,620

SGD TN T - 4618

58,225 60,238
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29. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The effective interest rates as at 31 December were as follows:

29. B (&)
R1I2A3THERFAERNT :

2023 2022

2023 & 2022
Bank loans RITER N/A R iE 2.90%-6.68%
Other loans HEMER 7.16%-9.59%  7.07%-8.95%

Bank loans of approximately USSNil (2022: US$4,618,000) and
other loans of approximately US$46,518,000 (2022:
US$41,571,000) are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Other loans were obtained for the additional working capital of
the Group. At 31 December 2023, the other loans were secured
by the following:

() Mortgage over the Group’s vessels (Note 19);

(i) Corporate guarantee provided by the Company;

(i)  Restricted bank balances (Note 25); and
Shares of certain subsidiaries.

(iv)

30. LEASE LIABILITIES

WRITERDODTET (2022F -
4,618,000% 7T) & H Mth B R4
46,518,000 7T (2022 4F : 41,571,000
ET0) TIRFEF R - BHibER

SEmBRRESRENREAR
HERERAEEBALEED
mELS o 72023512 A31H - Hfh
ERATFIIE B R IR

() AEEMMEIRS (FE9)
(i) ARBIREHDFIER
(i) ZPBRERITAEER (MI5E25) : &
vy &FHBRAERG
30. HEAE

Minimum lease payments

BREHEN
2023 2022
2023 2022 4F
Uss$’000 US$'000
TEx FETT
Within one year —FELA 240 15,126
More than one year, —FUA B BBRE
but not exceeding two years 235 240
More than two years, MELNEENBRARTF
but not more than five years 278 512
753 15,878
Less: Future finance charges W RKRELE B R (107) (893)
Present value of lease obligations HESRREAE 646 14,985
BEREEEEFGR QA /2023FFH 243
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. HEAE (®)

Present value of
minimum lease payments
REEESRRE

2023 2022

2023 2022 F

US$’000 USS$'000

FTER FET

Within one year —F PR 185 14,340
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A HETBEWE

two years 199 185
More than two years, but not more than ~ LA H{B RNERB T EF

five years 262 460

Present value of lease obligations HESRERE 646 14,985

R 12EARNBHEE SR
GIRRBAE)

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown

under current liabilities) (185) (14,340)
Amount due for settlement after RI2ERZEBEESSE
12 months 461 645

AEEHERENREENTIE

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are

denominated in the following currencies: HEtE -
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx TET
Hong Kong dollars BT 16 62
uss$ Ey - 14,149
RMB AR 630 774
646 14,985
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31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. G EE
Contract liabilities 2023 2022
EHEaE 2023 2022 €
USs$’000 US$'000
FXEx FETT
Advance payments — voyage charter BT FIE — 2 &
and CoA BEAY 130 -

Contract liabilities relating to the advance payments made by the
customers or billing in advance to the customers (whichever is
earlier) while underlying services are yet to be provided. Such
liabilities increase as a result of increase in advance payments
made by the customers or billing raised to the customers.

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

Movements in contract liabilities:

BHRBELBEPHHERREMRN
MR AN RIBXRAEF A LR
ARE (UREERE) -AREP
BENREXRAEFRAAKRERE N
BB EAMEM -

BEHAEGWEBEEHRRBELEEXR

Balance at 1 January K1 RA1B 2 &%

Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult ~ FERIEREFFAES L EER

s

of recognising revenue during the year WAREES DB GERD
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year

BHEEBEED :
2023 2022
2023 & 2022
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FET
- 257
= (257)

Increase in contract liabilities as a resultof BN HNBREENEE

advance payments made by customers 12 il 130 -
Balance at 31 December M12 A31 Bz & 130 -

The amount of advance payments is expected to be recognised
as income no more than one year is approximately US$130,000
(2022: USSNil).

AR BB —FANHERBREZ
T IR R /A 40 130,000 7T (2022
FBET) ¢
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32. EZENFIE
BREZHHEINE S ENRIERE

32. TRADE PAYABLES
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date,

is as follows: BT
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FETT
0 to 30 days 0&E30H 1,073 2,074
31 to 60 days 31260H 12 373
Over 60 days 60 H A E 496 615
1,581 3,062

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are REBE S ENZIENEEENE
denominated in USS. JCRHE

33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33, HitEAREREE

2023 2022

2023 F 2022

Uss$’000 US$'000

FEx FET

Receipts in advance AW FRIA 1,532 1,160
Other payables and accruals Hith et 508 et & A 1,242 1,328
2,774 2,488
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

34, MEBRERERME

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEETHELEENYHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRAVIANEEREETBES
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BENEE BEREKIER
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities TEH MEEBHELEMNAR
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows BRESRELLKRKEEN
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of EFTRAEELSEREAE
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ~EHEAMERDMERERN
ENRE-

At Non-cash At

1January  Cashflows, transactions Exchange 31 December

2023 net (Note) differences 2023

R2023%  RERE FRENZ R2023 5

1A1H FH (BirE) EXZ®  12B31H

Us$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000

TZn TER S T£n TEn

Borrowings B 60,238 (2,192) 171 8 58,225

Lease liabilties HEAR 14,985 (14,415) 74 2 646

Total &3 75,223 (16,607) 25 10 58,871

At Non-cash At

1January  Additions of Cashflows,  transactions Exchange 31 December

2022 lease liabilities net (Note) differences 2022

ALK ME o BERE  FHERS RAnE

1A1A HEEE ik ()  EXEE AR

US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000

TER TEn TET TEn TER TEn

Borrowings B 40678 - 19011 574 (25) 60238

Lease liablities BERE 31453 993 (17.253) (146) (62 14985

Total b 72131 993 1,758 428 87) 75223

Note: The non-cash transactions represented non-cash interest and early
extinguishment of leases.

M EReX SRR MR
AIAE LTS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023  #ZE 2023 12 A31 B IEFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. MEBRERERMT (&)

CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERERLHAETE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash HEFAGERERERNSE
flows for leases comprise the following: BHBIELAT -
2023 2022
2023 2022
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Within operating cash flows BRELERERE 525 1512
Within financing cash flows BREBERERE 14,415 17,253
14,940 18,765
These amounts relate to the following: ZERFEETYIEEMHEE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Lease rental paid ENEERS 14,940 18,765
35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35. HRER
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any significant 72023F 124318 - AEB W EA
contingent liabilities (2022: Nil). A8 KA B E (20226 - &)
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36. REHELTH

The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for office
premises. As at 31 December 2023, the portfolio of short-term
leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 20.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these leases is approximately US$10,000 (2022:
US$8,000).

The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to future aggregate minimum charter hire
income receivable under non-cancellable time charters. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the vessel at the
expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

AEBEERSEBA
AEETFHRWHAEIVEHAE
R2023F12831H - &%ﬁﬁ@A
HM 0B REAERHEERX
FEHEAAESE -

Famaiuﬂ31a BZEHEE
MAEERERELNAE10000FETT
(2022 € : &ooo§é7u>°

AEEEZHEA

RETHE EARER T A]H B R R
MARRZERSWABLERR - &
A 2 72 7 HA R o B S B i AR Y
B -

AHE R REEENKNT

2023 2022
2023 2022
Uss$’000 US$'000
FErx FET
Within year 1 —F A 27,113 12,346
In the second year F_F 11,724 -
In the third year F=%F 1,197 -
40,034 12,346

The following table represents the amount reported in profit or TRAFTABENERE

loss:

2023 2022
2023 2022 FF
Uss$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
Lease income on operating leases KEHEMNHEEWRA 39,060 33316

EREEXEEBR AT /202BFFR 249
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. B AR 5
(@ Inaddition to those related party transactions and balances @ BREEMBREREMM ST
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BHEE RS KGRI K
statements, the Group had the following transactions with SERFRNEEBBFTETT
its related parties during the year: WTRS :
2023 2022
2023 20224
US$'000 US$'000
FEx F=ET
Interest paid to related companies M AR R R ST FIE
(Note) (BFE) = 5
Note: Ms. Liu Weipeng and Mr. Yan XianKai (the spouse of Ms. Liu MizE AR EETHEARESLu
Weipeng), the directors of some of the Company’s subsidiaries, and Weipeng 2 == J% Yan XianKai 5t &
Mr. Xu Wenjun, the director of the Company, have beneficial (Liu Weipeng Z = 2 B2 18) A &
interests in the related companies. RABEEHRXHATERZSE

AR ARI R Btk o

(b)  The remuneration of directors and other members of key b)) EBEERFEEEEHMKER

management during the year was as follows: FANFHMAT -

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

US$’000 USS$'000

FEr FET

Short-term benefits 5 HERE A 841 985

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /K& F1| 5t 21 4 3k 11 13

852 998
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2023

38. TEME QT

MR2023F 128318 TEHB R A

are as follows: o= g (N
Percentage
Place of Particular of ownership
incorporation/ issued and fully interest /
Principal place  kind of legal paid-up share voting power
Name of operation entity capital profitsharing  Principal activities
EMRIEY/ BROR  FER/RER/
£ TEERNYE LXHE BRREFE BRSREA  TERB
Directly held:
EERE:
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited Hong Kong The British Virgin Islands/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company of US$1 each
Virtue Glory Holdings Limited B LBRNEE/ 10000k ERAE 00% RERR
AREART 1 ETHE R
Indirectly held:
BEEA
Baustella Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited Limited liability company chartering
ZHEMB (BR)BRAA A B/ BRELAT 10000 & Bk 100% FAMMEMAEE
Begstella Shipping (HongKong) Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Inactive
Limited Limited liability company
BREMK (FR)ERLT BE B/ BRELAA 100008k E 3Bk 00% WEEE
China Union Sealand Group Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company
TEEEEEERAR A BB/ BRELAH 10000 & Bk 100% RELR
Jastella Shipping (Hong Kong) Limited - Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company chartering
KHAEMY (BR)BRAF A B/ BREMLAF 10000 & Bk 100% FAMMEMAEE
Lotstella Shipping (HongKong) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company chartering
FILEMT (BR)BRAT EE B/ BRELAA 100008k E 3Bk 100% FEAMMRMHEE
Qasis Oriental Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Inactive
Limited liability company
RAGNERAR EE BB/ BRELAT 10,000 R & B 00% TEER

FEREXEBARRAR/20BFF5H
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

252

38. TEME QT (&)

Percentage
Place of Particular of ownership
incorporation/ issued and fully interest /
Principal place  kind of legal paid-up share voting power
Name of operation entity capital profitsharing  Principal activities
EMRIEY BRTR  FHER/RER/
8 TEERME LEHE ARRAFE RAIMLH TEXR
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE: (8
Phoenix Shipping (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited Limited liability company chartering
BB (B8) ERAF B BB/ BREALT 10000 & Bk 00% EERMARHMMEE
Shun Yuen Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited Limited liability company
EREE(FE)ARAR EE BB/ BRELAT 10,000 R E X 100% RERR
Xin De Yuan (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 59,000,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Shipping Limited Limited liability company chartering
EER(EE)MBEERRA A &2/ EREMART 59,000,000 % & 100% FEEMRBRMHES
Xin Yuan Ocean Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 70,000,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company chartering
fEREE B BB/ BREART 700000007 & Bk 00%  EERMARHMMEE
Xin Yuan Ship Management Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel management
(Hong Kong) Limited Limited liability company
ERWHER (BR)ERRR  BA BB/ BRELAT 10,000 R E X 100% MMER
Z8L Blue Whale Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Shipping Limited Limited liability company chartering
EBRBERAR BB B/ BRELAA 10000 R & @A 100% FEAMMRMHEE
781 Dolphin Shipping Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company chartering
BEMBEERA &R BB/ BREART 100008k 3K 100% FEAMMRMHEE
Z8L Flying Fish Shipping Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 10,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company chartering
RemBERLRA B 58/ EREALA 10000 5 &R 100% FEMRBRMHES
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. TEME QT (&)

Percentage
Place of Particular of ownership
incorporation/ issued and fully interest /
Principal place  kind of legal paid-up share voting power
Name of operation entity capital profitsharing  Principal activities
dMALLE/ BRTR  FHER/RER/
£ TEEXBY  LEME ARRAFE BRDREH TEXH
Indirectly held: (Continued)
BEEE: (8
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore/ 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company of US$T each
Bilxin Shipping Group Pte. Ltd. b nmg/ BREALRA 1000000 X B R EE 00%  REEE
1ETHERR
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore/ 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company of USST each chartering
Poestella Shipping Pte. Ltd. i s/ EREAARA 50000 B RAEE 00%  HEMHRMHEE
1ETHEBR
Rostella Shipping Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore/ 50,000 ordinary shares 100%  Vessel owning and
Limited liability company of US$T each chartering
Rostella Shipping Pte. Ltd. gl g/ BRELAT s0000 BIREE 100%  FEEMARMAEE
1ETHEBR
Fujian Xinyuanxinlanhai Importand ~ The PRC The PRC/ Registered capital of 100%  Sourcing of mechanical
Export Trade Company Limited Wholly foreign owned RMB50,000,000 equipment and hardware
(BRERFERELD entity Paid-up capital of product for the Group's
BHERAF) RMB48,161,827 (2022 vessels and provision of
RMB47,075,566) administrative services
t0 group companies
BRERMEGELOES e hE/NEBALE HER 100% AREERARRELSR
BRAH AR EE 50000000 7T RERBHERARA
BRRE SERARETHRE
ARE 48161827 T
(02%F:
AR 470755667T)

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

R ETBREAEERE &
EXBENHRERARNER - &
(I8 A REHITEMBERES

FEU(FEA-F) B B8 A B 0T /s R 4
2B RARBREERER -
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. HEHERER
On 16 January 2024, the Group settled an other loan of 20241168 AEBEREIH
approximately US$11,707,000 before the maturity date. The HAIEE —IE4) 411,707,000 € TTHY
pledge of the related vessel was released to complete the H A0 B - MM AR E IR AR
disposal of vessel disclosed in Note 19. ATER IR 10FT BB o M HE =

15 o

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. LE BB F
Comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the HRBFEEHDE  URFERF
current year's presentation. The changes included the fEI’J HAR - ZEEHEERA
reclassification of fair value gains on derivative financial Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ@%kzmiﬁrﬂilﬂ
instruments previously classified under other income to other NEFEWEEFHSEAE MK
gains and losses. The new classification of the accounting items &)Eﬁ B-HeitEE D BERBRE
was considered to provide a more appropriate presentation of HERE MR ANER 2 B ERIR -

the financial performance of the Group.
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Definitions

&

“Agreement” the memorandum of agreement dated 22 December 2023 entered into between
the Vendor and the Purchaser in respect of the disposal of the XYMG Noble

EAEA Y8 E 77 B E 75 5L B XYMG Noble P a] 32 B 81432023 55 12 A 22 H 09 15 &
1= 8%

"Audit Committee" the audit committee of the Board

[E%EEg] BEEeEREZES

"Bareboat Charter the bareboat charter agreement dated 15 December 2023 entered into between

Agreement” the Charterer (as charterer) and the Owner (as owner) in relation to the bareboat

chartering of the Baustella

[emiB & EEMA ERMEMA) BB A (VERHEE A) B Baustella B X A 1 E B

I HEIAE2023F 12 A 15 B XA E R =

“Board” the board of Directors

[EEg] BEEE

“Charterer” Baustella Shipping (Hong Kong) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of Hong Kong and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

[FE A A BEAEMB(BE)BERAR  —BRBEBAETMEKINAR B
RARMEEE2EWE AR

“Company” Xin Yuan Enterprises Group Limited (1R & ¥ & B A& R 2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability whose Shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1748)

ZAYNCIN REREEEERRAR  —HRASHESEMRINERRARAF

“Director(s)”

H B OB R B £ AR £ (B HX5%  1748)

director(s) of the Company

= BARAIES

“Disposal” the disposal of the XYMG Noble under the Agreement

(&S] HEAR IR 72 9 3% & XYMG Noble

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries

[N & & BARRRAREWNE R A

"HKS” Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[% 7] BEBETEBET

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
(&%) BREARANMBEARFITHR

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
[ Em R Al B MES EmARE

“Memorandum of

the memorandum of agreement dated 15 December 2023 entered between the

Agreement” Charterer and the Owner in relation to the sale and purchase of the Baustella
[ 175 a2 fha T ik | EEM AR ABLE EBaustella AT 32 A #I /R 2023 5 12 A 15 B &

"Nomination Committee"

[fRRZEg]

the nomination committee of the Board

HEFTREZES

EREXEEARRF /2023 FFH 255
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B
"Owner”
E/Z=PN
"PRC”

[ E

“Purchaser”

"Remuneration Committee"
(FNEE=]

"Sale and Leaseback
(December 2023)
Transactions”

[E1& O (2023F128)% 5 |

“Share(s)"
[ %15 |

“Shareholder(s)”
%= |

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 22 FFr |

"Strategic Development Committee"

(B EREZES

"US$" or "USD”
i

"Vendor”

[E77]

"“Year Under Review”

[EE%E |

“0p"

[%]

Bright Baustella Shipping Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Republic of Liberia and indirectly wholly-owned by Avic International Leasing Co,,
Ld (FAREIREE AR AR

#& Bright Baustella Shipping Limited + — FEI 4R #& F1J bt B2 25 L 70 B 0% 12 7 fift
EHTHRBEREERRARBEEEEEENAR

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purposes of this report, excludes
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan, China
BHREAREAMNBE  BAmEME -
FRliTH Rk EEE

TEEER  PEARKAMBIRRM

SAFE ARRIVAL SHIPPING PTE. LTD., a company incorporated under the laws of
Singapore, or its guaranteed nominee

8 SAFE ARRIVAL SHIPPING PTE. LTD. » — IR R 3T AN A 2 s M A S B9 7]
I EERKEA

the remuneration committee of the Board
EEEgNEES

the transactions contemplated under the Memorandum of Agreement, the
Bareboat Charter Agreement and other documents in relation to Baustella as
described in the announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2023

& B BBaustella M i sl = 8% - M EHE R EMXHE TRETR
5 HRARRIABHA2023F 121580 A%

ordinary share(s) of US$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
EARRRIRAFT EREE0.01 ETTH BB

holder(s) of the Shares
BRODHAEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEEBMEXZSARRAT

the strategic development committee of the Board

FESSUREREZES

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
HE2E FER A B EE S T

Z&L Dolphin Shipping Limited (& 75 B BR 2 A), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as at 22 December 2023
BEPMBAERAR - —RAREBEEEEETMAZNER DA
FRALBRARANEZEE2ENE QA

* 782023
reporting period for the year ended 31 December 2023
EEZE2023F 12 A3 BIEFE 2 4 #R

per cent

EEO
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